Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

expense to replace all or a portion of the water line that runs through the subject property that
are believed by the Storey County Public Works Director to be susceptible to damage caused
by activities associated with the SUP in the area adjacent to the water line.

The Permit Holder will be fully responsible for financial costs associated with required
repairs or replacement of the water line. All repairs and replacement shall be to the
satisfaction of the Public Works Director.

7.4 Survey monument protection

No survey monument may be moved or disturbed (as prohibited by federal or state law). To
the extent practicable, all monument witness corners, reference monuments, bearing trees and
line trees shall be protected against undue destruction, obliteration, or damage. If in the
course of operations any survey monument is destroyed, obliterated, or damaged, the Permit
Holder shall immediately report the matter to the Planning Department and the Bureau of
Land Management. The notice shall describe the monument and its geo-coordinates before
disturbance, how it was disturbed and to what extent, and the plan for immediate corrective
action. The Permit Holder shall be financially responsible for the immediate and appropriate
corrective action.

VIII. CULTURAL RESOURCES

8.1 Protection of Devil’s Gate

Uses under this SUP shall not cause impacts to the Devil’s Gate rock outcropping/historic
landmark. Storey County through this SUP and in conformance with the findings of fact in
SCC 17.92 expresses to Lyon County its strong opposition to any allowance of surface
disturbances to the landmark, except for realignment or improvements to State Route 342, to
portions of the landmark that are located within Lyon County.

The Permit Holder shall cause no surface disturbance within 500° of the outer edge of the
Devil’s Gate outcropping in Storey County. Surface disturbances within 1,000” of the outer
edge of the rock outcropping which are caused by mining and mine definition shall be fully
reclaimed within 1 year of disturbance. Those disturbances caused by exploration shall be
reclaimed as required otherwise for exploration outside of the active mine. Realignment and
improvements to State Route 342 are exempt from these limitations, except that such may
not cause adverse impacts to the surface of the outcropping.

8.2 Historical structures protection

Uses under this SUP shall not cause any historical structure to be disturbed, altered, moved,
or demolished without a plan submitted to the Planning Department to return the structure
fully in-tact to its approximate original location following activities that cause the structure to
be moved. The plan and association action will be subject to Comstock Historic District
approval. Historical structures shall include occupied and unoccupied buildings,
outbuildings, mine head-frames, and foundations which are 50 years of age or older.

8.3 Cemetery protection
The uses under this SUP shall not cause any cemetery or structures therein, including but not
limited to headstones, monuments, fences, enclosures, etc., to be disturbed, altered, moved,

50 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

or destroyed. At a minimum, state laws protecting cemeteries shall not be violated. The terms
of this condition shall be fulfilled by compliance with the following limitations.

e Limitations and mitigation. Activities and disturbances shall not take place within 300° of
a cemetery boundary as defined by NRS 452.0075 and as determined by the Comstock
Cemetery Foundation (CCF). These limitations shall not apply to general vehicular and
heavy equipment traffic taking place on the established county roads and right-of-ways,
including American Flat Road, or the improvement or widening of American Flat Road
as allowed by the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) pursuant to its Environmental
Assessment (EA) under NEPA. These limitations also shall not apply to mineral
exploration activities approved by the CCF within the established cemetery buffer area,
but not within any cemetery boundary or public right-of-way. Written approval by the
CCF shall be submitted to Planning Department prior to commencement of activities
within the scope of these regulations.

e Cooperation. Activities and disturbances may be permitted between 300’ and 500°
surrounding each cemetery boundary as described above when the Permit Holder initiates
and maintains continuous communication and collaboration with the CCF in protecting
said cemetery resources. A surface vibration monitoring program shall be developed and
implemented as determined by the CCF. The program will monitor surface vibrations at
selected sites to assess potential vibrations from drilling and excavating operations, heavy
machinery, and vehicles. The monitoring program, upon approval of the CCF, will be at
oversight of the CCF and at the expense of the Permit Holder, unless agreed otherwise
between the parties.

8.4 Cultural resources discovery

Should any prehistoric or historic remains/artifacts be discovered during development or
excavation, work shall temporarily be halted at the specific site and the Building and
Planning Departments shall be notified in order to evaluate the site and, if deemed necessary,
to record and photograph the site in question. The period of temporary delay shall be limited
to a minimum of two working days from the date of notification, unless it is a significant find
and it is deemed necessary to provide more time to evaluate and protect historical remains or
artifacts.

8.5 Historic area preservation

The Permit Holder agrees to contribute at least one percent of annual Net-Smelter-Return
(the gross payment on the sale of Dore less the cost of refining and rclated shipping) toward
historic preservation and/or restoration projects within Virginia City, Gold Hill, American
Flat, and/or Silver City. This condition shall apply only when the mine associated with this
SUP is in active status. A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) shall be developed
between the Permit Holder and Storey County, as approved by the District Attorney’s Office,
for this purpose. (Note: The Permit Holder has in the past contributed financial and other
resources to, and has otherwise been actively engaged in, historical preservation and
restoration projects and efforts throughout the Comstock over the past several years,
including in Virginia City, Gold Hill, Silver City (Lyon County), and American Flat.
Accordingly, the Permit Holder collaborated with Storey County in developing and accepting

51 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

this SUP condition. This SUP condition requiring partial Net-Smelter Revenues contribution
is intended to be inclusive of, and not add to, the “1 percent royalties” pledged in the past by
the Permit Holder for this purpose).

8.6 Visitor/tourism element

In conformance with the Storey County Master Plan, the Permit Holder is required to
develop a pedestrian-oriented area near State Route 342 at a safe and appropriate location
between the Devil’s Gate outcropping and American Flat Road, Gold Hill, at which motorists
may park and exit their vehicles and view information about the history and purpose of past
and current mining activity in the area and associated with the this SUP. As required in
proceeding SUP No. 2011-016 (closed in 2014), the Permit Holder developed a visitors’
center that fully conforms to the requirements in the SUP as well as the supporting county
master plan. The Permit Holder is hereby required to maintain that visitors’ center, or,
develop another such informational center that conforms to this SUP and is constructed to the
satisfaction of the Planning and Public Works Departments, Comstock Historic District, and,
if applicable, NDOT.

10. POWER OF THE BOARD & PLANNING COMMISSION

The Board of County Commissioners has the power to make planning and zoning decisions for
Storey County and has created the planning commission to advise the Board as provided in Title
2 of the Storey County Code (“SCC”) and NRS 278 and 278A. The Planning Commission must
perform all duties and functions delegated to a county planning commission by the terms of NRS
278.010 to 278.630, inclusive, and SCC Chapter 2.12 (Planning Commission). The planning
commission is advisory to the Board. The Planning Commission must hear applications on
special use permits, variances, and appeals of administrative decisions, changes to the county
master plan, zoning districts, amendments to SCC Title 18, and all other appropriate subjects and
make recommendations to the Board. After considering the Planning Commission’s
recommendation, the Board by majority vote may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the
application, or return the recommendation to the Planning Commission for further consideration.

11. PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION

At its August 21, 2014, hearing, the planning commission heard testimony from the applicant,
county staff, and the public. The applicant provided diagrams, photos, and maps of the subject
property and the proposed use. Discussion at the meeting included environmental and safety
concerns; access; appropriation of ground and surface water; state and federal permitting;
location and separation of uses; zoning and use entitlements; potential impacts to adjacent
residences and the Historic District; noise, dust, lighting, stormwater, and reclamation; and
overall benefits and impacts to the site and surrounding area. Public comment, both for and
against the project, was received over three separate hearings. Between the first and third
hearing, county staff collaborated with area residents, the applicant, and environmental and
emergency agencies to address key impacts identified during the public meetings. Afterward,
staff read into the record its recommended findings to be included with a motion for approval.
The planning commission voted unanimously (7 votes with all planning commissioners present)
to approve the project in accordance with stated findings and as recommended by staff.

52 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

12. PROPOSED MOTIONS

This section contains three motions from which to choose. Motion 1 for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with findings under Subsection 8.1 and the
recommendation of the Planning Commission. Those findings should be made part of the
motion. Motion 2 for approval, as an alternative, may be made in accordance with findings
under Subsection 8.1, but against the recommendation by the Planning Commission. Those
findings should be made part of that motion. Motion 3 for denial may be made and that motion
should cite one or more of the findings shown in Subsection 8.2. Other findings of fact
determined appropriate by the body should be made part of their motion.

Motion 1 — Recommended motion

Based on Findings of Fact shown in Subsection 8.1 and conditions of approval shown in Section
9 of this report, compliance with federal, state, and county regulations, and the recommendation
for approval by the Planning Commission and staff, I motion to approve SUP Application No.
2000-222-A-4, amending SUP No. 2000-222-A-3 to expand the subject land area and amend
uses as provided in the Planning Commission and staff recommendation for mining, processing,
mine definition and exploration, and ancillary uses.

Summary: Approve SUP amendment

Motion 2 — Alternative motion

Based on Findings of Fact shown in Subsection 8.1 and conditions of approval shown in Section
9 of this report, compliance with federal, state, and county regulations, but not in conformance
with the recommendation of the Planning Commission and staff, I motion to approve SUP
Application No. 2000-222-A-4, amending SUP No. 2000-222-A-3 to expand the subject land
area and amend uses provided in the staff recommendation for mining, processing, mine
definition and exploration, and ancillary uses. As part of this motion, I move that the proposed
subject property boundary line is modified from the proposal in the SUP application and the staff
report so that it: _ (describe your motion)

Summary: Approve SUP amendment with (x) modifications to the proposed SUP
boundary

Motion 3 — Alternative motion
Based on Findings of Fact shown in Subsection 8.2 and conditions of approval shown in Section

o (B o e— Dlianning Cammiccinon and

9 of this report, and dgdlnbl the recommendation for appluval Uy the I 1a11111115 Commission and
staff, I motion to deny SUP Application No. 2000-222-A-4, amending SUP No. 2000-222-A-3 to
expand the subject land area and amend uses as provided in the staff recommendation for
mining, processing, mine definition and exploration, and ancillary uses. The motion to deny SUP
No. 2000-222-A-4 will apply only to proposed amendments in SUP Application No. 2000-222-
A-4 and will have no impact and will cause no change to entitlements, regulations, and uses
which may occur pursuant to SUP No. 2000-222-A-3.

Summary: Deny SUP amendment
Prepared by Austin Osborne, Senior Planner

53 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Enclosures:

Exhibit A: Boundaries and Uses of SUP No. 2000-222-A-4*

Exhibit B: Magnified “Area C” and “Area D” for utilities and road improvement*
Exhibit C: Post-Operation Reclamation at Billy the Kid, Lucerne, Hartford, and Justice*
Exhibit D: Distance separation from residence located at APN 002-141-13*
Exhibit E: Known natural drainages within subject property*

Exhibit F: Comstock Historic Preservation Area (CHPA) map (SCC 17.92)
Exhibit G: Boundaries of existing SUP No. 2000-222-A-3 (“existing SUP”)
Exhibit H: NDEP Reclamation Cost Estimate Summary (2014)

Exhibit I: NDEP surety bond letter (2014)

Exhibit J: Existing SUP conditions (SUP No. 2000-222-A-3) to be amended
Exhibit K: Existing SUP conditions (SUP No. 2011-016) (“exploration SUP”)
Exhibit L: SUP Application No. 2000-222-A-4** (for “amended SUP”)

*Exhibits A-E will be incorporated into the letter of approval for SUP No. 2000-222-A-4.

**Post-operation reclamation visual renditions are embedded in Exhibit C and thus were omitted from the
SUP application shown in Exhibit L.

54 of 135



SE1Jos6

. n BIED 34] JO AORINODR 1O ADUSIDIINS I} 03 Se A}unoy)
....... i ; L , £2101§ Aq pawinsse st AN(Iqel] ON (VJAN) 10V A21[0d [BIUSWIUOIIAUZ [BUOIIBN 9] JSpUR UCoR
: as (V) SIUSWISSISSY [EJUSWIUOIIAUL JO SA1IBPUNOQ 10 ‘SALIBPUNOq Wik[d SUIUTW ‘Saliepunoq Aem
-Jo-1y31u ‘saur| [9oJed Surkjropun mojjoy A[jersusd pue atewxoidde ate umoys saurepunoq S
oy 010 ‘skeaIns-as ‘spasp ‘sdew Je[d ©901n0s SAEILIOWINE SY) 10] Juswaoe[dal SE pan.Isuod
29 10U P|NOYS pue UoNEaUljop A2AINS 1u9s21dal JOU SI0P Ulalay Paureluod elep sy, 210N

H3uIAD I LM, CICU SUR FE L BRRELY -

P LTSS e ar pamciy -

¢

azzasd zzey -

BT =

ACVALED 3d U Bl £ DD Y 22N By J2IRPIETE A 3ETE

£asn 4N pasedory 3477 flara g u 4u_\
$95) deRy 206 F10T )

¢ ¢

(42119] ppaoaddo gn§ ay1 oyl paipiodioour 2q o)
P-V-TTT-000T 'ON (1S JO S38[) pue soliepunog v JIqyxy



Gel 40 95

B = e I D

—— der-at
s gea 9 I R - S T O - D e c3 | —]
L R o e e
e e T
L TS B
[T S e ——— ] PRl Ty
i i TR, e o —

“BJBP Y} JO ADBINODE 10 AOURIDIIINS 2Y) 01 Se Ajuno))

21015 Aq paunsse s1 Ajiqer] oN (Y JIN) 19V A91|0J |BIUSUIUONIAUT [BUOLEN Sy} 19pun uomoe
(V3) SIUDWISSASSY [EJUSWIONAUT JO SSLIEPUNOQ JO "SOLEPUNO] WIE[d Furutw ‘saLrepunoq Aem
-yo-jySu ‘saur| [201ed Sulkpepun mo[|oy A[Je1ouss pue arewrxoldde ore umoys saLrepunoq JdS
AL ‘010 ‘sAaams-al ‘spaap ‘sdew 1e|d ‘20.M0s SATRILIOYINE S 10] Justuaoe[das Se panisuoo

2q 10U P[NOYS PUB UOIEaUl|9p A2AInS Ju9so1d21 J0U SIOP UISISY PIUILIUOD BIEP Y I, (910N

(12132] Joaoddy g § ayp opr pawiodiodul aq o)
judwdA0Id W peod pue SAI[UN J0) ([ BIIY,, PUE ) €IV, PIYIUSeIN g NqIYXT

WLl Iv8'GLL

‘ou| ‘Buruipy yo0lsWwoD
Buiuue|d Ajuno) Aslolg

¥-V-222-0002 - Hoday Jels



SELJO LS

a4 autu US43y

(42112] paouddp Jns ay1 oqul pawiodiodut aq o)
DUSN pue ‘projlIey QUIdN T ‘pryf 9y} A[[ig e uoneweRY uoyerdd(-isod D NqIYxy



GE1 408G

Da4D Ul 2U0ISADY ULYINOS

— e S B

. -
L -

Q3SOdONdE,

YLl PR°GLL "ou} ‘Buluipy soolswo)
Buluuely funod Aalols ¥-v-222-0002 — Hoday yeis



GEL 40 6S

D24D dunU 201SH[

PyLL/¥RGLL "au] ‘Bultipy ¥o0IsWoD
Butuueld Aiunod As101g ¥-v-¢22-000¢ — Hoday yels



S€1 4009

SD2ID JULU PAOSPIDE] duUlooN]

prlL Y8 GLL ou| ‘Bulupy YooisWwoD
Buluuelq Aunon Aa101g ¥-V-222-0002 — Hoday yels



GEL40 19

va.1v dupu pryf oy g ‘pAofivH

—— - o

2 AWAL R TA ouj ‘Buluipy ooyswo)
Buiuuelq Alunog As101g ¥-v-222-000Z — Hoday yeis



Gel 409

Civ =200 NgY IE

£1-1ri-T00 NdY it 23usp

T2 UDIREAISS30Z JUOISI YICISU

g CT-TFT-Con NdY
w
2Py

Nind

H0LSH0)

(42133] ppao.ddp JN§ ay1 ol paip40diodul aq o)
€I-T$1-700 NdV ¥& P3jed0[ 3dudpIsal wody uonetedas souesi(q :( NqIuxXy

vrLL LvR'GLL DUl ‘Buiuipy Mooswod
Buiuuelq Aluno) Asiolg ¥-v-222-000T — Hoday jels



GEL 40 €9

=) T P S LT o
B i Gy = oeche oo, e e LT VAT
- CPUNCAdNS g m s . — T e i 1m0 3 g i P+ T
< - — LTI OIS RTR

SPUERSAL SN MR IO DT V- . E2ry Bussa) pasodosa

P = D 133 J0C L =2 P
B caBruies SN A 40 SIER, sur] Aunog)|
° &~ ¥101SK 03
SUBAIND ww = VdMO a— \ NP e
)3 080 WOIRAS degy s30[0apAH Grld NG

(42112] ppaosddo s ayl oyl pap.iodiooul aq of)

‘(107 b1 Udy “s1eaumiSug Jo sdio) ‘ojustuerdes 1oLsi(q Jouidug Auny g () ‘Aury 9y Jo juowpeds osfoxd [Surury
¥ooswo))] Suturpy wnjg 2y J0j uoneuIwIlep [euondrpsunl 99g) Ay1adoad 3103[qns aq) urg)im soSeureap [BIN)BU UMOUWY  NGIYXY

PYLL YR SLL -ou| ‘Buiuipy MooyswoD
Buluueld Aiuno) Aa1018 ¥-V-222-000¢ — Hoday yels



Exhibit F: Comstock Historic Preservation Area (CHPA) map (SCC 17.92)

._' ,’ _'5._ ‘-:___. X,
l(‘O\ISl()(_I\ I‘IISIOHIE" I'th? ii;a\f \l‘l(}N \RI' r\

.1 1 4 Ty
i \:,U l""q%—r

I'.‘" "‘Ui- «

CHPA RESTRICTED AREA BOUNDARY SCALE- 17=5200"
HISTORIC VIEWSHED BOUNDARY = = = — = =— = =

VIRGINIA CITY MINE ORDINANCE EXHIBIT

64 of 135



Se1Joso

o0y 03 0 0
107 EE—
Ve8] (D3 = uTul |

N
—

f2oaned 4038 1407 _

FEITATL IMTES )

B2 @0 TSRS

TN AT Q08 TIDIIED

€-V-TTT-0007 "ON (1S SunsIXd Jo saLiepunog 9 NqYxXy



GEL 099

ak _.n_m.u.mo., 8L

. v. ._
wc_nmn
m /'

u.\‘\\

5 mc___z

M sl ¢

_eurp) u_..g, z&z ,,

i

L,,_

i A S
et G A
PN ey .
| 159) 002 = 10Ul |
ol ] Y I
ey :

Auspunog dns Lot ) g

N FoTE PEsRe )
I EYCLIIT00DD ON KRS 93T rewals |
. S

aVIN AEVE10E S TyIOlid0

PyLL P8 GLL
Buiuuelq fijunon A21018

£-V-2ZZ2-000Z "ON d1S 3u1Isixa fo saruvpunog :(panunpuod) 9 nqryxsy

ou| ‘Buiuiy Moolswo)
¥-v-222-0002 — Hoday yels



Exhbit H: NDEP Reclamation Cost Estimate Summary (2014)

Closure Cost Estimate
Cost Summary

Froject Name: Lucerne Resource Project Area -Reclamatien Plan Update
Project Date: February 2014
Model Version: Version 1.4.4
File Name: 35RCE_v_1_4_1_017_NV_CML_360000.130_SY_FKEL_20140204 xism

| Ty
Foandstion 8 Buidingz Ameys
Yards, B

Craroge & Sxdfment Control
GEneric Material Hauing

Ot User Cozts o Cther User the)

Aner
[suticial
MohDemed ¢ induded n Other User shest eate 35,419 st:gg‘.:l
MaaTemok | [
Sublotal "8~ $338.458| $578.741] $70,701 $987,903
B. Revegetation/Stabilization - : Labor™ | Equipment® | Materials | = Total
Exphorabon [ 520 £ $I67
Expicisbon Foads & Ol Poads 3144 [ o207 65
Fcads §1,087] %455 815 ¥
‘el Abangonmernt
iz 12617
CuNTies R SoMmw Amas (X
Unsierground Cpenings
Process Ponds $85]|
Heans =57
"Hazie Rock Durps 3170
il %
A
Fondsion & Gu0ings AT [XRa
Yarts, i R
Drairags L Zadment Cortrol 3154
GEren: MaEr Houing W
Ofer User Costs (o Cther User sheet (O
ot Cal o COer U et
Subtotal "B 459,067 $11.863 $53.317 $164.247
C. Detoxiication/Water Treatment@isposal of Wastes*® . Materials Total |
Process PondsSudge 310,000
| Henos ]
Curmps (Waste & Lana™il [
Tt ()
S IDLE Waker Disoces 24,000 4000,
Moriorng __ W
MELALIE O E]
Sol Wtz -On S = EI NA ¥
Bobd Waste - O Ske FLIX
Haryoous Malerals (EYE]
Hyncabon Contaminaked Eols §10,345] $10.325|
CAner Usear Costs ifvom Other User sheeti §1, n2 3795 $205,545 32BO205E
Other™ [Chemioal Y 14 dicpocal of eurplus waler 18, B000) $21,000
subfotal “C” $1.841,622| $805.796 $215.957| $2.885.259
D. Structure, Equipment and Facility Removal, and Mis¢. ‘Tofal
Foundation & Budings Areas
Oher Dermoiten
Eupren: Removal
Fenoe Removal
Fence Instalaicn:
Curver Removst
Fioe Removal
Fowerne Remos
Trrsherer Rerovnl
FOrED, Mok ining, gabons
|_Other Mg, Costy
ey Lzar Cogls Hfrom Other User shest) & 974 $L76T
ther” [Remaval Fusiing Eislion Tanks E'uu $4000[ EEI_

67 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4
Comstock Mining, Inc.

Closure Cost Estimate
Cost Summary

Storey County Planning

Project Hame: Lucerne Resource Project Area - Reclamation Plan Update
Praject Date: February 2014

File Hame: SRCE v 1 4 1 017 _NV_CML

odel Version:

Version 1.4.1

60000.130_SY FNL_20140204.xIsm

775.847.1144

Subtotal “D” $188,305] $84.816] $7.500| $280,620
E. Monitoring Labor (" Equipment® | Materials Total
Rexamallon Monkerng 3nd Marmenance FYERETD 58,8585 L5 603 §25575
GmoLnd ard Surass Wxer Monkedrg £33390 54071 56610 22581
Orhar Lisar Cogif (Irom DTher tsar sheel) &0 50 30 bl
Subtotal "E" $46,034 $10,730 $12.203 $58,967
F. Construction Management & Support Labor Equipment © Materials Total
Constuchon I4aragzment s112.020 £35.58% Hik §14E.00%
CONEILCDAN SUppe = SIEATT 0 TIESTT
Road ManiEnarcs $37.776 ST1208 50) $1DE 382
Crhar Lser Costs ifraam Other Ussr shast 31048 5Ed% !T.E?E' 35,405
[ CrharT | 5
Subtotal "F" $150.944 $124,266 37‘556! $282,867
Subtotal Operational & Maintenance Costs Labor ™ | Equipment® | Materials Total
Subtotal A through £ $2 624,440 $4,620,212 $407,375 $4,663 909
et Qperancs suppled costs - adallicns! dasurentalicn required
Indirect Costs nclode?
1. Ergheenng, Detign anc Congtruclion (E04CI Fan 71
2. Contngeey (81
3. irgUIsres i85 20 %7]
X Derforrancs Eond (18}
. CONLraoe Proli (11
. Contract Adimbisiraton (125
7. GovemIRnTINArEe: ot {10)
Subtotal Add-On Costs $1,752,2581
Tota indires: Co5is a5 % of Dract Cost %
GRAND TOTAL [ $6.422,200
Administrative Cost Rates (%)
Cost Ranges for Indirect Cost Percentages
w= <= = >
1. Eraneerng. Desigh a0 COTETUCTCn [SO8GCT P (7] $150,000 mﬁﬁ' Fo5. 000,000 S Fian
Waratle A3l Bt A% 4% 0%
E=3 o= = e
Z_CoNtngency (£ $500,000] ¥5,000.00C 550000000 $50.000.030 TmE P
\aratle Rala 18%]| &4 g% 4N [E)
3 Ingunnce (21 1 Sh|oas0r 208t
4 Scnaiid] 3 Coc|otthe CANM coats § OBM coste 3¢ -$100.000
£ Contrasior Profit {11} 10% ol the QM co3is
§, CoNtrad AAMNSTaten i12) §1.050.000 s:s_ma,cuil §2£,300,000
Varatiz B 0% EL €%
7. BLA Indrect Cosle 2 1% [of coniract aaminisiratian

RECLAMATION COST ESFIMATION SUMMARY SHEET FOOTMOTES
1, Fedzral conatrustion enlrasis require Davks-B3c0n wage rales for eonlracis ower £2,000. \Wags ral2 2slimales may ncude base ray, payral .0acnyg,

. The raelamaton aast seTmae must Incude Ihe estimated plugging oost of & least ona drd e Tor 2320 active ol g In (12 pojecl area. Waeae Iha
. WSCRIane0Ls RemMs £NCUH D2 ARMIZEd O AELGTRanying wickehzels,

[T B R S 5]

— e W

1
%
3 BLM'S Indrect cost 1z ls 21% of ELA's Contranl agminisiraton ooste.

FiUH rarnagamsan: ehodd ba cakxiatad oriy whan minaml processing atiiviiRe are inolved. FILK Managamars repeeseais she cogle of mantanng proper

. Handing of nazardous materiai Meludss The cost of denaniaminatng, reutralzing. deposing, reatng andior isaialing | h3zardaus maleras ugsd, produces,
. ANy millgaten measurss fequred I the San of Opemlicns must te Incudad (n he re
. Enginesring, 625N and consirictan [ESS.S Dhans are XEn A20ss3any 1o powide 1853
. ATAringency gt K ncluded 11 e r2clamaton sast SSEMEION 10 GOVEl LTDaessen cost 2lements. Clsude fre contngency sl 3e 3 persenlage of ihz

. Irsuranse arzrums sre salouated at 1.5% of the 1ol labar cosfe. Enter ha premium amounl 7 I33HEy RsUrancs 1€ 427 holuded In the Remtzad Lrk coste

0. Federa conetracton conirasts excerdng $50C,00 requlre 2040 3 par'omiance and a payment bond |MIler Act, 43 USC 2706t seq. . Each tord fremiin le
1. For Faoaral constuction contratss, use (0% of estimated Q&M cosl forthe conlraciors (o

araiin cost esimate. MEGEIE May glud? Me3sutes 10 avds,
0 M Teckamabion needed b soniract for the reguled wok. To

Ta sgilnate the contrazl agmhislrabion cost, U2 € Lo 19% of tha ogeraianal ang anlkenangs (O3M) o, Calewate the conlradt adrinisiration cost 36 3

68 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Exhibit I: NDEP surety bond letter (2014)

STATE OF NEVADA ..o

Depnr!mfz_ljl__qf Conservation & Natural Resources fov M Deozdoff PE Disecine B
DIVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION Cokers Lnpps M0, Adminstesion
DECISION

April 17, 2014

Principal: Comstock Mining 1.1 Certified Mail Receipt: 9171 9690 0935 0037 8244 47
Anp: Rachel Yeldenman
PO Box 1118
1200 American Flat Ruad Reclamation Permit. (96
Virginin City, NV 89110

Surety Lexan Insurance Company Surety Bond: 1079871
Attn: Jackic Koestel
FHO002 Shelbys ilte Road, Suite 100 Bond Amount: $6.5317.061.00

| ouisvidle, KY 10223

Reinsuring

Company: Bond Sateenard Inswanee Compan
Atin: Saadra Fusinett
10602 Shelby ville Road. Suite 100
Louisville, KY 40223

Surety Bond KHider and Reinsuranee Agrecment Acceplince

The Nevuda Division of Environmemal Protection (Division) holds Surety ond 1079R71 issued by
Lexon Insurance Company on behalf of Comstock Mining 1.1.C as the reclamation bond for the Lucerne
Project, Reclamation Permit 0196, On April 8, 2044, the Division received a General Pugpose Rider to
Surety Bond H3T9871 mcreasing the bond amount from $3,200.000.00 1o $6.347,963 00 According to
the centitication by U.S. Department of the Treasury. the current underwriting fimition of [exon
tsurance Company is $4.397.000.00  Becaose the amount ol the surety bond eaceeds the correm
underwriting imitation, Lexon [nsurance Company has providad reinsurance for the bond.

[exon nsurance Company has exeeuted a Reinsurance Agreement with Bond Safeguard [nsurance
Company in e amount of $1,95¢,963.00 (o reinsure and counter-secure the excess tond amount wiitien
by Lexon Insurance Company,  The Reinsurance Agreement was received on April 142008 The
purpose of this agreement is to indemnily the Division against loss nmder the bond for any sume up 1o
$1.930,963.00 which may be owing and unpaid by Lexan Insurance Company under Surety Bond

1079871, ns stated i the Remsurunce Aurccment

The Surcty Bomd General Purpose Rider amd Reinsurance Agreement have been examined. tound
sitisfactory . and are accepted eNective April 11, 20014 Lhe bond will be retzained by the Division until all
terms and conditions of the reclamation permit have been fullilled and the Division is satisficd that there
is ne outstanding liability on the bond or satistactory replacement bond coverge s turnished amd
accepted by this ollice

z PUBMRR:Reclaim Projects LucerneBonding 20 404 jbLucerneSureryRiderAcept
- 901 S Stewart Stree, Suite 4001 » Carson City. Nevada 89701 o R 775.687.4670 » £ 775 687 5856 o ndepnvigov ' X

69 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
775.847.1144

Comstock Mining, Inc.

Page !
Iivwene Sttt Rider Avedptanse

Aprd A7 08

I nccordanee wath the terms of the surety oerd contract. shootd the Surety eleat 1o cancel ths bond. the
Surety agrees to give the Principal and the Division mnetiy (96) days weaien natice by certificd wail,
Felurn teceipt equested. at e respective addiosses stated hereins The Surety furtler agrees that the
band remains in 1l foree and erffect as 10 all arcas within the reckimation permit distinbed prior Lo the
effective date of The cancellation. unless and until the Pringipal tiles a replacement reciamation bond il

seeh is acceprad by the Division,

Authorzed Oicer /z‘/

Bouce Holmgren, 16 Cluer
HBurcau ol Minmyg Regulation and Reelanmation

(89 Dty
Remsurrag Company
edd Process, Rechonmition Brimel Pesmis Writer
Raganuson Bl
Tannd il

70 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4

Comstock Mining, Inc. Storey County Planning

775.847.1144

Exhbit J: Existing SUP Conditions (SUP No. 200-222-A-3) to be amended (“existing SUP”)

' Storey Lounty
Planning Commigsion ,

Bret Tyler., Chairman
Larry Praler. Vice Chairman

Virgll Bucchianeri ~ John Herrington ~ Laura Kekule ~ Pamela Smith ~ Doug Walling
- bR e - — ————— i _

Sune 9, 2013

Comstock Mining, LLC
PO Box 1118
Virginia City, NV 89440

Ke: Special Use Permit Amendment 2000-222-A-3

Dxar Appiicants:

Ou Jutie 20. 2013, the Storey County Plinuing Comunission hennd your application request fur o Special Use Permit Amendment

on APN 2000-222-A-3 located a1 1200 American Flat Road, American Flak, NV to expand tand area and modity uses allowed at

existing vre processing facility in Amencan Flat. The amendment is limited to progossing und its ancillory uses; it will not canse

material changes to mineral explogation or mining allowedl under the existing SUP. The Planning Commission recommended

approval will the Tollowiing condition:

A, General Conditions: The conditions of approval i this Section apply to alt uses under this speciul use permit

1. Special uses, Special e Permit (“SUP™ No. 2000-222-A-3 is for the purpese of mumesral exploration, mining, and

processing This SUP shall be psed pursiiant o the approval of the Board of Storsy County Comumssioners with
recommendation by the planning commiision on property located within the boundaries of this SUP shown in
incorporated Attachment A and Attuchment B. Processing is limited 1o land withis the boundaries shown i Attachment
13, beitg all that certain puscel sitnatel) within all of the SE "2 of the SW ¥ and portions of Govemment Lot T, Government
Lot § and Government Lot 12 of Scction 6, Township 16 North, Runge 21 Fast, MUDB. & M., Storey County. Nevada,
beine Parcel 3 as shown and so designated on Merger and Re-sublivision Parcel Mup, File Moo 10315 n the Official
Recorders of Storey County. Nevads, All operations under (his SUP must comply with the cequirements herein and federal,
state, und county regulations, lssuanue of this SUP does not convey property nghis of any sort of Divy exclunive privilege:
nor does it aushorize any injury (o persons o Property, BRy Invason of viher private property rights, o any infrmgement ot
state or local s or regulations.

2. Transfer of rights. This SUP will inure o the record owner(s) of the Subject Property and 10 the Permit Holder (Comstock
Mining, Inc.) and will run with the land. Any and all transfers of this SUP to other persons, agencies, comurations, or
entisies must e wdvised in writing by Certitied Mail to the Community Devetopment Department at st K days prior o
assipnee taking over the project. The new owners‘managers must sign and accept all conditions and requirements of this
sur

 {ndemnification and insurance. The Permit Holder wariants that the fiture use of latd will conform to federul, state, and
county requirements; further, the Permit Holder warmnts that continued and future use of the Tand shall so conform. The
Permit Holder and property owner{s) agree to hold Storey County, its afficers. and representatives harmiess from the costs
and responsibilities assochated with amy danyage or liability, and anyall other clainis now existing or which may oceur as o
result of this SUP, The Permit Holder must mamtain lability insurunie in the mininum amount of 3,000,000 (five million
dotlars) tor gl aspects of the operations under this SUP. The insurance policy must inclwde urbrella hinhility coveraee for
cnvironmental events'disasters in the minimum amounnt of §7.000,000 (seven million dollars), Writeh prowt of cantinued
coverage must be provided to Storey County Community Development prior secnring rights o this SUR.

4. Site supervision, Sile and siafl supcrvision must comply with Mine Salety and Meakth Administration (MSHA)
requitetients. Suparvisors must have koow tedge of and immediate access 1o firc suppression devices, Finst-Atd hits, and
tocked gates. While on the premises. the ON-Site SUPLIVISONE) INUSE PASIESS i cellular telephone with adequate signal o setul
and receive sipnals 1o and from Storey County Emetgency Serviees directconnect 775-847-0030. All statl using cellulas

“In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of Agriculture policy. this institution Is prohibited from
discriminating on the basis of raca, color, national origin, sox, religian, age disability (Not all prohibited bases apply to all
programa.} To file 3 complaint of diserimination write to USDA, Director, Office of Chvil Rights, 1400 Indopendunce Avenue,
S.W., Washington, D.C, 20250-9410 or call (800) 785.3272 {volce) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity
provider, employer, and lender."

1ot

710f 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4

Comstock Mining, Inc. Storey County Planning

775.847.1144

20000-222-A-3

phones must be directed by the Permit Holder o hisher designed Lo dial Storey County tmergency Scrvices Direct-
Conneet {775) 847-0050 (in lieu of 9-1-1) in vasc ol emergency. Emergency 9-1-1 still is appropriate from lami-line
telepliones.

N

Environmental controls. The Penmit Holder must obtuin applicable Nevada [nvision of Enyironmiental Prowection
(UNDEPY) Al Dust Conteol, and Stormwater Permits and fumnish the Community Developiment Department coples of the
permits within 1 days of receipt for documentation purposes. Al non-vegetated surfaces nusst be appropriately and
consistently treated 10 magale ugitive dust and sand Heut Manngement Practices (HMPs) must be implemented ts
appropriate throughout the entire premises und egress points. No work may comnence until there is comphanee with NDEP
and other federal, state, and county regulations. Tregs, shruhs. and other vegstation and ground sur{aces must be preserved
(o the extent feasible. Trees with munks of 67 of more must be repliced with pew trees of similar specics replacement
during rechumation phases is appropriatel. Fhe site must comply with NRS 555,150 for preventing non-native plant specics
designated 85 noxious 45 provided therein. Noxious weed species include but are nol limited 10 Talt Whitetop (perennial
pepperweed), Houry Cress, Russian Thistle, Dalmatiun ToadNax, Scotch Thiste, ete.

6. Carson River Mercury Superfund Site (TCRMSST). By accepting SUP No, 2000-222-A-3 the Permit Holder
acknowlidges thut portions of the Subject Property miy be within of apphicable (o the CRMSS. Properly managing
disturbagices of existing and former mine and mill sites, mill tilings, mine waste, mine miterial, and oflier arcas that are
found (o contain Contuminant of Concern (CoC’s) as ipplhicable (0 the CRMSS will be the sole responsibility of the Permil
Holder us communicated theretod by the NDEP Bureau ol Coretive Actions, Handling, redisiributing or reprocessing Cod?
impacted materials by the Permil Holder shall be completed in aceordance with the NDEP Buresu of Cotrective Actions.

7. Sales tnx reporting, All material aod equipment purchased for the project must as possible be received in Storey Counly
and the vaiue repurted ax “County-of-Delivery™ on the Nevada Department of Tusalion Form TPI-02.01 “Combined Sakes
and Use Tax Retum™ The Permit Holder must alse repont Ihe value for all materials and cquipment {personal and rented)
“used” on this project gs “Use Tax™ on TPI-02.0% or TPLLO2.G2.

% Operations plan. Phe Permit Holder must submit & Plan of Operations 1o Wic Storey Connty Fire Protection District ¢ Fie
Disreier™) amid the Community Development and Emecgency Mupagement Departments for rev lew and approval. Al o
minimunt, the elements of the plan must inchide disaster matigement, Emergency Mediel Services {EMS) and Firsi-Aid
response. fransportation, surety bonding and reclamation. and crivironmental protection. Specific iems to be included i the
plan are as follows. The follusing list is not exhaustivas the Fine Disinet and County vy jnpase addhitional ceguirements
that itre necessary o meet The purpose and intent of these regulations and other federal, state, and county sepulations,
Reguirements of State and federal apencies which fulfill the tollowing may suflice when documentation thereol is
submitted) to e Distriet and Comntunity Development Deparment for final review wid approval.

« Basic company, awner. sile, und emergency contact informanon

v Plot plan (detmiled shetch drawings) of the prewmises. including phasing

o Site cvacuation and emergency procedure

o Emergeney contact procedures. including for the NDEP. Dispatch 9-1-1, and Storey County FEmergency Services Direct
Contievt (775.847.0950%

o Huzardous materials management plan

«  Wildland firc prevention and suppression

¢ “Hot work™ permilting

« On-site water for wildland lire prevention and suppression

e Access, circulation, and staging. including for emergenicy and non-emergency vehicles (plan must include maps. acriul
imugery, and othier nucessary visuils)

o Documenting and reporting of emergency situations

Post disaster minagement. cleaoup, und material disposal

Pust-disaster damage reporting for teatment of historie sthictures and properties

Site reclumation plan with surety bond and estimated timeline, including phasing

Documenting and reparting of ND¥P and other environgiental permils and nouces

Noxtous weed abatement

o Stonmwaler management, air and water quality, noxious weed abatement. and BMPs

s 4 @ & O

9 Fire suppression. The Permit Holder must maintain fire extinguishers throughout the premises o the salisfaction of the
Fire Distict, Fach device must be identified by Targe and brightly cotared iy, redl and white) identification which includes
the words “FIRE EXTINGUISHER”. Additionally, the Permi 1lolder will be hild responsible for assunng that all vehicles
il heavy cyuipment (e.g. travtors and othier muobile equipment) are equipped with a § pound minimuin ABC rated fire
extinguisher “Hot Work™ tiay only take place as perntittesd by the Fire Districy,

10. Roadway approaches and drainage. Egress points abutirng State Route 342 must comply with the requirements ot the
Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT). Approaches to paved county right-of-way must be sufficien W prevent
mud and debris tracking from the site anto the public roadway, Any mud ot debris tracked anty the county roadway must be

2of6

72 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4

Comstock Mining, Inc. Storey County Planning

775.847.1144

2000-222-A-3

removed by the Fermit Holder immediately as llowable by the NDEF and the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)
regulations. Mud, xund, and debris mst ol e allowed 10 adversely impact existing drainage systems,

. Lighting (non-cxcopt) and noise. SCC Chapter 8.02 ("Dark Skies™) limits outdoor lighting, that miy impact adjacent land
uses, Exemptions for “temporany lighting”™ tn the Code (which normally spply to such sctivities as road constructiun, and
oy appear © apply to mining and processing operntions) will not apply 1o operations under this SUP. All operations,
buildings, and equipment will be yequired to comply with the strictest regulations under the Cexle (shield lighting) to ensure
minimal impacts W neighlbars, Noise emissions shall comply with SCC Chapter 8.04 und ather applicable regulations.

12. Reclamation ond surely bonding. A surcty bund for reclamation is reguired under this SUP. The amount of surety shall be

determined as follows:

a Mining ond exploration, A surcty bond required by 2 federal or state agency (eg. BLM and NDEP) oversecing
exploration and mining operations will fulfill this requirement when proof the NDEP/BLAM dpproved reclamation plan
and required surety is submitted to the Community Development Depanmint within 30 day ot approval,

b. Procexsing. This SUP requircs a surety tond suiticient in amount for complete reclamtion of land where crushing.
processing, beneficiation, and ugulomerstion {¢.g. heap leach pads), and ancillary uses (e ponds, storage tanks.
AMerrill Crowe and other structires, Conveynnce systeins, staging areas, and surlace disturbances reluted thereto) oconr
ar which have oceurred at Americin Flat (APN 004-331-36 chown in Attachment B herein), us allowable by the NDEP
and other upplicable federal and state regulatory agencics and Jaws The amount of reclamation surety bond shall be
that deteimined appropriste by u lederal ur state agancy (.4 HI M of NDEP), OR, an smsount determined approprime
by & qualificd licensed engincerienvironmenial  MATKLCT, whichever is the greater amowunt. The licensed
engineer’environmamal manager chosen shiall be a pecson or fiem which ls mutaslly agreed upun between the Permit
Holder and Storey County. The full cost of the licensed enginesr’environmential Cnginecs shall be bame by 1he Pernat
T{older.

13, Cultural resources discovery. Shoukd mny prefistoric of historic remuins/artifacts he discovered during developient o
excavation, work shall temporarily be halted ot the specific site and Storey County Community Development must be
natified in aeder to evsliate the site and, If deemed necessary, 0 record und photogruph the site in question. The periad of
temporary delay shall be Tunited o minnmum of two working days from the date of aotitication, unless it 15 a significant
find and 1t is deamed necessary to provide more ime 10 evaluate and protect historical remains o artifacts.

14 Compliance and show cause. Storey County may refer this SUP o \he Board ol County Commissioners for show-cause
hearing ur revocation bascd on any of the following reasons. The procedures for show-cause are pursuant to SCC Chapter
17.03 (Administrative Provisions).
e Failure or refusal of the Permit Holder to comply with any leams or conditions of this SUD.
e  Any misrepresentation made in the application for this SUP and amendments hereto.
Any sct or failure to act by the Permit Holder or its agents or employees divectly related w the SUP which would be
a violatian of federal, state, or county laws.
o Any net or failire o act by the Permil Holder or its agents of employees directly relating to the SUP that creates a
puhlic nuisance of is detrimental to the public health, safety, and welfarc.
o Failure to rewrn u signed copy of the notice of decision, 21 days from receipt ot said nolice.
o Further use uf 1 revoked SUP is a violntion of Tidle 17 (Zoning) and will be punishable as provided in that Title and
other County Codes.
B. Exploration and Mining. The conditions of approval in this Scction apply primarily tw explormion and mining under this
SUP. The listed requirements in this Section are not exhaustive: conditions stated elsewhere in this SUP may apply to this
Seetion. and. conditions stuted in this Section may apply (0 other Sevtions in this SUP,
i5. Mining Operations will be allowed for open pil mining year round. 7 days a week, 24 hours 2 duy.
16. Baploratory Drilling. For any exploratory drilling. areas will be reclaimed \he conelusion of the deill programs. Towl
suelace disturbance will be limitxd 1a less than one acre.

7. Use of explosives. Blasting and use of explosives shall comply with SCC Section 17.92.1 10 (Lse of Explosive Materials).

P

_ Traasportatien O, everburden. and other excavated materials may be transported throughout the land apphicable to this
special use permit and delivered from the permitted mining area to the processing site by any type of vi- and off-highway
vehicles. hanl trucks, tractors and heavy equipient, railiid, conveyur systems, and other on-site conveyance sysleas in
compliarce with the Nevada Departnent of Transportation (NDOT) and the Mine Satety and Health Adminisiration
(MSHA), as applicable. The perma holder is responsible 1o repair damages to any county owned rond, iility, or otker
infrastructure caused by aclivities associated with the uses nnder this special use parmit, The repairs must be completed 1o
the satisfaction of the county. The county reserves the right 1o restrict or profitbil the use of trucks and hieusy equipment on
any county-owned right-of-way.

Jofb

73 of 135



Staff Report ._.2000'222'A'4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

2000-272-A-3

19, Xignage. Legilie signage shall be placed ot entry paints of the premises near Seate Route 342 and at the processing site at
1200 American Flat Road during praject phases, The sign(s) must state the name o compaceyiorgani zition, its street address
{or descriptive location), conlact phone aumber(s), and other infurmation required by the Fire District, The signs must be at
least 2 foet by 3 feet in size. Appropriate signage must be instalted vn and aroussd the premises stating rules for entry and
circulation (e, po tespassing, mavel permilted only on designated pathways, ele.). Directional sighs must be placed at
intersectivns of public ways and mine haal roads, and other pleces along public ways te appropriaily dircet 1he public,
restdents. and other users in the arca,

. Crushing, Processing, and Beaeflclaton. The conditions of approval in this Scetion apply primarily e crushing,
processing, beneficiation, agglomerstion, und related activities under this SUR The listed requirements in this Section an
not exhaustive: conditions stated elsewhere in this SUP may apply to this Section. and, conditions stated in this Yection
may apply o other sections in tus SUP,

20, Processing. This SUP shiall allow penmitred crushing, processing, beneficiation, and agglonwration {including but nat
limiled to the developmene and operativn of cyanide processing heap leach pals), and ancilfary vses (e.g,, storage ponds,
storage tanks, Merill Crowe, conveyance systems, 16} 10 oteur at American Flat gt APN 1H14-331-36 {us shown in
Attachment B fierein) as aflowable by the NDEP and other applicable federal und state regulatory ageticies and laws.
Associated sctivities ay take place 2d-hours per day, seven duys pee week,

34 Distance te residences. At the lime ol this SUP approval, there exisis Lwo single-Tamily residences lacated approximntely
&00° (rom the Suhject Property baundary. Crishing, processing, and uses invilyving azardous matenals (e g cyanide) shall
cermain more than [ONE Teom exisling residences. Uses such as roads. equipment storage, principal and accessory
straclures, security and buffer areas, anciltiry uses, ind stoekpiling reclamation topseil may ke place anywhere within the
Subject Propaity, snchuding areas which are less dmn 10007 From residences, so oog as buillings confarm (e setback
requirements in SCC 1732041,

T2 Safety and secerity. Appropriate seeurity measures shall be « airtgined on tho premises to prevent unauthorized access to
hazardous chemnicabs and malerials, heap haeh s, ponds, equipment, buildings, related ypparatus, cte. Federsd und state
repulalions, at @ sxinimum, nust be in complianee. All permits required by the MDEP and Srate Fire Marshal's Gffice for
hazardous materials storage shall be supplied by the Permit Halder tu Camsruinity Developmens within 30 days of receipt.
All storage, mafaienance of hazardous asaterials, profective devices (s.2., lenving, gates, etc.), and site manitaeire (e, on-
site security, alarm systerns, etc.) shalf comply with Fire Pistrict, SherifTs Office, awud applicable state and federal agency
reguitements. Opan bydrmlogical features contining cyvunide and other hazardous substances must be treated appropristeiy
o prevent waldife access

23.Groundwaler monitoring, Moniaring wells must be installed a3 directed by the NDEP 1o monitor the heap leach process
and averall processing Gaciticy Tor pessible groundwater contamination. A well permir shall be obinined from Community
Ievelopment Depantment prior @ drilling. Monitoring meports and olher findings must by submitted to the Community
Develapment Department on a guarterly basis when aperations ae active during the first vear of operations, including fir
hiip leach pad expansions. 11 ae signs of leakage or other proundwaler contamination occur, MONILGring reports must be
submitied 1 the Community Development Department bi-annualty until i closwee of processing fncility.

24 Air monitering. Air cmissions, including dust and other airborne mataeinls, shall conform to NDEP air permi) limitations
Copies of annual 1eporls of envirormental quality, necessary 1o comply with the requirements of the permit(s) issucd by the
NDEP Burcau of Air Pollution Contrel, shall be submitted to the Comaunity Development Departeient withis 30 days of
receipt. [n the event thal theee is an air discharge in excess of the standards appeoved by the NDEP under consteuction
phase or epeatian phase permit(z). the Permit Holder shal! provide the Comtrunity Development Depariment & copy nf amy
notier within 29 hours of Permit loldoTs seceipt, 1 the Pennit Holder is 1i2quited by the NDEF to propace a report oR the
event. the Permit Halder shall submit 4 copy of the report to the Cuanls Commmunily Development at the same (me il is
cobeyitied 1o e NDEP_ There shull he nn abnoxious adors released into the air that are o nuisanee o abutting mroparfies.

25 Water rights reporting, The Permit [ubder stall provide prouf uf water rights 1o the Community Development Department
prior W ary appropriations of water.

26.8pil reporting. Any hydrocarbon or chemical spill of or esceeding 23 gallons or 3 cubic-yards shall be reporterd
unmediately o bmergeney Dispatch 9-1-1 and Stogey County Fmergency Services (TTA.847.0050). Additionally, e
incident must be immediately reported to the NDEE and te loval jurisdiction, including the Fire Diswict and the Cmergency
Mandgement and Community  Developient Depariments. The Permit Holder must comply with NDEP clean-up
requitements and provide the Fire District and the Emerzency Management and Conmenity Devetopment & copy of NDEP
completion pf remedintion immedtiely. Al hizadous inateriads incident clean-up and response casts will be bore by the

4ofb

74 0f 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning

Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

2000-222-A-3

Permit Holder as part of the issuance of this SUP. Incidents enceeding a standard Firsl-Alarmi fire will be billed 1o the
Permit Holder. 1t mutun! aid is warranled to suppress an incident, those costs will also be funded by the Permit Holder
D. Anciltary Operations — Support Buikdings and Ulilities:_The conditions of approval In this Section apply primarily o
uses nncillary 10 the principal uses under this SHP. The listed requircments n this Section are ot exhaustive; conditions stated
elsewhere in this SUP may apply to this Section. rnd, conditions stated n this section may apply 1o other sections in this SUP.

27. Temporary structures. Temporary shiclicrs and strucrures including. but not limited to, temporary facilities required by the
Mine Safety and Health Administration (MSHA), may be erected on the premises These structure(s} will be terporary and
must be removed inunediately following closure of the operations under this SUP Removal of thesy structures fhoin the site
must be included in the Permit Holder's reclunation plan (see Plan of Opcrations). A Centificatc of Historical and
Archilectural Appropriateness (rom the Comsteck Historic District must be submitted 10 Community Developntent prior lo
issuance of a Building Permit for temporary und permanent structures.

78 Seplie system. The Permit Holder may acquire a permit from the Comsnunity Development Director (or Building Official)
to install a septic system and leach-Neld capable of serving administrative oflices not accessible to a municipal sewerage
system. The seplic systems shall be removed and reclaimed by the Permit Holder as required by NRS at closure or removal
of associatud buildings.

79 Watchman's quarters. The Permit Holder (s sutharized to have an R.V. 1ype Irailer or nanufacturcd building to serve as
living quarters for onsite security (i watchman's quaners).

a A iemporary (six months) permit from the Community Development Department must be obtained tor this
watchman's quarters and the perimit must be rencwed cvery six months thereafier. These provisions may be procluded
by the requirements of the Comstack Historic District Said structures andor R.V. must be removed from the premises
within 30 days ol closure ol the aperation or when operations under this SUP ccase to operate for a period of 24
months ar longer.

On July 2, 2013, the Storey County Board of Commissioners gove final approval tor the Special Use Permit Amendment 2000-
222.A-3. 1€ you have any questions, please contact the Community Develapment Department, Planning Division at TT5-847-0066.

o~
. s \'.;///" ]
Sincercly,
-~ ’-,
& iy
Anstky Oshorne
Scaior Planner
SIATE of | % )
5SS
COUNTY of = == )
Onthis ' dayof | inthe yeur 20, . _ s st personally appeared bofore me

and proved tn me aa the basis af satisfactory evidence 1o be the p whose name is subseribed 1o this instrument. snd

acknowledge they executed it

Witness by my hand and official seal:

DONNA M. GIBONEY Notany 's Signulwe
NOTARY PUALIC
STATE OF NEVADA
4%, APPLNG. 53.1383.10
s Mt Aont Bxpiras Aug. 23, 2013

Sofe

75 0f 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

FO00-222-A-3

ACCEPTANCE:

e terms and conditions s this Contirmaticn of Special Use Permit Amendrment 72000-222-A-3 are aceepred by Comstack
Mining, LLC the property owner for which s permic is issied

Corrade Dc(jaspcrié} '  Dute
President. CLO

STATE ot Ve e SN ) [
VPSS

COUNTY of ) |

Onthy 7 day ol i) inthe vear 207 21 g e st personaliy appeared betor me

ol proved to me on e bisis of satisfactary evidenrce o be the pessoa(s) whose numes are sabseribed 1 this instnuend, amd

acknowledee they exerated it

Wilness by iy hand and olTicil sei!

DONNA M, GIBONEY A X
NOTARY PUBLIC Netary's Siznature
STATE OF NEVADA
Appl. No. 93-1083-10
My Appt Expres Aug. 23, 2013

—

76 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Exhbit K: Existing SUP conditions (SUP No. 2011-016) (“exploration SUP”)
Staff Report — 2011-016 9/2/2011

X1 RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:

The following recommended conditions are in accordance with the planning commission’s
recommendation for approval of SUP No. 2011-016 at 1ts August 18, 2011. hearing. All of the
following conditions shall be met to the satisfaction of Storey County Conununity Development
Department staff. unless otherwise noted:

1. This Special Use Permit (SUP) No. 2011-016 shall be for the puspose of conducting
mineral exploration in accordance with the limitations set forth hereby. This SUP shall
not be construed as a permit for mining activities. Additionally, all operations shall be m
accordance with federal Nevada State, and Storey County codes and regulations.
including the Mine Safety and Health Admimistration (MSHA) and Occupation Safety
and Health Administration (OSHA). when applicable. Issuance of this SUP does not
convey property rights of any sort or any exclusive privilege; nor does 1t authorize any
injury to persons or property, any invasion of other private rights. or any infringement of
state or local laws or regulations.

Requirements. The Permit Holder shall apply for all required pernuts and licenses,

including building and fire permits, for the project within twelve (12) months from the

date of final approval of SUP No. 2011-016, and continuously maintam the valdity of
those pemmits/licenses. or this approval shall be null and void. Additionally. the Permut

Holder shall maintain and furnish proof to Storey County of applicable valid federal and

Nevada State permits. This SUP shall remain valid until April 1. 2016. at which point

it shall expire.

3. Annual Compliance Review. At a regularly scheduled public meeting duning the month
of April or May of each year beginning in the year of 2012, the planmng commnussion
shall be provided a summary report demonstrating the extent to which the Permit Holder
has or has not complied with all conditions set forth in this SUP and all applicable federal
and Nevada State (i.e.. NDEP) requirements. The report shall disclose and provide valid
evidence of all known instances of non-compliance with said terms and regulations and
explain what measures, and to what degrees of success and expediency. were employed
by the Permit Holder to abate and achieve full conformity therewith. The Pemut Holder
shall be solely responsible for fumnishing to Storey County Community Development all
documents and reports related to this SUP from the applicable local, state, and federal
agencies within 30 days of receipt. Emergencies and reportable environmental disasters
shall be reported immediately in accordance with the applicable provisions of this SUP.

4. Transfer of Rights. This SUP shall inuse to the recard owner of the Subject Property and
to the Permit Applicant (Plum Mining Co. and Comstock Mimng, Inc.) and shall rus with
the land. Any/all transfess of SUP 2011-016 shall be advised in writing by Certified Mail
to Storey County Community Development Department, P.O. Box 526, Virginia City.
NV 89440 at least 90 days prior to assignee taking over operation of facility. The
operators of the facility mmst sign and accept all stipulations and requirements of SUP
2011-016.

5. Indemmification/Insurance. The Penmit Holder warrants that the future use of land will
conform to the requirements of Storey County. State of Nevada, and applicable federal
regulatory and legal requirements: further. the Permit Holder warrants that continued and

(S

Y2011

77 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Staff Report — 2011-016 9/2/2011

future use of the land shall so conform. The Permit Holder and property owner(s) agree to
hold Storey County, its officers. and representatives harmless from the costs assoctated
with any damage or liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur
as a result of this SUP. The Permut Holder shall mamtam satisfactory liability msurance
for all aspects of this operation under SUP No. 2011-016 for a mintmum amount of
$1.000.000.00 (one million dollars) and provide proof thereof to Storey County prior to
granting of this SUP.

6. Surety Bond No mineral exploration may take place on any land withour obtaining
necessary permitting from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP) for
private mining claims and the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) for federally owned
mining claims, whichever is apphcable. State and federal permitting requirements mclude
posting of a surety bond adequate in amount to reclaim all disturbed land in accordance
with the applicable Nevada State and/or federal regulatory agency.

7. Storm Water Management. The premises shall be mamtained for appropriate storm watet
drainage at all times. No storm water drainage caused by operations under this SUP shall
enter any public right-of-ways or adjacent private or public properties. Existing storm
water retention and conveyance systems shall remain undisturbed or replaced with
systems adequate to maintain existing conditions.

8  Storm Water Pollution Prevention. The Permit Holder shall submit to the NDEP a Storm
Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for surface disturbances of one acte or more.
The Plan will explain how waterways will be protected from storm water runoff and
sediment loading caused from surface disturbances. The Plan will specify how NDEP
Best Management Practices, e.g., silt fences, straw waddles, storm water retention basms,
etc. will be implemented throughout each project. Site inspections and compliance
monitoring will be conducted by the NDEP and the results of those reports will be
immediately submitted by the Permit Holder to Storey County Community Development.

9. Noxious Weed Abatement. In accordance with NRS 555.150. the Permit Holder shall be
responsible for abating the presence of non-native plant species declared and designated
as noxious as provided in NRS. 555.130. Noxsous weed species include but are not
limited to Tall Whitetop (perennial pepperweed). Hoary Cress, Russian Tlustle.
Dalmatian Toadflax, Scotch Thistle, etc.

10. Dust Control. The Permit Holder shall be responsible for ebtaining a NDEP Dust Control
Permit, when applicable, and for maintaining coutinuous and satisfactory dust control
throughout the exploration and development process including at all excavation sites and
vehicle staging areas, haul roads. and egress/ingress points.

11. Carson River Mercury Superfund Site (CRMSS). By accepting SUP No. 2011-016 the
Permit Holder acknowledges that portions of the mineral exploration area may be within
or applicable to the CRMSS. Properly managing disturbances of existing and former
mine and mill sites, mill tailings. mine waste, mine material. and other areas that are
found to contain Contaminant of Concern {CoC’s) as applicable to the CRMSS will be
the sole responsibility of the Pernut Holder as commumcated thereto by the NDEP
Bureau of Corrective Actions. Handling, redistributing or reprocessing CoC impacted
materials by the Permit Holder shall be completed in accordance with the NDEP. Prior to
disturbance of any surface within the CRMSS, the Permit Holder shall comply wath an

P2/20H1

78 0of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Staff Report — 2011-016 9/2/2011

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and/or NDEP approved Standard Operating
Proceduse for sampling and analyzing soils for possible CoC’s applicable to the CRMSS.
Official reports and results of each study shall be submitted to Storey County Community
Development prior to commencement of surface disturbances. Naturally occurring
nunerals and elements, such as mercury, arsenic. lead, etc., that are unrelated to the
CRMSS historic mining and milling actrvities will be managed under state and federal
mining and environmental rules and regulations that are unrelated to the Comprehensive
Envirommental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA).

12. Mud Tracking. All project access points from State Route 342 and/or any other Nevada
State or Storey County paved right-of-way shall be susfaced with at least 100 feet of
gravel in order to prevent dit and mud from entering the paved roadway. The
approachment improvement shall be completed to the satisfaction of Storey County,
Nevada Department of Transportation. and the NDEP, whichever 1s applicable.

13. Right-of-Way Limitations. Vehicle exceeding 10.000 Lbs. Gross Combination Vehicle
Weight (GCVW) shall be prohibited from travelling on the steep grades of SR. 342
berween American Flat Road and Toll Road, Gold Hill except under temporary
cireumstances not exceeding five business days for each 90 calendar day period where
heavy equipment may need to be transported to or from a site and when approval 1s
granted by the Nevada Department of Transportation or Public Works, whichever is
applicable. Vehicle travellimg on all public right-of-ways shall comply with maximum
weight limit standards and be licensed and insured. Approval from Storey Public Works
and County Community Development shall be necessary before any haulage or heavy
equipment vehicles travel upon county-owned roads. Heavy equipment including. but
limited to, haulage vehicles, drill rigs. excavators. etc., shall be prohubited from traveling
upon county-owned paved right-of-ways, unless no other feasible option is available. at
which instance the SUP Permit Holder shall work with Storey County in determining an
appropriate and feasible access route. Drilling and excavating shall be prolubited on state
and county owned right-of-way unless directly related to the improvement thereof and
with the approval of the Nevada Department of Transportation o Storey County Public
Work. whichever is applicable. The SUP Permit Holder shall be held financially
respansible for all damages to Nevada State and Storey County right-of-ways.

14, Access Routes. All off-highway vehicular travel routes shall be developed to the
satisfaction of Storey County Community Development and Fire Departments. The
established routes shall remain the primary travel ways for all emergency/fire vehucles,
equipment, and personnel. The Pernut Holder may develop and/or utilize other secondary
travel routes for non-emergency use with approval of Storey County. The primary
emergency access routes shall be kept clear of rocks and other hazardous obstacles. In
order to increase route visibility and reduce confusion for emergency personnel, roadside
markers shall be istalled every 100 feet along said primary access route. At each pomt
where said travel ways tum at or sharper than 90 degrees. directional sign indicating the
path by which a traveler will remain on this designated route shall be installed. Roadside
markers and directional signs shall be installed and constructed 1n a manner which will
withstand climatic conditions common to the area, including sun, snow. rain, and 100
MPH wind.

15. Grading & Excavation Permit. The SUP Permit Holder shall obtain a Grading and

79 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Excavation Permit for all access roads and drill pads over one acre in area with slopes
steeper than 3:1. Other grading and excavation shall be in accordance with the NDEP and
the applicable requirements set forth hereby.

16. Hours & Days of Operation. It is hereby recognized that estimated existing ambient
conditions may range between 20 to 90 decibels (A-weighted). Ambrent noise sources
include wind, rustling vegetation, domestic and wild animals, vehicular traffic from State
Route 342 and other roads, etc. At a minimum, Chapter 8.04 of the Storey County Code
will be administrated by Storey County. The Code places an 84 decibel {octave range
500-1800) limitation on noise at the property line, in the case applicable hereto the
“property line” 15 defined as the boundary line for SUP No. 2011-016. Additionally,
when it 1s determined by Storey County that additional noise abatement is needed, further
requirements, such as mstallation of sound absorbing structuges, earth-fill barriess. and
increased separation between machinery and residences, may be imposed on a case-by-
case basis. Days and hours of operations for mineral exploration activities within 1,000
feet of any occupied residence, including within Storey and Lyon Counties. will be
limited to Mondays through Fridays, excluding national and Nevada State holidays, from
7:00 am. to 7:00 pm In order to provide for extended exploration capacity m areas not
likely to impact residences, operations beyond 1.000 feet of residences may contmue
during said times on Saturdays, Sundays. and holidays. The provisions of SUP No. 2011-
016 do not override, nullify or affect SUP No. 2000-222-A-1 approved by the Board of
Storey County Commnissioners t 2004. The extended timeframe (24 hours7 days per
week) of operations under SUP No. 2000-222-A-1 shall only apply within boundaries set
forth by that SUP and not SUP No. 2011-016.

17. Hours and Days Waiver Provision. The weekend and holiday restrictions set forth in the
condition for Hours and Days of Operation may be waived when the affected property
owner(s) in Storey County (those located within 1,000 of said operations) submut to
Storey County Community Development a signed statement that mineral exploration in
accordance with this SUP may take place on weekends and/or holidays. The waiver shall
not extend the hours of operation limitations. The waiver shall be non-transferrable and
will become null and void inmediately at the affected property cwnen(s) written request
to Storey County Community Development.

18. Cautionary Signage. Signage shall be installed at each port of entry stating days and
hours of operation, the company’s name, site address, and 2:4-hour company management
emergency contact phone number(s). Waming signs indicating all potentially dangerous
condrtions shall be installed at each port of entry and around drill pads. sumps and other
potentially hazardous conditions. Cautionary signs shall be positioned peripheral to the
active drilling area to inform individuals entering the area to be safety conscious and
aware of potentially hazardous conditions. Appropriate signage indicating crossing truck
traffic (Le., “Truck Crossing”) shall be mstalled on the southbound and northbound lanes
of State Route 342 by and at the expense of the Permit Holder and to the satisfaction of
Storey County Public Works and/or the Nevada Department of Transportation, whichever
15 appheable.

19. Lighting. Chapter 8.02 of the Storey County Code (“Dark Skies™) limits outdoor lighting
that may impact adjacent land uses. Exemptions for “temporary hghting” in the Code
(which normally apply to such activities as road construction, and may appear to apply to

97212011

27 of 32

80 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

drill rig operations) shall not apply to operations uader SUP No. 2011-016. All
operations, buildings, and equipment will be required to comply with the strictest
regulations under the Code (shield lighting) to ensure mintmal impacts to neighbors.

20. Restrooms. The Pemut Holder shall provide properly maintained restroom facilities
(porta-potties) at each exploration site. The number of restroom facilities provided shall
be determined by the projected number of employees as recotmended by the Portable
Sanitation Association International (PSATD) (http:/Avww psai.org/about hmii). Restrooms
shall be equipped with properly maintained alcohol-based gel hand sanitizer dispensers.

21. Historical Natural Landmark Protection. As communicated with planning officials
Lyon County, location of “Devil’s Gate™ historical natural landmark, Storey County
strongly opposes any surface impacts to said landmark or its immediate surrounding
environment. In remaining with the regulatory jusisdiction of Storey County. SUP No.
2011-016 prohibits any surface disturbances within 500 feet of Devil's Gate in Storey
County. Surface disturbances within 1,000 feet of the landmark shall be fully reclammed
as pursuant to Condition #34 of this SUP. Underground activities which cause surface
disturbances within this area. such as land subsidence, shall also be prohibited.

72, Historical Structures Protection. Mineral exploration and related operations uader SUP
No. 2011-016 shall not cause any historical structure to be disturbed, altered. moved. or
demolished. Historical structures shall include occupied and unoccupied bualdings.
outbuildings, tanks, mine head-frames. and accessory structures, machinery, and other
appetencies which are 50 years of age or older. Removal and/or relocation of the
Keystone Mine head frame and ore box shall be exempt from the limitations of this
section when proof of a Certificate of Historical Appropriateness from the Comstock
Historic District Commussion has been submitted to Storey County Comumunity
Development.

23, Cemetery Protection. The Permut Holder for SUP No. 2011-016 shall not cause any
cemetery or structures therein, such as headstones, monuments, fences. enclosures, etc.,
to be disturbed. altered. moved. or destroyed. The terms of this condition shall be fulfilled
by comphance with the following limitations:

a. Activities and disturbances shall not take place within 300 feet of a cemetery
boundary as defined by NRS 452.0075 and as deternuned by the Comstock
Cemetery Foundation (CCF). These limitations shall not apply to general
vehicular and heavy equipment traffic taking place on the established county
roads and right-of-ways, including American Flat Road. These himitations also
shall not apply to mineral exploration activities approved by the CCF within the
established cemetery buffer area, but not withm any cemetery boundary or public
right-of-way. Written approval by the CCF shall be submitted to Storey County
Community Development prior to commencement of activities within the scope
of these regulations.

b. Activities and disturbances may be permutted between 300 and 500 feet
surrounding each cemetery boundary as described above when the SUP Permit
Holder initiates and maintains continuons communication and collaboration with
the CCF m protecting said cemetery resources. A surface vibration monitoring
program shall be developed and implemented as determimed by the CCF. The
implemented program will monitor surface vibrations at selected sttes to assess

12120711
28 of 32

81 0f 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

ALLUT NI L T L T Y el L1

potential vibrations from drilling and excavating operations, heavy machinery,
and vehicles. The monitoring prograni, wpon approval of the CCF, will be at the
expense and oversight of the CCF.

24. Cultural Resources Discovery. Should any prelustoric or historic remams/artifacts be
discovered during development or excavation, work shall temporarily be halted at the
specific site and the Storey County Comummity Development Department shall be
notified in order to evaluate the site and, if deemed necessary, to record and photograph
the site in question. The period of temporary delay shall be limited to a nuninwm of two
working days from the date of notification, nnless it is a significant find and it 15 deemed
necessary to provide more time to evaluate and protect historical remains or artifacts.

. Visitor/Tourism Element. In accordance with the Storey County Master Plan, the Pernut
Holder shall develop a pedestrian oriented area abutting State Route 342 at a safe and
appropriate location between the “Devil’s Gate” outcropping and American Flat Road.
Gold Hill. at which motorists may park and exit their vehicles and view information
abour the history and purpose of past and current mimng and muneral exploration.
Development of the information center shall commence no later than 90 days from final
approval of this SUP and be completed no later than 12 mouths thereof and be fo the
satisfaction of Storey County Community Development, Public Works, and, if applicable.
the Nevada Department of Transportation.

26. Sienage Informational. Up to three signs in connection with the Permit Holder (Business
License Holder) may be for commercial advertising snd related purposes. Three
additional signs that are non-commercial and serve to educate the public as stated m
“Visitor/Tourism Element” above shall be installed at the visitor information center to the
satisfaction of Storey County Community Development. The signs and their placement
shall alse be approved by the Comstock Historic District Commission as evident by
subnutted proof of a Certificate of Historical and Architechiral Appropnateness.

27. Excavation Limitations. Methods of mineral exploration shall be linuted to reverse
circulation, core drilling, shallow soil auger drilling. No trenching or test pit methods of
exploration shall be permitted. Bore holes shall be “plugged” m accordance with the
Nevada Administrative Codes (NAC) within 60 days of creation. At no time shall there
be more than 5 exploration activities taking place at one time outside of the boundanes of
SUP No. 2000-222-A-1. The Pernut Holder shall exercise due care in assuring that access
routes are the minimmm width needed to fulfill their purpose. Natural contours of the land
shall be followed where practicable to minimize unnecessary disturbances. Community
Development may require the operator to use existing roads where feasible to minimze
land disturbances. When commercial hauling is involved and the use of an existing road
is fequired, the authorized officer may require the operator to make appropriate
arrangements for use and maintenance.

28. Surface/Mineral Estate Disturbance. Mineral exploratien activities shall only take place
on properties owned and/or leased by the SUP Pernut Holder. At no time shall surface
disturbances. e.g., grading, equipment staging, and surface subsidence from subterranean
activity, take place on surface property not under the ownership or lease agreement of the
Permit Holder. An exception to this limitation may be made upon the expressed written
permission of the affected property owner(s). The written permission shall be subnutted
to Community Development before surface disturbances may commence.

9/2/2011

-2
LN

2% of 32

82 0f 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Staff Report — 2011-016 9/2/2011

29. Emergency & Site Management Plan. The Permit Holder shall subnut to Storey County a
comprehensive Emergency and Site Management Plan. The Plan will be reviewed for
appropriateness by Storey County Fire, Emergency Management, Community
Development, and Public Works Departments before operations may commence. The
Plan shall include at least the followimng detailed information:

a. Basic company, owner, site, and emergency contact mformation;

b. Plot plan {detailed sketch drawing) showing each exploration site area. access
roads. and vehicle and material staging/storage areas;

¢. Site evacuation. hazardous matertal response and confined space rescue training
in accordance with MSHA and OSHA requirements, when applicable;

d. Wild land fire prevention;

e. Emergency contact procedures, including for the NDEP, Dispatch 9-1-1, and
Storey County Emergency Services Direct Connect (775 847.0950);

f  Fite suppression, emergency vehicle access. circulation, and staging;

g Documenting and reporting;

L. Post disaster management. clean up and material disposal;

i Post-disaster damage reporting for treatment of historic structures and properties;
j. Schedule of reclamation that will follow opefations, weluding withun 5007 of
residences and the V&T Railroad/Railway corridor (also see 32, Reclamation);

k. NDEP Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan, when applicable; and
1. Other mformation requested by Storey County.

30. Hazardous Materials Fire Permit. Hazardous materials located on site shall only take
place when permitted through the Nevada State Fire Marshal's Office and reviewed by
Storey County Fire Department for final approval m order to assure appropriate
equipment to respond to any meident exists.

31. Fire Prevention and Responsibility. The Permit Holder shall obtain necessary review and
permitting from Storey County Fire Department for any welding and “hot work™. Care
shall be employed by the Permit Holder to assure that vehicles. drill rigs. and other
equipment are placed and managed appropriately to mitigate potential fires caused
thereby (see also “Emergency and Site Management Plan™). The Permit Holder shall be
fully responsible for all costs associated with wild land fires created by exploration andd
related activaties.

32. Emergency Telephone. Any persons located on the premises in comnection with the
project shall be made aware to dial Storey County Emergency Services Direct-Connect
775.847.0950 (in lieu of 9-11) when dialing for emergency service from cellular
telephone. Finergency 9-1-1 still applies to landiine telephones.

33. Spill Reporting. Any hydrocarbon or chemical spill of or exceeding 25 gallons or 3
cubic-yards shall be reported immediately to Emergency Dispatch 9-1-1 and Storey
County Emergency Services (775.847.0950). Additionally, the incident shall be
immediately reported to the NDEP and the local jurisdiction. mcluding Storey County
Fire, Emergency Management, and Community Development Departments. The Permut
Holder shall comply with NDEP clean-up requirements and provide Storey County a
copy of NDEP completion of remediation immediately. All hazardous materials mcident
clean-up and response costs shall be borne by the Permit Holder as part of the issuance of
this SUP. Incidents exceeding a standard first alarm fire will be billed to the Permit

9/2/2011

83 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Staff Report — 2011-016 9/2/2011

Holder. If mutual aid is warranted to suppress an incident, those costs shall also be
funded by the Permit Holder.

34. Reclamation. The required Emergency and Site Management Plan shall include the
following elements when surface disturbance takes place within 500 feet of a residential
structure or the Virgmia & Truckee Railroad/Railway corridor or within 1,000 feet of the
“Devil’s Gate” natural landmark. The Plan shall be updated peniodically, as needed, and
submitted to Storey County for approval at least 10 business days prior to
commencement of surface disturbances. “Closure” of each susface disturbance shall be
when the bore hole is plugged. Reasonable adjustments to the reclamation schedule may
be approved by Storey County Community Development under certain circumstances of
Force Majeure. The following elements shall be included uy the Plan and shall specify
details for each exploration site:

a. Estimated schedule of reclamation that will follow each surface disturbance,

b. Reclamation begmmning no later than 90 calendar days from “closure™ of each
surface disturbance area and associated land mmpacts;

¢. Reclamation being completed no later than 30 calendar days from the start of
reclamation;

d. Written notice of “closure” of each exploration site to be provided to Community
Development withm 24 hours thereof;

e. Explanation or illustrations indicating intent to reshape the lands disturbed and
affected by the exploration operation to its approximate onginal contours and
appearance;

f Plan for replacement of topsoil and vegetation using native species previously
occurring in or around the disturbed areas to provide a vegetative cover at least to
the point where natural succession is occurring. Photographic proof of pre-
existing conditions shall be subnutted to Commnwmpity Development. Re-
vegetation, mcluding seeding, re-seeding, and‘or planting shall take place 1n the
autumn season in the months of October or November and not dunng tmes of
extreme weather conditions such as snow. Adjustments to re-vegetation may be
made as necessitated by weather and other natural conditions;

g. Treatment of slopes created or affected by the exploration process; and

h. The post-operation monitoring and maintenance of reclaimed land. Appropriate
preparation and re-vegetation of the land may be suffictent.

35. Riparian Area Trees. Within 75 feet of the center-pomit of any waterway, removal or
disturbance of trees with trunks 6 inches or more in diameter or groves thereof shall be
prolibited. Storey County Community Development shall be notified if activities are

scheduled to take place near riparean area trees.

36. Utilities and Survey Monuments. The Permit Holder shall be responsible for knowing the
location of and for protecting all above and below-ground utlities, including electrical.
cable, communications, water, and sewer. A Geographic Information Systems (GIS)
aerial image with layer(s) illustrating the approximate location {within 10 feet) of the
water main serving Silver City shall be submitted to the Storey County Public Works
Director for approval and Community Development Department for filing prior to any
excavation. Workers conducting excavations, drilling. and other surface disturbances
shall have the GIS image in possession for reference at all times when such work takes

9/2/2011

84 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4
Comstock Mining, Inc.

Staff Report — 2011-016

Storey County Planning
775.847.1144

91212011

place within 100 feet of said water unlity. In accordance with NRS 455, the Pernut
Holder shall be responsible for calling and following the procedures for USA North One-
Call System before digging near said waterline. All other provisions under NRS 455 shall
also apply. No survey monument shall be moved or disturbed in any way. To the extent
practicable, all monwment witness corners, reference monuments, bearing trees and line
trees shall be protected against undue destruction, obliteration, or damage. If m the course
of operations any monuments, COMErs, Of ACCESSOTies are destroyed, obliterated. or
damaged, the Permit Holder shall immediately report the matter to the authorized officer.
The Permit Holder shall prescribe, in writing, the requirements for the restoration or re-
establishunent of all such monuments.

. Blasting Limitation. No blasting, othier than down-hole detonations for the purpose of

dislodging or mobilizing seized bore hole drilling equipment, shall take place m
association with this SUP. Storey County Emergency Dispatch (775.847.0950) shall be
notified by telephone 30 minutes prior to each occurrence of material detonation. The
Permit Holder shall obtain a blasting permit from Storey County Fire Department prior to
detonation.

7 e X "*_‘; J 3

N Gl e

s

A

i

ey

] » b

1 emrdach Mining lee,
Iy :wa—mvm.-
ey JFAR

o | T, l. A N ) R
- i - — S Sy
% B A ;B
s N o O Y Sore ey
Ly h :
i) It PR , Ly B reovae e |
HE ] - ]
(= ‘f_ Qe UM Lpw Huie
), o
N, [LERRE--L )

85 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4
Comstock Mining, Inc.

Exhibit L: SUP Application No. 2000-222-A-4 (“amended SUP” application)

VY ) ji{.
Storey County Planning Department
26 South “B” Street, P.O. Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440

Phone: (775) 847-1144  Fax: {775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

Development Application

Submit this completed applicalion and all attiachments along with the application fee (see page two for type of
application and fees) at least 30 days prior to the meeting you wish 1o have your requast schaduled. The applicaticn
will not be accepted unless complate, including attachments {applicant wilf be netified within 15 days if application is
nat acceptabla and what is still required). The application fee is non-refundable. Please make checks payable to
Storey County Planning Davelopment

Project Number: SUP 2000-222-A-3

Property Owner: Comstock Mining LLC, Camstock Mining Inc, Northern Comstock LLC

Ak lard oaviers F1ust be Fstad on (s applcatiza Type of print bagibey i Liack of bue nk,
Mailing Address:_1200 American Flat Road

Zip:__ 89440

City:__Gold Hill Stater NV

Telephone (Home} ( } Business (775 ) _B47-0272

Applicant _Comstock Mining LLC,

AYappleanls Tost be lsted an (g apphcalizn,

Mailing Address; _P.0. Box 1118 __

City:__Virginta City State NV Zip:__ 85440 .

Telephone (Home) ( ) _Business (_775)_B47-5272
miGold Hil [ [Virginia City [] VC Highlands [7] Highland Ranches [} Virginia Ranches
(1 acred (10 acres) (40 Bores)
Otdark Twain [JHafed Lockwood [ JPainted Rock CIrri [otwer
Project Address;__ 1200 American Flat Road, Gold Hill, NV 83440
Assessar's Parcel Numbers (APN).__see altached Table 1
Lot: Block: Acreage;

Tary

86 of 135

Storey County Planning
775.847.1144



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4
Comstock Mining, Inc.

Storey County Planning
775.847.1144

Application Type

Application Fee

? Appllcatlon Type

Amendment

[T Nalural Resources
Exploration and

| Registration

'[[] Parcel Map -
Record of Survey

[ ] Abandonment $200.00
[ | Condition nfa
Amendment
[[] Development | $1,000.00
Agreement {Requires a
Special Use Permit)
Land Division Map | $500.00 + $50.00 per
(40 acre minimum) lot
[ ] Master Plan Map $2,900.00

$65.00 per hour

$250.00 + 25.00 per ot

Amended Map

Application Fee
na

] Boundary Line
Adjustment

["] Extension of Time
Request (One Year
Extension Only)

$250.00 + 25.00 per lot

1'50% of Original Fee

| L] Planned Unit $500.00 + 1.00 per lot | [ ] Planned Unit
Development (PUD) - Development - Final
Tentative
[]"Special Use Permit | $250.00 [ *Special Use Permit
~ Mingr - Routing
[ T*Special Use Permit | $750.00 [W “Special Use Permit
— Major - Major Industrial

["] Subdivision Map -
Tentative

[] Variance -
Administrative

1] Wireless
Communication Facility

[] Zoning Map Change |

$500.00 + 1.00 per lot

nfa

§1.000.00

[] Subdivision Map -
Final

1] Cot Consolidation n/a
T [ Master Plan Text $800 00
Amendment I
[7] Street Name nfa
Request
["]Parcel Map Final | n/a o

$200.00 + 25.00 per lot

$45000

$2,600.00

$200.00 + 25.00 per lot

[ Variance $100.00
[] Wireless T
Communication
_| Facility, Modification
[] Zoning Text Change | nfa

Note: Additional fees to cover costs accrue by the county in association with the application, including
staff time and consultation with outside legal and professional council may be charged to the
applicant. No additional fees will be charged without expressed written permission by the applicant,

Applicants Initisls

*If you are applying for a Special Use Permit, please refer also to the Storey County Special Uss
Permit Definitions List when determining a minor, major, routine or major industrial permit,

2ulk

87 0of 135




Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

SUHTY LUUIELY LRYCIIPLIDHE SRRV

Detail Description/Justification of Project
Mttached additional pages as necessary
Comstock Miming, [LLC (Comstock) requests modifications o our Special Use Permit (SUP) 20002224
A3, These  modifications  are  described  in the  attached  lefter.
Jofy

88 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Storey County Development Application
Professional Consultant/Representative(s)

Name: Comstock binng LLC
Address: 120C American Flat Rd, s

City; Sold He State: W ~ Zip;ssedo
Phone: 775-847-6272 135 Fay: 775-847-711B Cell; 775-720-0112
Contact: Ren Laken Email; bxan@comstockmining.com

Other Person(s) to be Contacted

Narme: Congtock Mining L1.C

Address’ 1200 Amencan FRtRg.

City: Gora Hil ~ State: W Zip: 09440
Phone: 775.847-5272 x126 Fax: 775-547-7118 Cell: 775-682-8567
Contact; Fachel Yeiderman Email: yoldeman@comstockaining.corm

Applicant’s Affidavit; .

I ( O coT e Vex, DEC D . being duty sworn, depose and say that 1 am the applicant
[Pootec noingd | .

5f the described project and/or request, and all the statements and answers hersin cantained and the information herawith submitted are in

3l respects complete, frue and correcs to the best of my knowledge and belief, | understand thal ne assurance or guarantes san be given by

nembers of uT\'Smrey County Community Development Department stafi.

oy ! 53{'"" - "ﬁi’ﬁ/“!

-
= H 7
signature of Applicant C _‘") Date
3ubscribed and sworn {o before pr:\e this {(Notary stamp)
20—~ day of o Capid
; . P = Notary Pobiia. S1ate of Now
o ublic, State of New York
U ﬂ\'ffd stote S " No. 01PA6266768
Notary Public in ard for said sounty, Qualified In Bronx Gounty
A 1 Commission Explres July 16, 2018
o Mew Yok Chavndte eadd Bed o, NY Counpy
state
Property Owner's Affidavit:
( (WA L 2 [MTRT 1 C . . being duly swom, depose and say that 1 ar an owned* in

(Firadypams)
€ea of tha described proparly involved indlaia appiicallon, that | have knowledgs of, and agree 1o, the filing of this appiication, and that the
staternents and snswers herein contained snd the information herewith submitted are in all respects complate. trus and correct to tha besl
»f my knovdedge and belief, { understand that no assucance ¢ guerantee can be givan by members of the Siarey Couniy Community
evelopmént Depadment slals D (*A separate Affldavit musl be provided by ach property owner)
e e &

{ ;{ /&c?w 1:}

L f

signature of Property Owner ) Date
subscribed and sworn fo before me this eSS {Notary stamp)
24P day of __ App) , 204 YOOJIN PARKN Nk
= i Notary Public, State of New
Ueaited  Shabec ™ No. 01 PAG265760
= . fied In Bronx Coun
dolary Puhllyc in and for said county %Lfﬂlé%dligpigsn Suly 16, 2016
"\J{.UV VNVL\ ('tm(.l{)\" el ﬁ[@“ti " w &W\"l’r
itate: d

89 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Storey County Development Application
Additional Property Owners or Applicants

Prope!i_)\.Owner's or Applicant’s Affidavit:

v \
I, { oSty Uu. v LGS . being duly swomn, depose and say that | am an owner® in
{Printed ngma)
fee of the describad property involved irthis application, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filing of this application, and that the
swatements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in all raspects complete, true and comecl to the best
of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance of guarantae can be glven by members of the Storey County Community

Dnvolopmoﬂ\(bgpamnenl stafl

P (, ~.~ |"A soparate Affidavit must be provided by each pmmﬂy7norl

(e B — /]2% [y B
Signature of Properly Owrer - N Date L

“(Notary stamp)

Subscribed and swom lo bafore me Ihis o
gReen Rt sls |

S dayof __fyprl puvc?méu PAR:(N ‘
. Notary Public, State ol New York
United aares , New Yine No. 01PAG265768
Notary Public in and for said county and slate Qualifiag in Econx Gourty
Comminiuan Exoires iy 16,20 ‘{é
L PR el e M Db

PrOportlly Owner's or Arpllcan{'s Affidavit:

I, i}x it hee n_ loumsfock '\'js__-.t‘\;f.. [ 2~ . beng duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner” in

(Printed nama)
fee of the described properly involved In this application, that | have knowledge of, and apree to, the filing of this application, and that the
stalements and answers herein contalned and the Informabon herewith submitted are in all respects complete. true and correct to the best
of my knowiedge and belief. | understand that na assurance or guarantee can be given by members of the Slorey County PCepartment

staff S

; ) -, % {*A soparate Alfidavit must be provided by each prope winer)
(_ 2 Con 1):-.——-" ‘_/2_.’/!7
Signature of Property Owrier 3y Date il
Subscribed gnd swom o bofore me his ' - é}ﬂﬁ;y@;mﬁi '
d
— day of "—Mn'l———-—“- ' -—‘_ﬂ)‘u—— Notary ﬂubg‘i.rs\{am ol(r_\lgow York
0 AB20576

\] Ay ed SWS " Nf,w ‘Ibrl“— Om!i'--_-'lcl'r’?l.’m:.:('.'.!hr'w

Notary Public in and for said county and state. s Bxpves WLy 28
Hwatior (ol ficd i V] Cotatsy

Property Owner's or Applicant’s Affidavit:

i o = . being duly sworn. depase and say that | am an owner n
[Printod namay

fee of the destribad property involved in this application. thet ) have knowlodge of. and agree 1o, the filing of this application, and that the

slatemanis and answers herein contamnad and the informalion herewith submitted are in all reapects complele, true and corroct to the best

of my knowiedge and beliet { understand that no assurance or puarantee can be given by members of the Storey County Flanning
Depariment stafl

{*A separals Atildavit must be provided by each property owner}

Signature of Property Owner Date

Subscribed and swoin to before me this [ T {Notary stamp)
day of |

Notary Public in and for saig county and stale I

90 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Storey Cointy Developtmend Application

Property Ownar's Affidavit: ”DUDO Cﬁgmwf

1, sAnn \C\i')ﬁ‘l‘l | being duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner* in fee of the described

(Printed name}
property irvalved in this epplication, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this apgficalion, and that the

statements and anewars harein contalned and the information herewith submitted are in afl respects complete, lrue and
correct to ine best of my knowledge and belief, | undaistand that 0o assurance or guarantee can be given by members of

¢ ‘tﬁv; St County Plarging Department Staff,
ol e \Bﬁ VIJ 'w(/L-”J Date 5! [L!»l 1
{)‘ﬂunnlum of Apgleant 6 I l

State of Nevada,
County of Storay

, 7
Signed and sworn t¢ before me onm '«_J_::{M by,

opr! 1ONHH @s DRC Cffer A% a S o vt
' i /4 M My Appt. Expires Dec 18, 2015

A e bl

Nolory's Slgnaturs. I

LB, 5

WMy Commission Er‘ﬁ{ns

AMETA KUZWCKA-BERGE
Notery Public, State of Hevada

Property Owner's Affidavit:
| | baing duly swarn, depase and say that | am an owner® in lee of the desciibed

' {Prnied netie)
property involved in this applicetion, that { have keowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and thal the

_ stelements and answers herain contained and the informiation herewith suksmitted are In all respecls complete, thue and
correct to the best of my knowledge and balief, | understand hat no assuranca or guarantae can 06 given by members of

the Storey County Planning Department Staff

Date

Elgnatira of Applizant

Staie of Nevada,
County of Storay

Slgned and aworn {o before me on bry,

Notay's Signelure

WMy Commission Explres

*Each property owner must provide an Affidavit

Salg

91 of 135



Staff Repert — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Stacey County Develapment Applieation

Property Owner's Affidavit:

\(ARQhM 4 SALTW MmPEL. being duly swarn, depose and sy that | am an awner* in fee of the described
{Prinied nama}

property involved in this application, thel | have knowledge of. and sgree 10, the filing of Ihis application, and that the

slatements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submilled are in efl respecis complete, true and

corred! to the best of my knowledge snd belisf, | understand that no assurance or gusrantee can be grven by members of

the '-‘»1/0@9 County Pla(npjm Department Sfatt
e, )/uf/;/:;fzé?gna-m-- s vate JAY Lo 7 Lo 1Y

=7 Ginahae of Apphednt—

State of Nevada,
Counly of Slerey A=
Signed and sworn 10 before me on_ LS JL:{,- ’ =1 by,
. JESSICA GARCA
. ) - ) NOTARY PUBLC
L;:lt‘.;é_nn:t %!,C‘.j.'.’_,,‘it’:_:‘,,"_ﬂﬁ,f*_.- 4 (S STATE OF NEWADK
— N i Serlel) Wy Cormmesin Expres. 1622 4
- Joad C,-_? ) < Cortfetta Ny 12417714
- - A Pl P e S I A VLA p—

Hotary'y Signadlare

I
C a2zl zesie

Property Owner's Affidavit:

1, Dﬁﬂ 4. ShLT k/f'mmf-ﬂ_ , baing duly sworn, deposa and say that | am an owner” in fee of the deaciibed
(Piintad nanm)

praperty Involved In this application, thal | have knowledge of, and agres 1o, lhe filing of this application, 8nd that the

stalamants and answers harein contained and tha information herewith submilted are in alf respects complete, trua and

correct to the best of my knowledga and belief | understand that no assurence or guaranice can be given by members of

the Stprey County Planning Department Staff
' e R A Y Date /ZV?’ & r/';?o /‘r:’ -

State of Nevada,

County of Btoroy—-3 |

Sigried and sworn 1o before me onmé. é; /Y by,
SL02 62 WY SN "LedV iy

2 o : 1-€8EPL-20 0N "Ladt¥
L2y i SV i T AR A ael YAVAIN 40 ALVLS
s a8Nd AYVLON

NISY12 ITTVSOY

J
o 5 :
/Finw?a Sgnatuie
."rj oy 2 =i
Wy Camrelilon Ceples

*Each proporty owner must provide an Affidavit

Sal g

92 0f 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847 1144

Storey County Developmen Application

Property Owner's Affidavit:
| ity o e .55, being duly sworn, deposa and say that | am an owner” in fee of the described

' {PARG rame)
property involvad in this application, that | have knowladge of, and agree fo, the filling of this application, and that the

statements and answers herain contained and the infarmaltion herewith submitted are in all respects complets. true and
correcl ta the best of my knowledge and befief. | understand that re assurance or guarantee can ba given by members of
the Slgrey County Planning Department Staff

1

tk‘s&l 1 s 1-.!.l\; l'r‘:.':\{’—z‘v ey rstmade e S Date .;:H:/" ";t/jf‘)f {/'}/‘/

Signalure of Applicant

Stale of Nevada,
County of Storey

Signed and swarn to before me on ﬁiﬁ)’f/’!’fﬁi;&f“/ % by, PR =
Wy pr—— g : ANETA xnmmxme:ai )
FUGrY iezr /22 FAC = g = Netary Public, State of Mevads

LAVl LEE BIAEES # % E: *Appolrtment o, 12-8416-2 b
. - . ) Prie My Appt, Expirss Dac 18, 2015 |
AL 1 U7 AP E e

Netany's Signature. —— T )

LEC M, UV S

Wy Canmission Bxpres

Property OQwner's Affidavit:
f, . being duly sworn, depose and say thall am an owner” in fae of the descrived
[Printed name)
properly invelved in this application, 1hat | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the
siatements and answears herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in all respects complete. true and
correct o the besl of my knowledge and belief | understand thal no assurance of guaranteg can be given oy mambers of
the Storey County Planning Department Staff,

Date

Hignatuee of Applicant

State of Nevada,
County of Storey

Signad and sworh to tefare me on by,

Motary s Signalure

fly Commisaian Expires

*Each property owner must provide an Affidavit

93 0of 135



Staff Report ~ 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Storey County Development Application

Property Owner's Affldavit: (2 a,c £en” Poin (el bt

LRl q B/ _, being duly sworn. depose and say that [ am an owner” In fee of the described
{Prntad namre)

property nvolved in this application, that | have knowiedge of. and agree to, the filing of th:s application. and that the
slatements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitled are in all respects complete, true and
correct to the best of my knowledge and belief | understand that no assurance or guarantge can be given by members of
the-Slorey County Planning Department Staff

1;7;'1/(z12a‘:’.d/) f{i?_u-—;-c;ff/k/ - Date_ Qf_%‘ A f2( (/Y o

signature of Apalicant

State of Nevada.
County of Storey

Signed and sworn to before me on YA Y /4 ”,2/4’ Y oy

PANELS Broiiupis 77t BEANLUN H-X -

TN TSy

(it pe_-

MNelary's _)ugl'lﬂlulﬂ

D&C—- /@ Z (_L)/D

Iy Comnyssion Expires

Proporty Owner's Afﬂdavlt

: "3{4[_ _, being duly sworn, depose and say thal | am an owner® in fee of the described
(Pr‘nleo name)

property involved in this application. that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this appiicalion. and that the

statements and answers herein contained and the informatian herewith submitted are in all respects compiete. true and

correct o the besl of my knowledge and belief | understand that no assurance or guarantee can ba given by members of

the Slorey Counly Planning Departmenl Staft

7///-5///, y 4—:'“ e pate (21N

Signature of Applicant

State of Nevada,
County of Starey

Signed and sworn 1o before me on Ylind /:"7’,,;13(!/(/ by.

RS ) Al y o/ &8 ANETA KUZNICKA -
AYSSELL DA AN, { M, | T uMoxa pece

. _4 Appolniment No. 12-8415.2
MR My Appt. Explres Dz 16, 2015

gerhege. e

Hatary's Sgnature

D Mo, K15

My Commissian Expires

*Each property owner must provide an Affidavit

Saorg

94 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Storey County Development Applicalion

. = Lits
Propporly Dwner'?Afﬂdavll: |/ a2 T Mawade M A
£,

\’\ 1] 142 (O L) belng duly sworn, depose and say that | am af owner* in fee of the described
(Prirtek narma)
propadty involved in this application, that | have knowlsdge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the
slatements and answers herein contained and the informalion herewith submitled are in all respects complete, liue and
correct Lo the besl of my knowledge and beliel. | understand thal no asaurance af guarantee can be given by membars of
the Sﬁ»rey County Planning Department Staff,

Date Mey Wo, 2mi

Sqnatury of Applicant

State of Nevada,
Courty of Storey

Signed and swom ta before me on Mﬁﬂr | fg', 20 /Y vy
F[’I;‘,.;p (}5 e €
Mo Fpee

Notan'a S‘gmtutg b U

Sept 29, 2074

By Comavdalon Cxplies

MARY L. ROYCE
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEVADA

Property Owner's Affidavit:

I, . beng duly sworn, depose and say that | am an awner* in fea of the descrived
rinted pamea)

properly involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agrae (o, the filling of this application, and that the

statements and answers heraln contained and tha infarmaticn herewith submitted are in all respects complete, e and

comect to the best of my knowledge and belief, | understand that no assurance or guarantae can be given by mamhbers of

the Slorey County Planning Departiment Staff,

Dale

Signatiire of Applicait
State of Nevada,
County of Starey

Signed and sworn ta before ma on by,

Nctany's Sgnature

Wy Cormmissio Capltes

*Each property owner must provide an Affidavit

Saf

95 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Storey County Development Application

Property Owner's Aﬂ}davlt:

I A 7 ? _%QP) baing duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner® in fee of the aescribed
[Printad ndive) )

property involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agres to, the filling of this application, and that the

statements and answers haerein contained and the informalion herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true and

corract to the best of my knowdedge and bielief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of

the Stor *;C pgur y Fianning Departmgnt Staff.
/.M/.Z(%Z@}W% ‘8%{&25& Date S-/B1Y )

Slgraiure of Applcant £

State of Nevada.
County of Storgy

Signed and sworn ta before me on /23 % ";/xb{f/ by,

1 S S mmmmat
(AL PN THOBPSON (L ECH A ¥ LS et o ebres

i My Appt. Supires Oec 18, 2015

mé’c‘;yﬁ@__.-.-_- B

Notan®, Sanature

LEC 16, AW

Ny Camraizsion Fapiros

Property Owner's Affidavit:
| £y dASHED  CAE K belng duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner® in fee of the described

{[rinbzd name} i
property invoived in tis application, that | have knowledge of, and agres to. the filling af this application, and tha! the
staternents snd answers herein contained and the infarmation harewith submilted are in all respects complete, true and
correct to the hest of my knowledge and belief, | upderstand that no assurance or guarantes can be given by members of

tha Storey County Planning Department Staff.
s - Jars
ate. C/-.'.J/ 2 /'z;{-é// f/

(Rorehll R 4

Signaturo of Applhicant

Srtate of Newada,
County of Storey

Signed and sworn to bafore me on Z2J2% &7 ol oy,

ANETA KUZWCKA-DERGE
Notery Public, Btete of Myveda

Ban DAL Ky monD CXECH i 1 Appoimtmant . 12-8415-2
A FIARY — RO My Appt Expires Dec 10, 2015

/.2 - ; -
ﬁ%di’ CLFRA L~
Ll

Futorya Sgnelure B

DEC J, 0

My Commizalon Exgies

*Each property owner must provide an Affidavit

S5oi§

96 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Stovey Coumy Development Application

Property Owner's Affldavit:

LA S Do edeed g nrbeing duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner” in fes of the described
{Pritad name) !

property Invalved in ihis application, that | have knowledge of, and agres to, the fillng of this appiicaticn, and that the

statemenis and answers herein contained and the Information herewith submitted are in all respects complste, true and

correct to the bast of my knowdedgs and ballet. 1 uncerstand that ne assurarice or guaraniea can be given by members of

the Storey County Planning Department Staff,

N YT S Thea i o5, [/ //// 20,6

Signatue of Agplicant d

State of Nevada,
Colinty of Slerey 1G3 hOE.

Sigred and swain to bofors me on, /Hﬂi [ a0t T by,

DL € "f'_(lmetf

J’)/ Zfr-/uv /f t;{%ﬁ;.m LY

Notdy'e Signature

May Jo, 2015
Ay Commiasion Exgitas

MICHELL L. PRUITT |
Moty Public - State of Novada §
hpontrant Racorded In Wasrio Couity 3

Mo: 9225422 « Expltos Muy 18, 2015 ]

Property Owner's Affidavit:

3 , heing dity sworn, dapose and say that | am an ownar in fee of the described
{Printad narme}

propesty invaived in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the flliing of this application, and that the

statements and answers hersin contained and the infarmation: herawith submitted ara in ail respecis complele, true and

corect to the best of my knowledge and bellef. [ understand thal no assurarice or guarantea can he given by members of

the Storay Counly Plabning Department Staff.

Date e

Signahim of Applicant

Siate of Navada,
County of Storey

Signed ard swom {0 bafore me an by,

Notary's Signature

hhy Commission Expiros

*Each property owner must provide an Affidavit

.

Sofd

97 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Siorey County Development Application

Property Owner's Affidavit: Plem Midinvg

1 Cmt Whve D{C, hepd A1¢ . being duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner® in fee of the described
(Prinleq name)

property invaived in this application, that | have knowledge of. and agree to, the filling of this application, and ihat the

stataments and answers harsin contained and the infermation herewith submilted are in alt respects complets, true and

corract lo the best of my knowledge and belial. | undarstand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of

E%dmy County Planning npa@on! Staff,
- J‘“‘(Z./f) / jg(—’——( Date (’/}}“/L’g/t{'{//V
S ’

Signatue of Applicand =

—

Staie of Nevada,
Counly of Storey

Signed and swom to before me on & i?()??by P
. . s ]
7) P! - AMETA KUZNICKA-BERGE
lozrnp psafsrelSs { AR, oty Pubhc. St of Navade P
— § AR5 Appolntment Ho. 12-8415-2 B
d EEEEE My Appt. Explres Dec 16,2015 )

(AR f?fg/F_ N Bl L b

Nutul_y‘z S| ndluee —

eC B HersT

My Commission Explies

Property Owner's Affidavit:

L , being duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner® in fas of the described
{Prirtad nams;

property mvolved in this mpplication, that | have knowladge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the

staterments and answers herain contained and the infarmation herewlith submitted ana in all respects complete, true and

corract to the best of my knowledge and befief. 1 understand Lhat no assurance of guarantee can be given by mermbers of

the Storey County Planning Department Staff.

Date

Signaitiire of Applicar

State of Nevada,
County of Storey

Signed and swosn lp beforemeon_ by,

Molare's Slgnalure

My Comrmussian Expires

*Each property owner must provide an Affidavit

Saf R

98 of 135



‘uonesidde ay ym paimbel eq Aew s|eUSjEW PUE UOIELLICIUI [BUCKIRPY 910N

775.847.1144

Bnpaso.d UCHBPIOSUSS LO] SARASIULURY .

ey — —
X X X _ JBU JaLIdOlRaRa] Lp BIUUEd . [
! | ERREUE)

X X . X X X “aludoidsac] Jur peuueld _u_
X X X dey jecied . [
faaing jo ploday ~ dew [@ed | )
MIIADYH UOIEUSICSY pPUE
UOREIQ|dXT SBUUNGIINM JEIMEN

JUBPLBALY D), UB| J2tTR |

USILUpUEALY dBiy UB|o JSSEW |
HORRRIOEUOD 107

WL LU

230e Op) depy UBIsIMG pue
TRUO JOISUDE ] Jes \

SUQ) 1sarhay BuwI] JO UDIBUEIXST
WS asn) |Boads Sainbay)
wewasslby Jusludo@nsi
L2URSNIPY AU Alepunog
JUSWIPpUSLLY URRIPUOT)

dep papuatiy

JLRULLUOpURYY

Storey County Planning

o

l
|
|
1

X X x| x X

Rl! »
%
>
>

i

|
|
|
|
i

D010 O

»

SR S I o [l

Cl

*
x
=

E I A S A o

bd
k4

I A B S B I ol B RN

03] ) View] o o |

adi] uonesyddy

poaq - uondiosaq eda] | x| x

uejd 10ld | % | =
ETE Ty

ue|d J00|4
del.uah_lu!am"‘ wism] x| W | = |[=|x

poday) s|10g
woday aplL

wewpedag
BuiLiueid yns oo | x| <[ x| = | = | = | =|x|=| »=

~ UpNelou| BuogippyY
SIUBiY Ja1epn

voday DYEL|

%8I0 U0 JBLLO 4

Loday abeusln
ayo ui eleq g depy
Ig)Ap dew lewbug

ydisaay xey peg | >

UB WNGRMUIE|2DY

{21 % L1) dew poonpay | =]

eoijddy juawdoEaag | =] x| x| x| >

UORIMSMFIIONHINES (]

_
| |
SINIWIHINDIY IVLLIWGNS NOILYOITddyY LNIWLOI1IAIQ

U

sjualuaNnbay [Ewgng

wotgenildy juswide|asag wno Dy g

Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4

Comstock Mining, Inc.

99 of 135



o
£
£33
C i
o~
a3
20
c o~
3™~
3
> ‘uonyeoydde syl ym palinbal ag Aew sjeiiajew pue UOEULIONI [BUORIPPY &)ON
S
@ . = = e B ot 1
X | x | X _ X _ X | abueyn pea] Buez [
X _ X | X X X | X | X X | Bbuey D dew MCEQN (ml
. . uoEoyIpo /aced |
X | X X | X X X X X LogeaLINLILGY S8R | |
] “ ” e [ |
| x _ X | X X | X | X X | X | uogeo LNWIWEY $82jRIAN |
X ;X x1 x | x soueueA (1
. X B |_§ T X _ _ oy X SANRISILAUDY - SDuUBUEA, [
Tx | X _ x| x|x|x|x] x [x feuls - deyy uolsinpang |
X X [ x [ x T x|[x|x X | X [ x| x| x | x aaejus | - CE JOISINRANS | [
X _ X X X X 158nbay sWeN 19348 | |
. | | TESTRU] e
X X X | X !X X X —juLiag 980 [ENSdg L]
x | | | I x X | X X X X wley) - yusd asn Eoads [
XY I X = X | X | X X X | 8uinow - Ml asn enedg mp
X _ T x [ % | x | x % | X | Jouw-juwsdesn Eoeds ||
| == i — 1 i . ./ n 1
| - = | - T
gozlz|l #lz(elsl=|a 3| sl88lelzlzl 255 2\ |
BElc| F| 5|7 2|25 8| 238|882 |%| 2 8s|s
Ez2ld| 22|38 |2 |v (2| Z2cl2|d|g |2l |s
< s2olilg|z (212|312 (8| =g =zl |"> x| = g
< Z3zle| = 2 |8/ |8 |8 |2 | B25|8 (= & 8 Z 2d&) voneanddy
{ 33> g1 2 =3 o - 2. T 0% | g p g = =3
S | 8| = . B 5 251z 1% & 3 x|
N O | 23| @ =1 g | Ol= = o= =T
S £ | 2®i= . Ply = - = 2 |
5 25 | 5 i E |llg
¥ : |l | SRR G
e i & u = |2 | © |swuowannbay jepugng |
== L I A el N || L |
2% SINSW3¥INDAY TYLILIWENG NOILVYDITddyY LNIWH013A3Q
x5
%5
n o Hrrs nadeba s A a e Srimas Setoes

100 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

14,

15,

16

Slerey Cownly Developinant Application:
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS GUIDE

Development Application — You can get ah application from the Planning Department at the Storey County
Courthouse or online at StoreyCounty org.

Detailed Dascription/Justification — The description of your project and the reason for the project. Be as detailed
as possible and submit any information to help explain your project [photos, maps, etc.).

Paid Tax Receipt — This is @ receipt showing your property taxes are current or paid Ia full. A copy can be
obtained from the Clerk/Treasurer's office located on the 2™ floar in the Storey County Courthouse.

Piot Plen — A dlagram showing the locatlon of il buildings, well and septic (if any). This can ba cbtained from the
Building Depanment or Assessor's office ar neatly hand drawn by the applicant.

Reduced Map {11 x 17} = Applications with large maps musi supply one that can be scanned in for use in reports,
{Onginal Map Mytar - This map is done by & professionat surveyor.

Map & Data in CAD format on Disk — This map is done by a professional surveyor.

Yicinity Map — This map shows surrounding parcels to application parcel. A copy can be obtalned from the
assessor's offica located on he 1% floor in the Storsy County Courthouse.

Floor Plan — These ars building plans for a house (subdivision) and done by a builder,

. Legal Description ~ Deed ~ Done by a profesaional surveyor,

Thle Report — Done by 8 professianal company.

. Drainage Report — Done by a professional company.

. Soits Report - Done by a professional company,

Traffic Reporl — Done by a professional cornpany
Water Rights — You can obtain this from State Water Department.

Reclamation Plan — Done by & professional company,

2 oaaf %

101 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

A~
| = —
r— [’

[:’ﬂ MS’TU_E K | D -'__-'l-'_.; “___if E "I‘Ir' i I
MINING ”j MAY 22 2o ‘JH ;;I.!

Muay 13, 2014 { —— L

Austin Osborne

Storey County Plarming epurlment
26 South I3 Steeet

Virginia City, NV, 80440

Re: Reguest for Amendments (0 Special Use Permits 2000-222-A-3 and 2011-016
Dicar Mr. Qshorne,

Comslock Mining, [LC requests modifieations 1o Mining and Processing Special Use Permit
(SUP) 2000-222-A-3 and Lixploration SUP 2011016, These modificalions ure desceribed below.

Purpose

The proposed SUP amendmant moves the geographic boundaries of the SUP. allowing for
methodical expansion ol the operation, prinvarily east, where significant mineral discoveries
were identified during exploration drilling over the past few yeurs. Mining within the current
boundaries is maiuring and those mined areas are scheduled lor eventaal reclamation

Additionally, atier meaningful difigence and conversations witl you, we agrec thal it would be
beneficial to combine the Exploration SUP (2011-016) into the Mining and Processing SUP
(2000-222-A-1) g0 that there is only ene combined ST,

There are also some wording clarifications thut we reguest to be made to the existing SUP.

Description and Justification for Amendment of Mining and Exploration Boundaries

As noted above, the primary substantive SUP amendment is modification ol the geographic
houndaries ol e SUP mineru] exploration and imining wreas. Sinee the SUY was Tast amended,
Comstock has secured addiljonal private lands and ndning rights in southern Storey County and
completed additional engineering, assessments and feasibility studies within existing and new
lands, Comstock would ke w use its existing infrasiructure and methodically expand onio some
of its new land and mineral rights (o confinue its stable mining operativns within the disurict,
Accordingly, we request that the houndarics of the current SUP be changed to conform Lo the
attached maps.

Fhe current SUP mining boundary encompasses upproximately 165 acres. Within the new

boundary, Comstock propeses a methodical mine expansion sequence, tha s, we would nat be
mining the whale aea at once. Instead, we commit o actively mining a similar scope, no more
than 95 acres al onc thme. Mining and reclamation will accur contemporanesusly as shawn an

R0, BOX 1118 + 1200 AMERICAN FLAT ROAD « VIRGINIA CITY, Wy BIsACs

RAS IR PPIEA QAT L3P0 . CAOCIRER S (TR A4 7 STRT

102 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

the Reclamalion Schedule, provided in Attachment 4. Once this amount of disturbance is
reached, Comstock will conmmence contemporangously reclaiming and restoring any completed
mine areas. within a county approved reclamation plans, designed for post mining productive
uses and enjoyment, typically in better condition thai iU was in. Restorations should sirive to be
consistent with landscape features and the overall historic mining character, This reflects the
unigue hlend of madern, responsible mining thal Comstack is commitied foand # genuime
passion for the histeric mining disirict. This commitmen to arca distlurbance limits and
reclamation is not deseribed i SUPR 2000-222-A-3, Paragraph ALt bul would best be part of
Paragraph /.12 wihich is described in a seelion below.

I'he proposed SUP wenendment also moves the geographic boundanies for mincra! exploration,
where geofogical stractures have heen identifiod east of known resources, allowing for further
exploration investmaent and resouree expunsion. The houndary amendment positions Comslock
Mining for underyround mining in the ldvee,

The SUP bounddary has been madified around the processing facilities 1o accommodute continued
operation at oxisting, permitted rates af production. Mining and processing methods will cemain
the same.  To make these changes, there is no wording that needs 1 be amended; the SUP only
needs have the existing Allachment A freforred W in SUP paragraph A1) aud B {referred to in
SUP paragraph A.12.b and C.207 replaced with new maps showing the new mining, expiotation,
asd processing boundarics. Parenthetical statements referencing Attuchmenl B in A2 and
C.20 will need 1o be revised to include the Tollowing APNs: (04-331-08, 004-331-14, ROG-001-
22, ROO-0N2-45, (04-33 128, (M)4-33 127, and 004.331-22,

Description of and Justification for SUP Clarifications on Reclamation

natagraph: Thiv SUP alse allows fir reclamation of the exploration wmd mining lands, as the
Permit Holder volwntarily reclaims these kands, 'The purpose of adding this senlence is because
the Special Uises listed in the first sentenee does not inchude reclamatian. Comstock Mining,
LLC is voluntarily reclaiming land soon after the mining is completed, and resloring previously
disturbed and mined fands to niore natural conditions and cantours. This s another example of
hew Comstock Mining, LLC is demonstrating and csiablishing new standards for responsible
mining, The volunlary requirement is enforced by the various honds required in Section A Bl ol
the SEIP.

SUP 2000-222-A-3, Parngeaph A. 1 — Add the follawing sentence afler the frst sentence in this

A2 Afer the sentence *A surcty hond requived ... udd us second sentence, Keelaniion i
defined ay activivies consisting of backfifling, yoping, resceding, visual mitiguiion, earted yemuoved
of temporary niiving strrctures. Uhe purpose of this addition s 1o clarify expectalions of
reclamation.

A2 Add e following sentence 1o the end of 12.a0 In addition 1o meetinyg the sturte and
federal requivements. the Peratit Holdey will develop reclamation requirementy and funding for
reclamaion of surface mining disterbance. This sentunce is added to Turther demonstrate

COMSTOCK PAGE 2 OF 8

103 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Comstock Mining, L1 s c()mmitmcm 1 the (erritory, beyvond stale and Tedersl reguirements,
Afler that sentenee, add, /a liew of the reserved 194 rayalty for reclamation that (e company has
Junded in the past, the ¢ e ml:uum assacieted with satisfving wdiditional reclaniation
reguirements will be finauced by a private hond. The bond swill be funded for long-term
nbfipation, which is defined as activities occirring affer the curreat celendar year Reclamaiion
in the same calerdar vear is perjormed “confemporaneously to miging " aned thevefore funded
With carreni resonrces, Comslock Mining, LLC s reclamation concepts tor closure and
reclamation of existing surface naining arcas meet Storey County objectives tor the promotion of
towrism, The Reclamation Cost [Fstimate {RCE), which is provided in Attachment 5, was
completed W show the reclamadion liability for the Luceme Project. The principal assumption
fior the RCIE is that the final reclamation and closure will be initiated for curvently planned
distuthance areas and operating conditions for the J.zcerne Project’s operational life. The RCE
has been compiled and caleulated using State of Nevada's most recenl Standardiced Reclamation

Cost Estimate (SRCE) Madel, which is derived rom Version L4, Baild G117 from Nevads
Division of Eoviromnesta] Protection, Bureau of Mining Regulations and Reclamation (NDEP-
BMRR) and Durcau of Fand Management (BL6M), The SRCE utilives standardized reclpmation
calculation methods, data and proceduies 1o estimate the cost ol reclaiming amine site as i
third-party conlractar is performing the reclamation. This is the mosl conservative method ol
cost estimate possihle.

The cost estimate and summary was completed using Comstock Mining, 1.1.C's available
engineering designs and plans together will the 2003 Standard Cost Dala File Wersion 1,17,
which conlains appropriate geographical area specilic costs lor Tabor, equipment, operalion,
material and miscellancous unit rales or schodules,

Add he Tollowing: The current propused operation is for 95 rolling aeres of vetive miring and
45 acres of reclamaiion within the mining areq. The Perntit Holder will be comtemporanconsiy
yeclaiming completed niing areay so that the totnl disturbed area witl not exceed 140 acres, The
hand may he adircted anuuathy or or o more frequent husiy when proof of surely iy suehwiited (0
the Cammunity Development Department within 34 dayy from any change made (o the amount,
The proposed hond amount of $1.2 million will salisfy long-term reclamation activitics for this
area, while prlﬂilmdlk [y $300,000 ol the company’s current resonrees will be applicd towards
selarmation activitios in this calendar year.

o
&

Comstock Mining, LLC notes that we currently have bunds with the NDER for all the mining
arcas on private lands. The arcas that are currently under bord are shown in Mining Operions
Disturbanoe Aveas within Attachmoent 3.

A2b — Puta period after “Ihe amount of reclamation surety bond shall be that detenmined
appropriale by a federal o state agency (o, BLM or NDEP)” and remove everything after (his
starling with “OR..." “The purpose of removing Lhe mmalmh_r wi thig condition is to climinute a
reduncant SUP reguirement, The entire facilities deseribed carlier in A.12.B ure rey uired by
loderal and state kaw 1o be bonded. The NDEP is required to review the bond eslimate to

COM STOC K PAGE 2 OF 6

104 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

deteemine if it is reasonably sufficient 1o conduct all required reclamation (INAC 519A570) and
then the bond is periodically reviewed to consider inflation (NAC S19A.380). The bond estimate

ix based on third-parly reclamation of the fucililics: including a 36% multiplier for indjrect costs
assumed iF the Permit Holder did not satisfaciarily complete reclamation activities prior to

closing the sk,

Deseription of and Justifieation for SUP Wording Clarifications

The specific requests for wording clarifications to SUP 2000-222-A-3 arc fisted und described
below.

1: Change titke Trom “Txplocalion and Mining” to Definition Dritling and Mining as we
understand hal 4 new seetion will be added to the permit called “Drilling Mineral Pxploralion
Qperations” to meorporde SUP #2011-014,

B.16: Replace the title, “Exploratory Drilling” with Definition Drilling as this applies to
definition drilting. Pefinition deilling is perforned within current or Jikely near-future mine
areits and has a very small footprint, 1L is inpartant to differentiate between definition dritling
ard exploration drilling in this revised permil because the conditions from SUP #2011-916 are
being incarporated into this permit. Fxploration drilling can be considercd any drilling more
than 500 feet fram an existing mine. Replace both sentences with: Kack series of deflnition drill
prads shatl be collectiviely no more than I avre in surfaee distwbance fuxelnding vaeds), and
shall be reclaimed af the conclusion of defivition programs undess it is 1o become port of an
active niine area. This allows for one aeve rolling per definition. Reclamation iy defined ay
backfilling and recontouring (o the approxitate oviginal condition. The purpose of this
vequested change is (o clarily that cach definifion prograntis no more thun ope avre, bt that
there are multiple definition programs. Fach drill pad is approximately one-tenth of an acre, but
there are wbout 10 drill sites in each program.  Addittonally, some of the drilling takes place in
areas that are followed up by mining ur even within actively mined areas; therelore, reclamustion
nf these detlling arcas is not applicable.

-

B.18: Change the last sentence from: “The county reserves the rght 1o restrict or prohihit the use
of trucks and equipment on any county-owned right of way'™ ta The county reserves the right o
pestrict or prohibic the use of trucks and heavy equipment on any counly-ovened right-nfway i the
County Commissioners determine that the Permit Holder fas coused niavo idatie und irreversible
long-term damage ta the rouds, 'The reason for this requested clarification is boeanse the first
part of this paragraph allows use of the roads, but then with the current waording, the County can
revoke this at any time and for whatever or no reasan, The suggested wording clarifics that the
County can exercise this right only it there is justification for it,

C.20: Change fast sentenee oy “Ass
days per week™ o Zhese processing and associated activities may take place 2
seven deys per week, Vhe reason for this clange is to clarify that it means thal ALL processing
activities, direct and indirect, nol just the asseciated activities,

take vlace 24-lwurs perday, seven

I e

e TaEy
AT
'

F-honiry per dity,

COMSTOCK PAGE 4 OF &

105 0f 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

(.20: Remove the reference to the Amcrican Fiat parcel becnuse there are now several parcels
{including APN 004-33]-36, 004-331-08, 004-331-14, BOD-001-22, BOB-002-45, (4-331-28,
104-331-27, 00433 1-22) within the pmcessiug areit. We recommend that it just refer to
Altachment B3

(211 Delete the first sentence, “At the time of this SUP appraval, there existy two single-family
residences lovated approximately 6007 from the Subject Properly baundary.” The reason fer this
is thal one of the residences has been acquired by Comstock Mining, LLC and Is now company-
owned property, The sentence s also not needed, as the requirement that the activities hbe more
than 1,000 el fram exisling tesidences is made,

€21 Change the second sentence from “Crushing, processing, and uses invalving hazardous
malerials (c.g., eyanide) shall remain more than 1,000° trom existing residences”™ o Crnshing,
ProcEssing, (md ceetivities cmd usey imulving cvanide shall vemain more than 1,080° from
revidences existing af the time of this SUP approval. The reason for this is because the current
wording of “hazardous materinls” can mean even dicsel fuel which would then restrict the use of
diesel fuel {trucks): however, we are aware the intent of the County was the syanide activitics, so
we believe that the wording should be revised o clarily this.

Proposed Section D, Dritling Mineral Exploration Operations: Tnclude conditions of SUP 2611-
0.

Comstock Mining, LLC's Commitment to Compliance and Highly Responsible Mining

Comstoek Mintng, LLC has continued to operate in compliance with the terms and conditions of
fhe current SUP while at the same time mining responsibly, enhancing the community, amnd
contribuling to the local and regional econarmy. As we are mining aud processing on the
Comstock, in a hislaric distriel that we care shoul, we strive 10 nunimize inpact, footpring, und
disturbanee, while always innovating 1o enhunce ad improve the territary. Any minivg or
priwessing plan will visibly protect, preserve, restore, and celebrale the value of the hisloric
Comstock disuict,

Approval of this SUT is alse in accordunce with the County Muster Plan. The Ceanty has a
stated goal in e Masier Plan:

“Support the development of the county’s sienificant mineri! resources

while ersuring thal negalive impacts to the tourism based ccononty ol the

Comstoek Lode arca are minimieed.”

Sterev Cownty Mastor Plan, Fxecwtive Swnmacy, Uhaptes V1 and Ui, gy widde,

o 5 at 10
Comstock \1mzm,, LIE is responsibly developing the County™s mineril resourves, waking
siguificant ceonamic contributions o the county, while at the same e mitigating mpacts 1o

taurisny, the realdentiad community, and the enviromment.

COMSTOCK PAGE 5 OF 6

106 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Dbjective 5.2 of the above stated goal is: “Refrain from duplicating permit application
requircyents and fees which have been cstablished by state and federal agencies.” Thus, most of
the SUP conditions require thut Comstock Mining, LLC Follow state and federal law and have
the appropriate permits and oversight from state and federal agencies, However, Comstock
Mining, 1.L.C has gone beyond this goal in the past by retaiming a ene percent royalty o fund
improvement projects in the Counly, rehabilitate important historic relics from the Comstock
Era, and has been undergoing concurrent reclumalion to help restore conlemporary mined arcas
lo conditions as good as or better than before. Comstock Mining, LLC further solidifics this
commitment by commilting to a surety bond with Storey County as deseribed in this letter.

Comsiock Mining, 1.1 approciates Storey Counly’s aliention Lo this application for SUP
amendments. Please let us know il you have uny questions,

Sincerely,
Comstock Mining LLC

Rachel Yelderfhan

Director, Environmental & Permitting

Allachments:

1 - Development Application
2 — Tax Receipts

3- Figures

4 - Reclamation Schedule

5 — Reclamution Cost Hstimate

Under separate cover - Affidavits from Additional Property Owners

107 of 135



Staff Report - 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

ATTACHMENT 2
TAX RECEIPTS

108 of 135



775.847.1144
ezt

Storey County Planning

o= co* G0’ ol o et 5 [9TABEd Bk
|||||||||||||| Tt e JHT muﬁMZ.H“.m RODLEHOD
z OuDEIINE
RIQLENCD
u.un.rmrﬂb
NEBHLECK
NEERLECK
REZTHLECK
NEZHLAON
HIOLSROD
AJCIEWCD
HIOISKOD
;r.n_u.m 400 B0-1C0-008
wm CCcou-098
Boa-0p8

.«J.ﬁ.ﬂ.w.auu
{ ¥S01SHOs 3
HIGLSHON SE=-(000=-00%
WIQLSACD ¥H-CO0-2008
YOOLSACY TE-500-00F
HITSADS 16 -C00- 208

SEJENOSEY O K a4
5AcE0GEEE O M

DT ESQIENCD MNEHIEOK
SEOEGOSED 2 M d

D1 XSOLSWOG KdEILEDN
2T ADOIGUCD METHINON
T NODISHCD

O ADOLENCS

2T ASDLEWCD

I MODLSALDS Am::tméy

27T BDOLEWCO DISHIBON
7T XOODLSWOZS KESKIEON

OTI HOOLSWCO KESHIBOH

OTT LHMIMAOTNTHN I ® A

DI 0D SNINIK WOTJ

D71 OO DHIKTI WNT]
ENITIOEYD 3 NEO NZAWINETES
ANIGOETY A D KR ERMWIRLINS
INTTOETD 7 T KT UIVWTXZTHS
DT INZWSOUNYW X ¥ &

ONI CNINTH NICLERGD

1T ¥OCILSKOD NEEHIHON
DI RICISWOD KEHHLEON

O8I SKINTW MIOLSKOD
AHLAOAL T THINTC SHEMOM
2T SKINIW Z20LSWOD

IT XODISKOD NEIUINON
XIT RAOGLEWID HEIHLEON
21T ¥IDISNDD WAAHLEON 1ZT-Z00

BN JIJUMD PISSHIgY J [I22wg

JUNCUNY TEIOL ¥ IRIIEND € IRIAELD T IZa3Ieny T Xa2I1e0d SIERE A0TIq

BeIEL BT TUTAD SHUROWY  STADIW] pHR0
T abed .u.h\,wﬁ\mo Ajunan Asac

Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4

Comstock Mining, Inc.

QL1Tol

109 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning

Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144
Tax Bill - Storay Councy 5/14/14
MAKE REMITTANCE PAYABLE TO: parcel 002-141-19 Rell # 001010
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer 2620 SLIPFBERY GULCH RD
P O Drawsy D AQOLD HILL
Virginia City, NV 89440 PARCEL '1R' RNG C-6

Diatvict-3,0

TAXHES FOR PRRIOD
July 1, 2013 thru June 3¢, 2014

CZRCH RANDALL R&THOMPSON CALL A
P O BOX 482
8ILVER CITY, NV B9428

ABATEMERNT

ASEESSED VALUES THKES RATE OR RECAPTURE ;‘ax AMOUNT

Peal Bﬂrate 140,080 GENERAL 1.6974 .JﬂG 1&
Building/Improvements 66,890 B8THOOL OPBR 7800 §77.12
----------- SCHOOL DEET 31447 111,35

TOTAL 76,950 CAPITAL AQUIS L0800 34.48
STATE L1700 130,82

IND MERDICAL .91990 7.70

IHWD ACTILDERT 3150 11.54

WILDLEND PIRE .1149 B4 .88

YCUTH BERVICE .004s 3.46

JAIL FUND ,0745 87.33

FIRR/EMER SRV 4348 33¢ .42

44 Valoram Total 3.4607 2,663.01

Penaltiea .01
Payments To Date 2,603.02-

PAID IN FULL

E“M‘?

L'L_J i _(j_f ) A

110 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4
Comstock Mining, Inc.

MAKE REMITTAMNCE PRYRDLE TO:

Scorey County Clerk/Treasurer

P O Drawer D
Virginia City, RV 89440

TAXER TOR PERIQD

July 1, 2013 thru June 39, 2014

TURNKEY DRIL EDWARD TTEE

3059 CRERKWOOL DR
REMNGO, NV 85502

A

Real Estake

ESSED VALUES

TOTAL

Tax Bill - Storey Counky

Pazcel ¢O2-141-18

Storey County Planning
775.847.1144

2825 SLIPPRERY GULCH RD

GOLD HILL

PARCEL '2A° RHG C-6&

District-3.0

TAXES RATR
GENERAL 1.5%7%4
SCHODL OPER LTER0
SCHOOL DEBT .1447
CAPITARL AQUIS L0500
STATE L1700
IMD MEDICAL LQL0C
IND ACCIDENT L0150
WILDLAND PIRZ L1100
YOUTH BERVICE L0065
JAIL FUND D745
PIRE/EMBR SRV Alde

AQ Valerem Total 3.4407
bayments to Date

PAID IN FULL

111 0f 135

6/14/14
Roll # 004556
ABATEMENT
OR RECAFTURR TAX AMOUNT
55,17- 154.96¢
24.37- 60.48
4,70~ 13.21
1.63- 4.356
5.53- 15.52
.33~ .81
.49~ 1.37
3.BB- 16.04
.15- .41
1.42- 5.40
14.13- 319.67
11Z.50- 315.93
315.93

r—.&i?.ﬁ“j

av@:ﬂﬂ;mﬁyq



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

ATTACHMENT 3
FIGURES

112 of 135



SETJO Ll

L Proprty

1 ingh = 3CCD feal

LY conyims

2014 Vicinley Map

014_SUP

o

Docuinenst Naaie: \ vty Mag
Datg = 3052004

Crented By [|M

Notes

STOCK

i

.3'
MINING

M

ot




Storey County Planning

Staff Report — 2000-222-A4

Comstock Mining, inc.

775.847.1144

Document Names Flotlan 2004 Frocess

Crested iy - 1LM

Lhate  DL022004

Notes - Revised on 030072001

2614 Process Al Plol Plan

Dcmrhm

— G, e 8y
VAT 20 Fustier

i- :.n-m.m: s Lnaes Oy

Anclivey Une (1 GHE Pregaity

114 of 135



GEL 4o GLL

W B e
g ainbiy TN —_— AR su funag u “ 18y, BLLGHUOW JIeMBunoIS @ afieuinig ———

— Aot vk Mt!_.....!li:vlnzl{x:_ : u
IO0JEOUPINSY —e—er .
uEME: afuenrdusunoy e Femybiyy mmmmm
e .”_..\ D

sealy adueq@nNsig BUIBOLD] M- X
.@ suopesad Bujun : 1A Addng EwPUTCI

TR TR T

Kepunog huRd UCTELEDON ﬂﬂ__

a3 sepdyoois spees [

$pUOY §5090id I

Sjouo) 36RUIRS] PUE BUNPSS l

sBuping pue suopspunc 4 [

seq vodo [JEP

SAROM PuE speoY IneHsssoay [ |
sped yoea desy

IRk

2

FE WY [N

SAWNQ $0Y DISBM

sealy wogrioidxg I

seasy aoueqimsiy puey
pazuoyiny pue Bugsixg

Pl LYR'GLL ou| ‘ButuI XO0ISWoD
Buluuejq fijuno) Aa1015 ¥-V-222-000¢ — Hoday Jels



Storey County Planning

Staff Report — 2000-222-A4

Comstock Mining, Inc.

775.847.1144

COMSTOCK

MINING

116 of 135



ATTACHMENT 4
RECLAMATION SCHEMILE

117 of 135



A0 S0
9L2277%7 Ul LAY L sarIUD

]

puasa

775.847.1144

Buruoda. i Junepuots SpEenl)

Supayuop ;mempunain

aunsor)

Storey County Planning

W2RLD

UOLULN0)

W3

FUHANVOA JEaEETa

T T ety

DrImuiT]

4

SPUOg UalNES $500UG

_ T 00N JOREIITIA

[ LS ITNDY

JET 5

i UOLEREISLY Jour]

Mapefay

_ UMOPIR

Prd 1Pe3] 0TI

Juuchuppy 40EMEZAA

Lopmedanay |

WIENGLE]

g =y

T02,.01 J0p Vo117 895 |

[P TE oo
DLW Y

ROy

Fuul Dy ULEaEes

undesadaady

1] | DUCHLLE]

[ Y .

S@UN( / |PSOESIO IOY JISEM

———

JULSLUDKE JOUEIZIN

uoGEIEtansy

WOQINSU0T SUTS ] Swisg

i
_
_
|

~ CHGALLE]

= W
| |

1 T

s34 wad0

DI N EN S T O [ N

41N

Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4

Comstock Mining, Inc.

Wt T e T 333 Tt

S S——

valosd 3wadnt 10) 3\npays uoiewe3IY

Ayoey

118 of 135



Storey County Planning

Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4

Comstock Mining, Inc.

775.847.1144

119 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Note: Pages 35-39 of the submitted application containing reclamation renditions are
ommitted here but are shown in Exhibit C above.

This area intentionally left blank

120 of 135



gerjoiet

NS e KRpUnOg dnst " -

ooo'e ad1 o o e e Sy e e o Ry
= - S ST
.,._.u. funoy ——  au Awnod oo 00| = B0t

40 —— VHO e N YI0L5W0D
wonaIpsung Aq speoy . [ —
) degy nopeviodsueay weyd sns A K et T =, m—
TRE . o et Al
Yy x5
N 5
53
Ay anngty o
2 i

"\
B

.
..-
- : L3
b N 5 LA
o 1 ?
Sy e =
258 A

de\ uejq uoneuodsuel ]



gelLiocel

sron
-y ez
o
e
e b

P uren

3 080 Wore=s

135 B St
swrrl

rome

taqey

a3

e8Iy SOUTWINLIG

I;l...i;g owoT 2%

D e I ) ——— W

B 3 By

='a = 0071 =

S

03

wul |

T

o

T s ey e amre

[ 1L oh

P e e Gaovy f—y

YLl Lv8'GLL
Buluuelq Alunoo Aal01g

depy uuojpue Sunsixg

"ou| ‘BuIlIpy Moo)swos
¥-V-22Z-0002 — Hoday yeis



geLjoect

[ i N P Y g e 3 ; : BT T ) D o vt v 2 BT = =¥ T :
e e e Y £ o i o g .
bl | o'z 2007 005 0 4 ne = R o Lo ey
E—
= i - e
SPUBRABAL SN AU JO SIBEM g . ey Buissai) pesodaig

—— a

e k| — N ¥J0LSW0d
= SUBAIND ey VdH D exmmmm a{\ AT g s :
=5 2(+)3 pgo womes degy M3So10.IpAH Oeld NS \ [T T p——

depy o1neIpAH uepd SuS

1243WAL R IV -ou| ‘Bululp XooyswoD)
Buiuueld Aluno) Asioig #--222-000Z — boday yeis



Sel o vl

g Auy e
deyy 2rmdnNg TRl WNS

4

LY “FET) 0L L4V PV Sepammly
Sy ey v 4@ 44 prnnd o enm———Gn
LV S O RS R ATy ey e Ty Se s I
R e e e o L L 1Y
)

e o ot o v
8 ey D ) b T
> ——rrrn St 2 e i

- B v S < (e gy P
e e e s Pl T e

Y30LSK0)

L AAWA R INA
Buluueld fjunon Aslolg

dejy samonng ueld aug

"oU} ‘Bulupy Mooiswon
¥-V-222-000Z — Hoday yeig



775.847.1144

Storey County Planning

Topographic illustrations for expansion on each side of State Route 342.

Staff Report — 2000-222-A4

Comstock Mining, Inc.

=1

T -—-—r-.;d—

¥

L35 L

o

AT

i

CcONSTocK

RMINTRG

e

1 L i e~ B

Lucerne Desfgn
Soclion 080 F(15}h

e Dralnage

| Conceplus! Road Crossing *

N

1 Inch = 500 feet

- ———Fect [i}
500 1,000 |
' Poesibl bakw ro22 grade

=

125 of 135




Ise A

Comstock Mining complies with the County Noise Ordinance {Storey Caunty Code Chapter 8.04}, which
includes an 84 decibel limit at the property line, The SUP also contains condltions pertaining to nolse,
inciuding limlting days and hours of operation In areas, If operations exceed the County nolse standard,
Comstock will implement noise abatement measures to reduce the resultant nolse levels at the property
line such as instaflation of sound-absorbing structures, earth-fill barriers, limitations on the number of
motorized machines that may operate concurrently, and restrictions on the hours and days of operation.
The SUP also requires that operatlonal surface activities within 1,000 of a residence be fimited to the
hours of 8 AM to 5 PM, Monday through Friday and no holidays, unless waived by the property owner.

126 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4
Comstock Mining, Inc.

Storey County Planning
775.847.1144

(3. Historic Struckures Profection

Mireral exploration and retated eperations uider the SUT shall not cause any histavical structure (o be
disturbed, aliered, moved, or demolished. 1listorical struciures shall include occepied and unocoupisd
buikdings, antbuidings, tanks, mine head-Trames, and accessory stractures, machinery, and other
appetencies which are SO yeuars of age or alder, Architectural inventerizs conducted within the SUP
houndary have identificd two historical structures (Blustain 2013, Comyp 1987). These two resourees
include the Justice Ore Bin (S1009) and the Mammoth Ove Bin {(S101 1), No additional
architectural resources are known to exist within this arca (Comp 1987). As there arc no
anticipated impacts to historical structures extant in 1942 within the exploration and mining
boundary, & historic structures protection plan is rot needed, Information on the two ore bins in
summarized in the table below. ‘The terms of this condition shall be fullitled by compliance with the
fallowing limilations:

a. 'The mine’s operations will avoid historical structures and Lthey will not be disturbed,
alered, moved, or demolished without approval by Comstock Historie Dustrict
Conmunission, All historical structures will continue to be avoided by 200 feet and any
ground disturbance activities within 200 feel will require an archacological montlor be
present at the expense of the Fermit Holder,

Blustain, J.8.

2003

Study, Storey and Lyon Counties, Nevada, Report Submitted to DOI, Bureau of Laud
Management, Sierra Front Field Office, Carson City, Nevada. Report No. BLM3-2643-1.

Comp, T, A.

987

Commission, Virginia City, Nevada.

Architectural Documentation for the Comstack Mire, Ine. Baseline Cultuval Resource

Comsinek Project 87 Tnventorp. Qriginal manuseripl on file with the Comstock Historic District

RESOURCE RESOURCE, DATE Buer DESCRIFTION ::;::::::hrl}";ﬁ:
INAMIE NUMBER | o ) 4 il
R | I R o ALTERED?
The Justice Ore Rin is a wond-framed strodace mcasaing
approximacely 24 [eel Y inghes long and 14 feet 4 inches wide. It
The Justice | ) ) ms‘u:? date af (:r'-n;‘s'u netion igx}.:z&{unvn, fi|!hl"11lg_!1 it was mast Fkely
Ore Din 1009 ¢ 8591870 btu‘h he[}uccn 1859 a[ul o LETQ The strueture i3 supperted upor: a No
series ol wooden upcighis and crosy wemmbers hal measune
approsimately 9 fnches wide and 7.5 inches thick, The bin iy
i I voinposed of wooden 2x | 2-inch plnks. — ) ~
‘The Manimath Cre Bin g5 a wood-lramed siractere with za
foundation. [t was construatcd in ¢, 19305 basod coy its materials and
The wethod of constiuetion. When upright, it would have measured 12
N mmaoth S0 214930 feet 2 inches tall, 8 foet 3 inches deep, and 9 fevt 2 inches wide. It is Nao
O Bin composed of & skeleton of D-meh-gquare posts ined with 2-hy- 2-inch
| boards, Despite extensive research, the Mammath (e Bio's origin
L ond et date of construetion remain unkaown, |

The applicant has received permission from the Comstock Historic District Commission to
remove and subsequently replace the Justice Foundation Hoist Works Blocks at their

approximate original location. They blocks are currently stored and secured at the Cabin in the
Sky property, which is owned and managed by the applicant.

127 of 135




Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

! &csuurl:_c Name: The l\'-fr-nnmolh du_: Bin
SHPO Resource Number: ST

RESOURCE PHOTOGRAPHS

Facing: Wesl

Elevation: Mammoth Qre Bin, Battom
I*hotographer: lnn Springer Date: 11716412

Elevation: Mammoth Orec Bin, Tap Facing: East
Thotographer: lan Springer Date: 11/16/12

128 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc, 775.847.1144

Resource Name: The Mammoth Ore Bin |
SHEO J

Ilevation: Marmnnoth Ore Bin, Elevation 1 Facing: South
Phowyprapher: Tan Springer Date: 11710412

Ilevation: Mammoth Ore Bin, Elevation 2 and Bottonr Facing: Northwest
Photographer: lan Springer Date: 11716712

129 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

SIPO Resource Number: $1009

RESOURCE PHOTOGRAPHS

l:levation; Justice Ore Bin, cast and north elevations Facing: Southwest
Photoprapher: Richord Breitling Date: 12/4/2012
v ey > - . = Ty e

Clevation: Justice Ore Din, south and east elevations Facing: Northwest
Photographer: Richard Breilling Date: 12/4/2012

130 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

]l(:so-l-l-roc Nn_mcv:r'ihc.l.u;l‘ic; QOre Bin
SIIPO Resource Number; S1009 |

Elovation: Justice Ore Bin, west and south clevations Facing: Northcast
Photographer: Richard Breitling Date: 12/4/2012
-‘-"--.

s sl =

Ievation: Justice Ure Bn, north and west elovations Facing: Southenst
Photogrupher: Richard Breilling Date: 12/4/2012

131 0f 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

14, Cometery Protection

Twar Cemeteries are known to exist within 1,000 feet of the proposed SUP boundary. They include the
Gold Hill Cemetery and the New Catholic Cemetery, Both resources are located outside the current SUP
baundary and will noi be directly impacted. The Permit Holder shall not cause any cemetery or structures
thereiy, such as headstones, moauments, fenves, enclosures, elc., 1o be disturbed, altered, moved, or
destroyed. The lerms of (his condition shall be tulfilled by compliance with the fllowing limitations:

a.  Activities and disturbunces shall not take place within 300 feot of a cometery boundary as
defined by NRS 452.0075 and as determined by the Comstock Cemetery Foundation
(CCF). These limitations shall not apply to gencral vehicular and heavy equipment
traffic taking place on the established county roads and right-of-ways, including
American Flat Road. These limitations also shall not apply to mineral exploration
activities approved by the CCF wilhin the established cometery buffer area, but not
within any cemetery boundary or public right-of-way. Written approval by the CCF shall
be submitted to Storey County Community Development prior to commencement of
activities within the scope of these regulations.

b. Activities and disturbances may be petinitted between 300 and 500 feet siurounding each
cemetery boundary as describe above when the SUP Permit Holder initiates and
maintaing continuous communication and collaboration with the CCF in protecting said
cemetery resources. A surface vibration monitoring program shall be developed and
implemented as determined by the CCF. The implemented program will monilor surface
vibrations at selected sites to assess potential vibrations from drilling and excavaling
operations, heavy machinery, and vehicles, The monitoring program, upon approval of
the CCF, will be at the expense and oversight of the CCE.

PERMITS REQUIRED TO AJDUST MINING BOUNDARY TC EAST OF SR342

Include:

e SUP-Storey County {in progress}

*  Water Pollution Control Permit {WPCH) amendment for Eastern Lucerne {NDEP-BMRR)
e Reclamation Permit amendment [NDEP-BMRR})

- Reoad Underpass and/for Move Permits - NDOT, Storey County

e Gold Canyon Creel: crossing - Waters of the US - ACOE {Nationwide Permit coverage)

- Mitigation of eligible historic sites

132 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Eastern Lucerne Conceptual Plan -
Rudimentary Visual Representations

Current View
The image below shows the area of potential mining, east of SR342.

133 0of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Surface Operation View
The image below shows a graphic representation of what how the area might look during operations.

Reclamation
Reclamation may conslist of backfilling benches and contouring to near original topography.

Alternatively reclamation may be ticd into future activities. The following Image shows a rough Image of

what the area would look like after reclamation

134 of 135



775.847.1144

Storey County Planning

Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4

Comstock Mining, Inc.

SBOASWIMNO]
sy [ | DRICABY
RG] wepr] g!&

g smmpwary g seyaunginsgpue) e [ ez s [

deyy aydeaBiodoy,
@ suofeledg Buiuigsod |

.=.._ESD o Bganon s 4 ey — 7 —

LT MTLL
DoEE NOLL

SRS

e

BN T S S e SR

135 of 135



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 09/02/14 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: In accordance with an approval of Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-4 by Comstock
Mining, LLC, county planning staff hereby recommends closure and nullification of
existing Special Use Permit No. 2011-016 (“Exploration SUP™). This SUP request is
subject to approval of preceding SUP No. 2000-222-A-4 by Comstock Mining, LLC.
This SUP amendment request shall not be subject to hearing or modification if said
preceding SUP is not approved.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the approval of Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-
4 by Comstock Mining, LLC, compliance with federal, state, and county regulations, and the
recommendation of approval by the Planning Commission and staff, [ [Commissioner] find that
existing SUP No. 2011-016 is no longer necessary and may conflict with the provisions of SUP
No. 2000-222-A-4, and, therefore, I motion to approve permanent closure of existing SUP No.
2011-016 (“Exploration SUP”).

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne, Senior Planner
Department: Planning Department Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: In 2011 the applicant was granted Special Use Permit No. 2011-016 allowing it to
conduct mine exploration on portions of land now subject to the provisions of SUP No. 2000-222-
A-4. In addition to mining, processing, and mine definition, SUP No. 2000-222-A-4 allows for mine
exploration. Therefore, existing SUP No. 2011-016 for mine exploration is no longer necessary and
may conflict with the provisions of SUP No. 2000-222-A-4. Staff recommends closure of SUP No.

2011-016.

S. Supporting materials: See Staff Report No. 2000-222-A-4 Section 2.2 (pp. 5-9), Section 9
(pp. 34 and 52), and Exhibit K (pp. 77-85).

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
__/E Z( ynmt Head Department Name:
/Jﬁ County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[1] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. \D



Storey County Board of Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 09/02/14 Estimate of time required: 15 min.
Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

Note: Convene as Board of Fire Commissioners

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Approval of Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
between the Storey County Board of Fire Commissioners (Employer) and the Storey
County Firefighters’ Association IAFF Local 4227 (Firefighters’ Association) pertaining to
salaries, merit steps, and employee anniversary/hire dates.

2. Recommended motion: I [Commissioner] motion to approve the Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) between the Storey County Board of Fire Commissioners and the
Storey County Firefighters® Association IAFF Local 4227 clarifying employee salaries and
merit steps as pertaining to employee anniversary/hire dates. I understand that the MOU
clarifies the meaning of, but does not modify the terms of, the existing Bargaining
Agreement between the parties.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne, Administrative Officer

Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968

4, Staff summary: Pursuant to NRS 288 and Article 1 of the Bargaining Agreement between the
Employer and the Firefighters® Association, clarification is needed regarding salary and
step benefits as applicable to employee anniversary/hiring dates.

5. Supporting materials: Recommended draft MOU enclosed herewith.

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
7/ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
s :
/,.-Mnty Manager Other agency review:
(4

9. -Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e
e St

Agenda Item No. \7



l'?

o
TOLN l ) STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
0 Box 605
Virginia City, NV 89440
(775) 847-0954 Phone e (775) 847-0987 Fax

July 1, 2014

Honorable Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners
C/O Mr, Pat Whitten, County Manager

26 South “B” Street

Virginia City, NV 89440

Attn: County Manager and Administrative Officer
Re: Memorandum of Understanding to 2014-2017 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Dear Mr. Whitten:

Please let this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) provide clarification regarding employee salaries
and merit steps, and how they relate to employee anniversary dates pursuant to Article 3 of the 2014-
2017 Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) between the Storey County Board of Fire Commissioners
and the Storey County Fire Fighters® Association, IAFF Local 4227. The terms and conditions of this
MOU, and accordingly said Article of the CBA, shall apply as follows. This MOU shall be effective for
the term of said CBA.

e Existing Employees — Employees who were newly hired to full-time positions on or before
11/30/12 shall thenceforth receive merit-step increases on July 1 of each year. No merit-step
increase shall ever occur on the employee’s actual hire-date/true anniversary date. On 07/01/14,
these employees shall advance to their next respective steps pursuant to the 2014-2017 CBA, e.g.,
a Step 2 employee shall advance to Step 5, etc., on that date.

o New Employees — Employees who were newly hired to full-time positions on or after 07/01/13
shall thenceforth receive merit-step increase on their actual anniversary date, that being the date at
which they were hired as new full-time employees. On their true anniversary date, these

employees will receive merit-step pay and will advance to Step 2 pursuant to the 2014-2017
CBA. They will thereafter advance to Sten 'Z A 5 and so-on each year. For examnle if “John”

AL LLIVY VYL UIVIVQGLILWL QU Y GLIVY W Dy Ty « Gails SV valill 2y SBNL A

was hired on April 05, 2014, he will receive merlt -step on April 05 2015, and w1ll advance to
Step 2 on that date. He will not receive merit-step pay or advancement on July 1 of any year. If
“Jane” was hired on August 05, 2014, she will receive merit-step on August 05, 2015, and will
advance to Step 2 on that date. She will not receive merit-step pay or advancement on July 1 of
any year.

e Reclassified Employees — Any employee, regardless of initial hire date, who is reclassified
(promoted, demoted, promoted then demoted back to his/her original position, etc.) shall be
assigned a new true anniversary date. The new anniversary date will be the date on which the
employee was reclassified. Thenceforth, the reclassified employee will receive merit-step

Page 1 of 2



increases on his/her true anniversary date. Thenceforth, regardless of the initial hire date, that
employee will advance through the pay range one step at a time, e.g., 1, 2, 3, etc. For example, if
“John”, a current Step 3 employee who normally receives merit-step on July 1 of each year, was
promoted to a higher position on April 05, 2014, he will earn his next merit-step increase (step
and pay) on April 05, 2015. He will receive no merit-step increase on July 1 of any year following

his reclassification.

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Fire Board

Lance Gilman, Vice Chairman
Storey County Fire Board

Bill Sjovangen, Commissioner
Storey County Fire Board

Gary Hames, Chief
Storey County Fire District

Pat Whitten, County Manager

Storey County

APPROVED AS TO FROM:

Bill Maddox, District Attorney

Victor Yohey, President
Storey County Fire Fighters® Association

Roy Thomson, Vice-President
Storey County Fire Fighters’ Association

Attest By:

Vanessa Stephens, Storey County Clerk/Treasurer

Page 2 of 2



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 09/02/14 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [X]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of modification and extension of
Collective Bargaining Agreement between Storey County (Employer) and the Storey
County Sheriff's Office Employees’ Association/Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3

(Union).

2. Recommended motion. | [Commissioner] motion to approve modifying and extending the
Collective Bargaining Agreement between Storey County and the Storey County Sheriff’s
Office Employees” Association/Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 as tentatively
agreed between the parties and as presented by staff.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne, Administrative Officer
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968
4. Staff summary: Pursuant to NRS 288 and Article 1 of the Bargaining Agreement between the

Employer and the Union, the existing 2011-2014 Agreement is proposed to be modified as
tentatively agreed between the parties.

5. Supporting materials: Provided in closed session per NRS 288.

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
/__Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
w Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
] Approved Approved with Modifications

[] Denied Continued
! Agenda Item No. 2 \

,_“_‘



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 2, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Acceptance and award of contract for three (3)
Ambulance Re-chassis to Fire Trucks Unlimited in the amount of $200,505.

2. Recommended motion: / move to accept and award the bid for three (3) Ambulance Re-chassis
to Fire Trucks Unlimited in the amount of $200,505.

3. Prepared by: Gary Hames
Department: Equipment Acquisition Telephone: (775) 847-0954

4. Staff summary: Re-chassis of three ambulance cab and chassis’ for the fire district began a
year ago. This is necessary and prudent due to the mileage, hours and mechanical issues with
the existing ambulances. An application has been successfully completed and awarded by the
USDA for a loan to support this purchase. Specifications have been written and issued to
fourteen (14) bidders with only one (1) submitting a proposal, one submitting a “no-bid” letter
(Burtons Fire Apparatus) and one calling to state they only re-chassis their own boxes (Braun).
This bid submittal and requested approval is for only the re-chassis of the ambulance. It does
not include the cost of the new vehicle to place the existing box. The actual vehicle will be in a
separate staff recommendation. Fire Trucks Unlimited submittal does meet or exceed all of our
specifications at this time. They are also a Nevada based company located in Henderson.

S. Supporting materials: Specification with costs.

6. Fiscal impact: Funds Available: Yes Fund: Equipment Acquisition Comptroller
7. Legal review required: District Attorney
8. Reviewed by: Department Head Department Name: Equipment Acquisition

Q,-)My Manager Other agency review: USDA

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda Item No. Q 2



FIRETRUCKS UNLIMITED LLC

1175 Center Point, Henderson, NV 88074
(702) 558-3352 [Phone] - (702) 558-9821 [Fax]
www.firetrucksunlimited.com URL

August 15, 2014

Storey County Fire Protection District
Post office Box 603

145 NorthC Street

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

As the largest Apparatus Service Center in the states of Nevada and Utah, and the largest
Refurbishment Center in the region. Firetrucks Unlimited welcome the opportunity to provide
our services to Storey County Fire Protection District. Enclosed please find the information you
requested.

We are a major supplier of quality, customized fire equipment to firefighters across our region.
We build highly reliable durable specialty vehicles that have a reputation of proven
performance.

FTU Fire Apparatus is built to be safe, dependable and price competitive to meet the diverse
needs of municipalities and their fire departments. FTU builds and markets a variety of
configurations including wildland, tankers, and rescue vehicles as well as remounting
ambulances.

Thank you for your interest in our company. If you have any questions, please feel free to
contact me at 866-876-0979, 702-558-3352, or via e-mail at Richard@firetrucksunlimited.com.

Respw é E

ichard Ives
Firetrucks Unlimited

FTU Fire Apparatus Representative



Storey County Fire Protection District

Specifications and Bid Proposal

Package for T

aree (3) Type 1

Ambulance Chassis Changeover



REJECTION OF PROPOSALS: The Storey County Fire Protection District reserves the right to
reject any or all proposals and alternatives and to waive any informality or technicality in any
proposal that we may deem to be in the best interest of this District, and to request new proposals
when required. In addition, we reserve the right to accept the proposal deemed most
advantageous and in the best interest of the District. We will not be bound to accept low bid if it
is not in our best interest. We reserve the right to determine which (if any) substitutions are
acceptable and to negotiate changes. We reserve the right to add additional vehicles to this
purchase if so desired. It is also the intent of the District to allow any other governmental entity
to utilize NRS 332.195 — Joinder Clause, to purchase off of this same specification if so desired.

Vendors taking complete exception to the entire specifications will be removed from the bidding
process as non-responsive,

NFPA 1901-2009: The National Fire Protection Association "Standard for Automotive Fire
Apparatus, 2009 Edition, is hereby adopted and made a part of these specifications for the
components supplied in the incomplete chassis. In addition to this standard, Federal KKK
Ambulance requirements shall be strictly adhered to. It is the responsibility of the vendor to
identify any portion of this specification that is not aligned with either NFPA or KKK standards.

The bid shall state the type of warranty that the manufacturer will provide, with copies of
warranty coverage and omissions enclosed with these specifications.

If awarded the bid, a licensed, authorized representative of the bidder shall provide a minimum
of four (4) — four (1) hours training sessions to staff and maintenance personnel at time of

delivery.

If awarded the bid; vendor shall be willing to provide follow-up service including replacement
parts for repairs, etc. as may be needed by the District to maintain the vehicle after it is put into

operation.

By signing this document, the Bidder agrees that this Bid is made without any understanding,
agreement or connection with any other person, firm or corporation making a bid for the same
purpose, and that this bid is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud.

If a vendor represents more than one (1) Manufacturer, we will only accept the top of the line
manufacturer meeting these specifications, This purchaser is NOT interested in low quality,

budget built equipment.
o ~1 il

Total bid price will include all items and components as listed in these specifications including
delivery to this location. Listing any items contained in these specifications as an extra cost
item, unless otherwise specified, will be cause for rejection.

APPROVAL DRAWING-

Prior to construction, the successful bidder will provide three approval drawings of the apparatus for the
fire department's review. The drawings will show such items as the chassis being utilized, lights, horns,
sirens and all compartment locations and dimensions. The blueprint will be a visual interpretation of the



approval of the specific item. Requests must be received within 30 days of contract award. No
substitution may be made without prior approval.

Meets Specification: Yes / No (if no, provide explanation)

Progress Reporting-

Successful vendor will have available photos of the units being produced. Theses photos will be updated
and sent weekly until final inspection.

In addition to the production photos; weekly status reports, any additional shop notes, additional
drawings, etc. will be sent to the Fire District.

Meets Specification: Yes l/ No (if no, provide explanation)

PRODUCT LIABILITY INSURANCE

Due to the high cost of replacement of said fire apparatus and to protect the District of our full rights, the
successful vendor shall carry garage liability insurance equal to or in excess of $10,000,000.00.

Meets Specification: Yes No Zg (if no, provide explanation)

PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE - FACTORY

A pre-construction conference will be held at the factory prior to the actual construction of the vehicle(s).
The conference will be held in the successful bidders manufacturing facility with three (3) representatives
of the Fire Department and appropriate representatives of the successful bidder.

Transportation, lodging and meals, will be the responsibility of the successful vendor.

Meets Specification: Yes No 7 N (if no, provide explanation)

PRE-PAINT INSPECTION TRIP

There will be a pre-paint inspection trip for three (3) representatives of the District at the facility where
the apparatus is being constructed. The inspection trip will be completed prior to painting of the body.
Factory and Sales representatives will be available at the time of inspection.

Transportation, lodging and meals, will be the responsibility of the successful vendor.

Meets Specification: Yes No Z:_\ (if no, provide explanation)

FINAL INSPECTION TRIP

There will be a final inspection trip for four (4) representatives of the District at the facility where the
apparatus is being constructed. The inspection trip will be completed prior to delivery of the apparatus.
Factory and Sales representatives will be available at the time of inspection.

Transportation, lodging and meals will be the responsibility of the successful vendor.

Meets Specification: Yes No _(if no, provide explanation)



Speaker—
(2) New Whelen SA315P 100 Watt Siren Speakers shall be installed behind the chassis grill.

Meets Specification: Yes \/ No (if no, provide explanation)

Cab Boot-

A new pass-through boot shall be fabricated and installed. If necessary, modifications shall be
made to the patient module box (filling holes) to accommodate the new boot.

Meets Specification: Yes '/ No (if no, provide explanation)

Onspot Chains—

The onspot chains from old chassis shall be re-installed on new chassis (if possible). If that is not
possible, the vendor shall accommodate new onspot automatic tire chains as part of their costs

contained within this request for proposal.

Meets Specification: Yes _'/__ No  (ifno, provide explanation)
Urea Fill-

Provide fill door with access using standard commercial containers.

v

Meets Specification: Yes _“  No  (if no, provide explanation)
Safety Labels-

Cab placard & safety labels - Install required safety labels,

Meets Specification: Yes L No _ (if no, provide explanation)

Mud Flaps—

2 New Mud flaps on rear body.

Aot Qammnl LI nn bl e —~ ~ iF s 3 1

Meets Specification: Yes Ni (if no, provide explanation)
.

New A/C Lines -

Replace a/c hose with new #8 & #10, install new fittings.
Meets Specification: Yes No (if no, provide explanation)

Diamond plate-




Dome Lights —

Patient compartment dome lights (7) shall be replaced with new Weldon LED low profile dome
lights with Hi/Lo setting. This vendor is being used for example purposes only of what lights are
expected.

Meets Specification: Yes ‘/ No (if no, provide explanation)
Scene/lL.oad Lights -

Use existing Scene Lights, Light heads shall be removed prior to paint, polished and then
reinstalled.
/

Meets Specification: Yes No (if no, provide explanation)

Troubleshoot wiring—

Wiring harness shall be disconnected from ambulance box and re-connected to new chassis with
disconnect plugs for future remounting. Troubleshoot wiring issues.

/

Meets Specification: Yes No (if no, provide explanation)

Backup Camera-

Install backup cameras and monitors.
Meets Specification: Yes No ﬁ (if no, provide explanation)
Cab Paint-

The new chassis shall be ordered in white and repainted department color (blue). All door
openings, cabinet openings and the like shall all be painted.

Meets Specification: Yes / No (if no, provide explanation)

Body Paint-

Prior to paint, any necessary body work shall be performed. Repaired areas shall be sealed and

primed prior to paint. Box to be cleaned, refinished with new blue base coat/ clear coat paint
scheme single tone to match new chassis cab. After paint box shall be cut and buffed.

The cab and body shall be painted at the same time, no exceptions.
Meets Specification: Yes / No (if no, provide explanation)

Compartment paint—

The exterior compartments shall be refinished with a gray rhino liner.



FIRE APPARATUS

Firetrucks Unlimited

1175 Center Point

Henderson, Nevada 88074

{866) 876-0879 [Phone] - (702) 558-9821 [Fax]
www.firetrucksunlimited.com URL

APPARATUS PROPOSAL

DATE: September 15, 2015
FOR: Storey County Fire Protection District
MAILING ADDRESS: 145 North C Street

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Bidder hereby proposes to manufacture and furnish to Purchaser, subject to Purchaser's acceptance of
the Bidder's proposal and the proper execution of the appropriate contract, the following apparatus and
equipment to be built in accordance with the attached specifications.

Quantity: Three (3) Type 1 Ambulance Chassis Changeovers
For the sum of Sixty six thousand eight hundred thirty five Dollars each.
(Plus applicable taxes if any)

TOTAL for all (3) Three = $200,505.00 plus any applicable taxes

Delivery is to be made subject to all clauses of the attached contract, within approximately 90 calendar
days from receipt of the CHASSIS by the Bidder. Company will not be liable for any delay, failure to
make delivery, or other default due to strikes or labor unrest, war, riot, federal, state or iocal government
action, fire, flood or other disaster or acts of God, accidents, breakdown of machinery, lack of or inability
to obtain materials, parts or supplies, or any other causes or circumstances beyond the reasonable
control of Company which prevent or hinder Company's manufacture and/or delivery of the Apparatus.
The Bidder's right to withdraw this proposal, if not accepted within thirty (45) days from the above date is

hereby acknowledged.

Resk % f{s. bm
e

Richard Ives
Sales Representative

Firetrucks Unlimited

1175 Center Point
Henderson, Nevada 89074
702-558-3352 Office
702-279-5118 Cell



The Refurb Leader!

Firetrucks Unlimited

1175 Center Point Dr. QUOTE NO.

Henderson, NV 83074 DATE  August 5, 2014
866.876.0979 (toll free) CUSTOMETR 1D

702.558.9821 (fax)) EXPIRATION DATE 60 Days

hrianr@firetrucksunlimited.com

10 Storey County Fire Protection
Virginia City, Nevada 89506

Attn: Victor Yohey

SOW (STATEIVI ENT OF WORK)

'SALESPERSON ; JoB PAYMENT TERMS

':Rlchard Ives ,Wheeled ot Amhulan:e 50% upfront and 50% and delivery

 Remounts

This project includes 3 similar boxes that will be modified, refurbished and updated to

appear the same (as close as possmle) Prlce per each.
DESGRIPTION il

LINE TOTAL

Ford F350 4x4 to be changed to Dodge 4500 4x4 : Story Cty will order and drop ship chassls to
Firetrucks Unlimited. Flretrucks Unlimited will offer copy of chassis quote to local Henderson TBD

dealer to allow them to match price and possibly save on dellvery fees. NOTE: Dodge 4500 may

not meet aplicable load helght requirements.

1 ' 3 e i _;ﬁ"i% 4-1-;%'
High Idle - The truck shall. ba aqulppad wlth ahigh ldla system: that will.agtivate orce chassis s : ;
placedinpark. THISITEM MUST BE ORDERED WITH THE CHASSIS. nla

Centar Consale - Provide and install new Troy center console with appropriate plates for

oy ce cansole

4
customers radio, siren, amp & voltage gauges, cupholders, switching.
1,100
6 : Rad[o A new Motproia PM 1.500 Mudai dual! head /maobile vhf radio per:the: dlstr[cts specifications _
£ ) and install in console.
2,600
6 Siren/Radio - A new Federal Signal PA300 200 Watt Siren shall be provided and Installed in the
new center console. 800
2 : Speaker (2), New Whalan SA315P 100! Wau Siren: Spaakers shall be Installed behind the. chassls : ; '
et : o ; : _ e e )

e,

8/7/2014 8:59 AM 10f3



Item # 'DESCRIPTION LINE TOTAL
B Boot - A new passthough boot shall be fabricated and installed. If necessary, modifications shall
be made to the patlent module box (filling holes) to accommodate the new boot. 1,500
?
9 Whaels - t_o:i}_é-'éi'dhr'ed_'-wlth:chass!s s
4 nra
10 Onspot Chalns - The onspot chalns from old chassls shall be re-Installed on new chassls (if
possible), otherwise install new onspot chains.
[ R R R N R D
I AN, ra b i IR | AT e
Rk ,.ji'%i%,. e

12 Urea FIlIl - Provide fill door with access using standard commercial containers 450
43 |cab, pfuwrd & safaty labels Install raqulrad safety labels. {66
Remove & Replace Body - Body wlll be removed and Installed on new chassis, necessary body
14
mounts, spacers and hardware will be replaced as necessary. 4,000
15 [Mud Fiaps - 2 New Mud fiaps on rear body 08
16 New A/C Lines - Replace a/c hose with new #8 & #10, Install new fittings. 3,400
)
17 |Dlamond plate- Pollsh body diamond plate.

19 : Raupholatar and repalr Pﬂnats make each box unifurm with uphalstary. sheetlng 1.800
2 hhedhs
o Flooring - The patient compartment flooring shall be replaced with new "GRAY" LONPLATE i
material.

I Ltghllng Puckage' Exlstlng !ightlng shall ramaln., iight heﬂds shall ba removad bsfom pnlnt (4)

¢ ! Alr Bags-No: Actlcm. chass!& will:ibe orderod wlth no’ alr.baga and ﬂ'lére ls nn mnmrn of rear 4

new:Whelen LED lighthead shall‘be provided and [nstalled on the new chasss. (2) Whelen 500
i Sarlas on front grill, and/(2) Whelen LINZ.on front fenders. - 1,700
24 DOT Lights - Use existing Brake, Reverse & Turn lights. Pollsh lenses 200
25 |Clearanca llghts - Use existing clearance lights, polish lenses 50
76 Dome LIghts - Patlent compartment dome lights (7) shall be replaced with new Weldon LED low
proflle dome lights with H|/Lo setting 1,200
£ ¢ Suene/t.oad l.ights Use exlstingScene Lights nghthaads shall be mrnoved pm:r to paint
‘ f pollshad i e
ey : 150
o8 Troubleshoot wirlng - Wiring harness shall be disconnected from ambulance box and re- connected
to new chassls. Troubleshoot wmng issues. 5,500
29 Baqkup Gamara A bal:kup uamera shall ] Instaile ‘on the ] < : 1.200
8/7/2014 8:59 AM 20f3



31 Cab Palnt - The:chassls order white and repainted _depart'ment-ad!or'(ﬂlué)_
: . i 2,600
Body Paint - Prlor to paint, any necessary body work shall be performed. Repaired areas shall be
32 sealed and primed prior to paint. Box to be cleaned, refinished with new blue base coat/ clear
coat paint scheme single tone to match new chassis cab. After paint box shall be cut and buffed.
6,250
33 |Compartment paint - The exterlor compartments shall be refinished with a'gray rhino liner. _
] _ 1,400
34 Striping - Per the departments current striping layout. 2 200
e Lettering~ Department Tattériﬁg-and:s'hlalds-(!eﬁecti\re]asﬁgll be provided and Installed simifar to - . ;
- old design. Wi 900
- Rear Chevrons - New reflectlve BLUE AND GRAY chevrons shall be applied on at least 50% of the
rear verttical surface. 900
37 _'|Door Seals -_fAII_:dq'qr-g_weals_zwill-ba‘-fqpl'at-:ad}_'afte_r:'f-gu_';a'_lrjt_; 600
0ld Chassls Flatbed - The takeoff chassls shall have a new steel flatbed with headache rack, mud
38 flaps, 2 red whelen emergency lights mounted to the headache rack, existing alr rlde suspension
compressor to me mounted In metal cablnet under left rear of flatbed In front of mudflap.
40 )
to be dropshipped to Henderson, NV. 2,250
Inspection meetings - Lodging, Tranportation & Meals, Pre-Con :.3'nq_tha_. Pre-Paint: 3 people,
‘41 Final: 4'people (trlp charges are being spread over 3 'trucks, total charge for (nspactions I6
$4,3650) ' - 1,450
42 Management, Supplles, Overhead and Warranty 8 235

Accepted by:

$ : 66,835.00

www.firetrucksunlimited.com
THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!

This is a draft that can be modified - please review, add
lines, delete lines, change and send back for an updated
Draft. Once both parties agree on the content of the SOW
(Statement of Work) we will produce a FINAL, After a
FINAL is accepted any changes will be accompanied with
a "Change Order". Each change order will have a price per
Item and a new calculation of completion.

8/7/2014 8:59 AM

30f3



The Refurb Leader!

Exceptions/Clarifications

Page 3, paragraph 3 — “Federal KKK Ambulance requirements shall be strictly adhered to”, NOTE:
upgrading to Ford F450 chassis without adding rear air bag or liquid spring suspension may cause the
leading height to exceed parameters set by KKK. The specification currently does not call for rear alr
bag or liquid spring suspension.

Page 3, paragraph 10 APPROVAL DRAWING — As this is a remounted ambulance, a new drawing will
not be provided.

Page 4, CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS, LIQUIDATED DAMAGES - Delivery time commences when all

chassis have been provided by the customer, adherence to reasonable pre-construction meeting
timelines

Page 4, Warranty Repairs — Firetrucks Unlimited standard refurbishment warranty is 1 year and
applies only to the work performed by Firetrucks Unlimited. New chassis warranty shall be
administered by the chassis manufacturer.

Page 5, Product Liability Insurance — Firetrucks Unlimited can provide garage liability insurance in the
amount of $3,000,000 which is consistent with companies of similar size and type,

Page 5, Inspections — There will be a total of 3 (PreCon: 3 reps, PrePaint: 3 reps, Final: 4 reps)
inspections trips for the project. All three ambulances will be inspected at the same time.

Page 6, High [dle — The chassis need to be ordered with high idle option as this is not available after
market.

Page 6, Center Console - PM1500 VHF dual control head mobile quoted, 1550 model not available,
CDM 1550 available but does not have dual head

Page 9, Backup Camera - A single backup camera and monitor shall be provided.

Phone | Fax: (702) 5568-3362 » Web: FiretrucksUnlimited.com
1175 Center Point Drive, Henderson, NV 89074



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 2, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

oo

. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Purchase of three (3) Dodge Ram 4500 Regular Cab

Chassis through Nevada State Purchasing, or other vendor if less then state
purchasing, in the amount not to exceed $142,113.

. Recommended motion: / move to approve the purchase of three (3) Dodge Ram 4500 Regular

Cab Chassis through Nevada State Purchasing, or other vendor if less then state purchasing, in
the amount not to exceed $142,113.

. Prepared by: Gary Hames

Department: Equipment Acquisition Telephone: (775) 847-0954

. Staff summary: These three (3) chassis will be utilized for the re-chassis of three ambulances.

This cost is over and above the bid award for the actual work to remove our existing boxes and
place them on these chassis as recommended for approval to Fire Trucks Unlimited within a
separate staff recommendation. A loan application has been successfully completed and
awarded by the USDA for a loan to support this purchase. This staff recommendation is a not to
exceed amount as we are searching for a dealer that may be able to provide the vehicle at a
lesser price then state purchasing. State Purchasing price for 2014 models is $47,371 as the
chassis must have an ambulance prep package installed. We may experience a problem with the
order cutoff date through state purchasing for 2014 models. We are hopeful that we can use the
2014 state pricing to find 2015 models somewhere through a vendor at the same or less cost.
That is why this is written in a not to exceed amount.

. Supporting materials: State Purchasing Price

. Fiscal impact: Funds Available: Yes Fund: Equipment Acquisition Comptroller
. Legal review required: District Attorney
Reviewed by: Department Head  Departiment Name: Equipment Acquisition

.—_:_"_f/g;-ﬂ -ounty Manager Other agency review: USDA

. Board action:

Approved with Modifications

[] Approved
Continued

[] Denied

—~—r—
—t

Agenda Item No. 0’2 %



Page 1 of 4

STANDARD PAGE/COST MATRIX ~ FLEET
(Use separate page for each package)
DEALER NAME: Carson Dodge Chrysler Jeep
Specify State's Vehicle Item Number:3.6 Ram 4500 Regular Cab Chassis Cab 4x2-4x4

(i.e_ 1.1 Sedan: Full size; 4 door; 6 passenger)

Specify MANUFACTURER, Base Price for Base Price for
MODEL NAME, YEAR & BODY MODEL CODE: RENO/CARSON CITY LAS VEGAS
Ram 4500 C/C, 2014, DP4L63 $38,300.00 $38,500.00

State vehicle miles per gallon (MPG):Diesel N/R Total WIOP hws : BH7,371 -
State manufactures warranty: 3/36,000 COMP AND 5/100,000 DIESEL ENGINE

Specify engine size and emission rating: 6.7 LITER CUMMINS 6 CYL; 50 STATE; UREA
Includes Minimum Standard Equipment Listed: _ X__ Yes No If no, state exceptions:

Exterior Color: List available colors:

Black ($340.00), Bright Red ($340.00), Silver, White, Brilliant Black, Dark Brown ($340.00), Deep Forrest
Green, Deep Water Blue ($191.00), Detonator Yellow ($340.00), Flame Red, Light Cream ($340.00),
Light Green ($340.00), Mineral Gray, Omaha Orange ($340.00), Rugged Brown, School Bus Yellow ($340.00)
Timberline Green ($340.00), White Gold, Yellow ($340.00)
iSeats, Cloth: List available colors:

Med Slate Gray

GVW: 16,000-16,500 # ’WHEELBASE:144.5-204.5
{(When Applicable) (When Applicable)

http://purchasing.state.nv.us/vehicles/2012/3.6¢dodge. htm 8/13/2014



Page 2 of 4

OPTION PACKAGE PAGE ~ FLEET
(Use separate page for each package)
DEALER NAME: Carson Dodge Chrysler Jeep
Specify State's Vehicle ltem Number:3.6 Ram 4500 Regular Cab Chassis 4x2-4x4

1.€. 1.1 Sedan: Full size; 4 door, 8 passenger)
Option Package Name/Code: SLT Package (2GG) $2,950.00

List Equipment Features Below:

Bright Front Bumnper, Bright Grille, Bright Wheel Skins, Overhead Console, Power Locks, Power Folding
Trailer Tow Mirrors, Power Windows, Keyless Entry, SLT Badge, Sentry Key Theft Deterrent System
Front Floor Mats, Leather Wrap Steering Wheel, Audio Ctrls Steering Wheel, 6 Speakers

Power Accessory Group (AJW) $531.00
Power Windows, Power Door Locks, Power Trailer Tow Mirrors

Power and Remote Entry Group (AJH) $638.00
Power Windows, Power Door Locks, Power Trailer Tow Mirrors, Keyless Entry

http://purchasing state.nv.us/vehicles/2012/3.6edodge.htm 8/13/2014



Page 3 of 4

ITEMIZED OPTION PAGE ~ FLEET

(Use separale page for each package)

DEALER NAME: Carson Dodge Chrysler Jeep

DEDUCT AMOUNT
ABS Brake System STD $-
Air Conditioning STD $-
Cruise Control STD $-
Diesel Engine STD 3$-
Engine Block Heater $77.00 $-
Four Wheel Drive (4x4) $1,700.00 $-
Heavy Duty Alternator $128.00 220 Amp $-
Hitch Receiver N/A $-
Integrated Trailer Brake $196.00 $-
Keyless Entry w/Fob (must have power door locks) SEE GROUP 3$-
Limited Slip Differential STD 3- ]
Paint, Metallic SEE PAINTS $-
Power Mirrors SEE GROUP $-
Power Locks SEE GROUP $-
Power Seats $723.00 SLT ONLY $-
Power Windows SEE GROUP $-
Radio; AM/FM Stereo, Cassette Player AM/FM STD 3-
Radio; AM/FM Stereo, Cassette Player, CD CD $166.00 $-
Rear Window Wiper N/A -
Seats, Vinyl <$166.00>
Vinyl Colors: Med. Slate Gray

Skid Plate $43.00 $-
Tilt Steering STD $-
Tire, Spare, Full Size $298.00 $-
Trailer Tow Mirrors STD $-
Trailer Tow Package N/A $-
Daytime Running Lamps $43.00

Cargo Lamp $64.00

Fog Lamps (SLT Only) $119.00
Snow Plow Prep $170.00
Rear Sliding Window $119.00

Power Take Off Prep $251.00
\IAmbulance Prep Group $378.00

Engine Shutdown Timer $213.00
Voltage Mont. System Idle $128.00
84" Cab to Axle $156.00

108" Cab to Axle $311.00

120" Cab to Axle $465.00
4.88 Axle Ratio $106.00
Max Tow Package $336.00
Tube Steps $446.00

25/70R19.5F All Trac Tires $213.00 -
Heavy Duty Front Suspension $106.00
U Connect Handsfree Communication $561.00
Dual Alternators $336.00
Park View Rear Back Up Camera $336.00
Elect Mont. Module $166.00
6.4 Liter Hemi Gas Engine <6,300.00> Credit
8/13/2014

http://purchasing.state.nv.us/vehicles/2012/3.6¢cdodge.htm



Page 4 of 4

Delivery charge for other than Reno or Las Vegas (i.e. Ely) $300.00 per unit.

http://purchasing.state.nv,us/vehicles/2012/3.6cdodge . htm 8/13/2014



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 2, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Acceptance and award of contract for three (3) Type |
Triple Combination Structural Fire Fighting Engines to Ferrara Fire Apparatus in
the amount of $1,640,828.

2. Recommended motion; 7 move to accept and award the bid for three (3) Type I Triple

Combination Structural Fire Fighting Engines to Ferrara Fire Apparatus in the amount of
$1,640,828.

3. Prepared by: Gary Hames
Department: Equipment Acquisition Telephone: (775) 847-0954

4, Staff summary: Replacement of structural fire engines for the fire district began two years ago.
This is necessary and prudent due to the mileage, hours and mechanical issues with the existing
engines. An application has been successfully completed and awarded by the USDA for a loan
to support this purchase. Specification have been written and issued to thirty-seven (37) bidders
with four (4) being responsive. Following are important excerpts from these submittals:

1. Ferrara is the lowest bid at $1,640,828. This is in comparison to Rosenbauer at
$1,677,232; Pierce at $1,883,508; and, H&E Equipment Sales (E-One) at
$1,945,825.80.

2. Ferrara is the only vendor to not have a single exception to the specifications.

Our requirement of being completed in 210 days has been accepted by Ferrara.

4. The loose equipment was entirely encompassed within their proposal of which they are
the only company to completely fulfill that requirement.

w2

5. Supporting materials: Fire Apparatus Proposal Letter (attached)

6. Fiscal impact: Funds Available: Yes Fund: Equipment Acquisition Comptroller
7. Legal review required: District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: Department Head ~ Department Name: Equipment Acquisition
Mﬂ?ﬂy Manager Other agency review: USDA
9. Board action:
[ Approved ] Approved with Modifications

[
[] Denied [] Continued
Agenda Item No. S04



RRAR/

FERRARA FIR APPARATUS, T NC

FIRE APPARATUS PROPOSAL

August 15,2014

Storey County Fire Protection District
Post Office Box 603

135 North C Street

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

We are pleased to submit our proposal for your consideration on the following complete apparatus in strict
accordance with the attached proposal for:

Three-(3) Ferrara Fire Apparatus, Inc. model RP1001 Type I Engines mounted on a Ferrara Inferno
chassis per the attached specifications and proposal:

Unit Price: $513,500.00
Total Truck Price (3 Units) $1,540,500.00
Loose Equipment: $100,328.00
Total Purchase Price: $1,640,828.00

The pricing provided is inclusive of all Federal, State and Local taxes and any other fees, which may apply
unless specifically noted herein.

Payment Terms: Payment is due upon acceptance of completed apparatus.

The apparatus and equipment are to be supplied and shipped in accordance with the specifications and
approvals by the Storey County Fire Protection District. Delays due to strikes, war ot other causes beyond
our control not preventing, within 210 calendar days after receipt of order, and delivered to you up at:

Storey County Fire Protection District
Virginia City, Nevada

The specifications herein contained shall form a part of the final contract, and are subject to changes
desired by the Storey County Fire Protection District. The proposal specifications are supplied for
construction purposes. Any additions and/or changes to the enclosed specifications shall be generated
and/or approved by the Storey County Fire Protection District, and accepted by Ferrara Fire Apparatus, Inc.

Unless accepted within 90 days from this date, Ferrara Fire Apparatus, [nc. reserves the right to withdraw
this proposal,

Sincerely,
Ferrara Fire. Appara

Chris Ferrara
President/CEQ

27855 James Chapel Road e P.O. Box 249 e Holden, LA 70744
www.ferrarafire.com e www.fireequipment.com eE-mail: erica@ferrarafire.com
Phone 225-567-7100 o 800-443-9006 » Fax 225-567-7679




Storey County, Nevada

Commission Meeting Agenda Item’Ré¢futésty g: 35

The Storey County Board of Commissioners has established a policy for place - of items on its
meeting agenda. The policy states that all requests must be made in ivﬁtiﬂ% ;@ﬁu__ de all
supporting documentation at the time the request is submitted. mEUTY

The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting. (ltems received after the deadline will be placed
on the agenda of a subsequent meeting.)

Date of Meeting: (] - ) - [ ‘—i Date Request Submitted: ‘& ~ 5 - [ﬁ—'/
Agenda Item Requested: R ¢ tr 08 L() nrse ment f a i F ‘e o [ o r m
Tl system Gold [l krain <¢tafien =
This item is intended for: [ | Discussion Only [X] Discussion/Possible Action (at the Board’s discretion)
@ Supporting documentation is attached [ ] No supporting documentation is necessary
Requested by: L. ;’1-1/1 F G ET ?L
4 (please print name clearly)
Address: ’0 0 ] /36’ X [}[ 3 | Ui',ff'y,(/] (G C ,'73// ﬁ/b/ 64/ LfLZLO
Phone: 4([7 - [ 4 /[ | Email (optional):
Please submit this completed form to:
or FAX to:
Storey County Clerk’s Office
Y ty Storey County Clerk’s Office
PO Drawer D
.. . , (775) 847-0921
Virginia City NV 89440
*— ee-aa Fold at Arrows Here and Above to Place in a Window Envelope @ - - - - - —

AP oE Y
For Office Use Only
Date Request Received: 8- A5 - |4 | Received: [(ATn Person [ ] ViaFAX By: VS
E/Supporting documentation attached - # of pages |71 | Meeting date of this item: q 714

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0969 or email vdufresne@storeycounty.org

# 5



Gold Hill %Ti%%.@ﬁ@ai Society

Box 1052
V1rg1n1a City, NV 88440

To:

Members of the Storey County Commission 8-24-2014
Court House

Virginia City Nevada

Gentlemen:

The Board of Directors wish to request that the following issue be placed on the agenda
for the September 2™ meeting of the Commission:

Reimbursement for Fire Alarm System in Gold Hill train station, in the amount of
$863.36, and associated attorney’s fees in the amount of $200.00.

Thank you for your prompt attention to this matter.
Cordially,
Kim Fegert, Project Manager

Jry o mi™

Gold Hill Historical Society



Gold Hill Historical Society

P.0. Box 10582
Virginia City, NV 88440

To: Shirley Arnold
Burgarello Alarm, Inc.
P.O. Box 2883
Sparks, NV 89432

Dear Ms. Amold:

We regret to inform you that because of circumstances beyond our control, we will no
longer have need for your company’s services. The Gold Hill train station is owned by
Storey County, and they decided not to renew our lease on it. They, however, will have
need of alarm monitoring, and, may welcome contact from your organization. The
County Manager, Pat Whitten’s contact number is 847-0968, ¢-mail
pwhitten@storeycounty.org .

It is my understanding that we have one year left on our contract with you, so, if you’d
prefer, we can have our attorney bill Storey County for the remainder of the contract and
use their remittance to pay you off.

Thank you for your company’s service and your attention to this matter.

Regards, ,

Ay 71
Kim Fegert, Project Manager
Gold Hill Historical Society
ghsteadyworker@yahoo.com
775-720-4274

cc James J. Rankl, Esqu.



50 Snider Way 923 Incline Way, Unit #2 H NW@ |:| @ E

BURG ARELLO Sparks, NV 89431 Incline Village, NV 89452

\ILARM inc.  (775)359-9415 (775) 832-7177 DATE INVOICE NO.
A (775) 359-9214 Fax (775) 832-5160 Fax ] .
(775) 359-1233 Dispatch NV Cont. Lic.# 0018093 SISIE0- 2815
(800) 848-8646 CA Cont. Lic # 682092
GOLD HILL HISTORICAL SOCIETY
P O BOX 1052 ,
VIRGINIA CITY NV 89440 Please write your Customer Number on your check.

Customer No. P.O. Number

18809 S ‘NET 20 9/25/2013
———————— oo e = —.—Please feturn the top stub with-your payment. =~ - - - - - - - - - - -

Service Period Description Qty. Unit Price Ext. Amount

CONTR 13411

OO0S/GOLD HILL RAILROAD DEPOT
1420 MAIN STREET

Lease | 532.36 532.3¢
BALANCE DUE ON LEASED CONTRACT #
13411/ FIRE SYSTEM. - 15 MONTHS 11
DAYS REMAINING @ $34.64 /MO.

PP/UPC/ iL/é/

Wi
~—

For your convenience we accept Electronic Funds Transfers, Visa, Master Card, and Discover

Remit to: Burgarello Alarm, Inc. Subtotdl 532.36
P.O. Box 2883 Sales'TaEL 0.0(
Sparks, NV 89432

10of 1 Invoice Totarl 532.3¢6




Gold Hill Historical Society

P.0. Box 1052
Virginia City, ¥V 88440

Burgarello Alarm, Inc. September 9, 2013
P.O. Box 2883
Sparks, NV 89432-2883

Please find enclosed a check for $532.36, thereby completing our responsibility for the
contract number 13411.

Previously, we advised you to contact the building’s owner, Sterey County, for an
agreement on continued services. We are not aware of any result.

Because, as a 501¢3 non-profit organization, we are bound by the Internal Revenue Code
to account for and distribute our assets in a prescribed manner, we are required to account
for value for expenditures, and can only donate to other non-profit organizations.
Continued alarm monitoring on a premises we no longer occupy or have any
responsibility for is of no value to us. Therefore, you are commanded to cease such
activities if our funds are being used for payment of such services. Your contract allows
you to assign your responsibilities to anyone else without notice to us, but it does NOT
authorize you to assign our funds to other entities’ operations, premises, or accounts. You
bill the Gold Hill Historical Society for services. We are who you expect to pay for them,
we are who have paid for them, and, it is our responsibility to account for value provided.

Your contract says that “Gold Hill Railroad Depot” is the subscriber. If you insist that
that entity, separate from the Gold Hill Historical Society, is the true and sole responsible
party to the contract, then that building’s legal owner is solely responsible for paying for
services provided to it after August 8, 2013. Therefore, we expect you to provide to us
$532.36 of value of some sort for our payment of the remainder of the contract. Giving
your firm payments for service not renderable is a violation of the Internal Revenue
Code. That you cannot provide that service in the traditional way your business operates
is not our concern, as our loss of our building is apparently not of your concern. We
selected your business in part because of a good reputation, and trust that it will be well
deserved in settling this issue.



We look forward to your prompt consideration and reply to this matter.
Cordially,

P |
[hw) @gmﬁ h

Kim Fegert, Project Manager
Gold Hill Historical Society

cc James J Rankle, Esq.



JAMES J. RANKL

ATTORNEY AT LAW, P.C.
300 WEST SECOND STREET
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89703

(775) 882-6450
FAX (775) 883-1987

VIA FACSIMILE (847-1007) and U.S. MAIL

December 24, 2013

William A. Maddox

Storey County District Attorney
P. O.Box 496

Virginia City, NV 89440

Re: Truckee Railroad Depot at Gold Hill, Nevada
Dear Mr. Maddox:

As you know this office represents the Gold Hill Historical Society. While a tenant
of the county at the Truckee Railroad Depot at Gold Hill, Nevada, the Society
purchased and had installed a fire alarm system from Burgarello Alarm. The cost
of the equipment was $388.36 and the installation cost was $475.00. Enclosed
are copies of the invoices for the equipment purchase and installation.

Given the nature of the installation and the need to continue to protect the
building, the Society was unable to remove the alarm equipment from the
building at the end of the lease period. Accordingly, my client requests the
reimbursement from the County for the installed alarm system in the amount of

$863.36.

JJR:djh
Enc.
cc: Kim Fegert, President, Gold Hill Historical Society {without enclosures)



JAMES J. RANKL

ATTORNEY AT LAW, P.C.
300 WEST SECOND STREET
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89703
(775) 882-6450
FAX (775) 883-1987

VIA FACSIMILE (847-1007)

February 7, 2014

Williom A. Maddox

Storey County District Attorney
P. O. Box 496

Virginia City, NV 89440

Re: Truckee Railroad Depot at Gold Hill, Nevada

Dear Mr. Maddox:

To date | have not received a response to my letter you dated December 24,
2013, a copy of which is attached for your convenience. My client would
appreciate a response fto its request for reimbursement at your earliest

convenience. If the request should be directed to another county department,
please advise.

Sincerely,

J. Rankl
JJR:djh

Attachment
/éa Kim Fegert, President, Gold Hill Historical Society



Feg 13 2014
. WILLIAM A. MADDOX
g STOREY COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

P.O. Box 496 » 201 South C Street *Virginia City, Nevada 89440

February 12, 2014-

James J. Rankl

Attorney at Law, P.C.

300 West Second Street
Carson City, Nevada 89703

Re: Truckee Railroad Depot at Gold Hill, Nevada
Jim:

I am sorry that I have been remiss in responding to your letter of December
24, 2013. Until January of this year, I have been the only attorney up here and
paper tends to get lost on my desk.

I have a question. What was the source of the funds that were used to
purchase the fire alarm system? The Gold Hill Historical Society got grants and
contributions for restoration of the depot. If the funds used to purchase the fire
alarm system at the depot were funds from a grant or contribution to restore the
depot then I don’t believe we have to reimburse for its purchase.

Further, where does this end? Is the Gold Hill Historical Society going to
ask for reimbursement for other improvements done to the building? Are we
going to be asked to pay for wood, nails and paint used in restoration, etc.? The
county does not believe that it should reimburse for the fire alarm system.

Sincerely yours,

w%aa%u

William A. Maddox
Ee Pat Whitten

Telephone (775) 847-0964 « Fax (775) 847-1007 e www.scda@storeycounty.org




Gold Hill Historical Society

P.0. Box 1052
Virginia City, NV 88440

To: James J Rankle, Esq. l February 17, 2014
300 West Second Street
Carson City, Nevada 89703

Dear Mr. Rankl:

Upon review of the copy of the letter dated February 12, 2014 from Mr. William
Maddox, I think it appropriate to assist the Storey County Commission with the following
information:

First, a recap of the circumstances surrounding the acquisition of the fire alarm system.
Since it was the intention of the Gold Hill Historical Society to open the building in
question to the public, a decision was made by the Board that a fire sprinkler system
would be necessary to meet current building codes, and, would be prudent in any case to
protect the substantial investment in the structure by the Society. To that end, bids were
solicited, the winning bid for approximately $35,000.00 was identified, and, a grant
application was filed with the State of Nevada Commission on Cultural Affairs, and was
administered through the State Historic Preservation Office. The contractor was Delta
Fire Systems Sparks Branch. They installed the system and were paid the full bid amount
for the contract by reimbursements to the Society provided and accounted for by SHPO.

Because the County is responsible for the local water system, Public Works constructed
a water main, whose materials were paid for by the Society, and connected it to the
system.

The alarm system in question, while not necessary for the function of the sprinkler
system, was added as a courtesy to the Fire Department. The alarm system was NOT
included in the grant process, as a different contractor other than the sprinkler installer
provided it, and, since it was merely a long term lease agreement, CCA funds could not
be used to pay for it. Gold Hill Historical Society’s strong suit is in leveraging grant
funding by providing skilled labor at a match of approximately three dollars to every one
dollar of grant money received, so we have received minimal other financial
contributions. The last grant that the Society had received was in 2007, and all money
was invested in the building at that time (CCA requires money awarded be spent by
deadlines). Subsequently, the Society has been accepting loans from its membership to
cover expenses such as utilities and minor hardware purchases. That was the manner in
which the fire alarm lease contract was financed.



Since the alarm system lease contract was carried by the Society, and not the County,
the Society was responsible for the whole term and amount of the lease, and, was quite
naturally required to pay the full amount to settle the contract. The problem arose when it
was discovered that there was quite some time left remaining on the contract term of five
years after the County Commission denied the renewal of the building lease. Because the
Society is an LR.C. 501¢3 organization, the rules regarding those types of organizations
do not permit money to be paid for services not rendered to standard business
organizations. Both the alarm company and the Society agreed that since the company
could not continue to serve the needs of the Society in the normal manner as a result of a
situation well beyond the control of either entity, the value of the contract would be
fulfilled by the Society taking ownership of the eqiipment installation. With the
building’s best interests in mind, the Society elected not to immediately salvage the
installation, in the hope that common sense would prevail in the provision of an
opportunity for the building owner to acquire the equipment.

Because the impending opening of the building’s gift shop was forever prevented by
the County Commission’s unilateral action, the hope of recovering funds loaned to the
Society through business development is dashed, and the Society’s Board sees its
responsibility to its members as asset recovery. The Board is under no obligation
whatsoever to continue to forfeit recoverable assets that can be used to settle claims, and
the Society’s ability to acquire and justify contributions otherwise has been irreparably
damaged by the loss of the project venue. The Board is authorized to offer a lease of the
equipment in question to the building owner, with the alarm company contracted on our
behalf for its maintenance. We would, however, respectfully suggest that purchase would
be less expensive in the long term.

As to the question posed as to whether we intend to fraudulently bill the County
Commission for other improvements otherwise paid for by grants or donations, we would
point to our impeccable record of making sure all grant accounting guidelines were
followed to the satisfaction of the SHPO office, for a total amount exceeding
$350.000.00. Further, the Society has no paid employees, so the value of the asset at
question is insignificant compared to the value contributed by members as legitimate
donations. There’s no reason for us to tarnish our record as have other organizations
participating in the railroad project as a whole, and we take exception to the insinuation.

The Board wishes to convey its sympathy and understanding to Mr. Maddox for the
circumstances he deals with at work, and sincerely appreciates the assistance he has so
far rendered. At the pleasure of the Board, we can consider requesting that this issue be
taken up at a County Commission meeting for public discussion, as it seems that other
citizens have met with good success at resolving such matters in that venue.

Feel free to copy this directly to Mr. Maddox.

Regards,

Kim Fegert, Project Manager



JAMES J. RANKL

ATTORNEY AT LAW, P.C.
300 WEST SECOND STREET
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89703
(775) 882-6450
FAX (775) 883-1987

VIA FACSIMILE (847-1007)

February 19, 2014

William A. Maddox

Storey County District Attorney
P.O.Box 496

Virginia City, NV 89440

Re: Truckee Railroad Depot at Gold Hill, Nevada
Dear Mr. Maddox:

Thank you for your letter dated February 12, 2014. In response to your first
guestion, please be adyvised that the source of funds for the purchase of the
alarm system was loans and contributions from Gold Hill Society members. The
actual installed sprinkler system was paid for by a grant from the Nevada
Commission on Cultural Affairs and administered through the State Historic
Preservation System. The subject alarm system was not paid for by that grant
and was installed independently of the sprinkler system by Burgarello Alarm.

In response to your second question, my client does not intend to seek
reimbursement for "wood, nails and paint" used to restore the County's building.
The subject alarm system is a high quality, fully functioning asset that was
installed to protect the building. The County directly benefited from the
installation of the asset and continues to benefit. My client has limited sources of
funding and the maintenance and storage of its railroad equipment, including
Engine 8 and other historical artifacts generates significant expenses and costs.
The reimbursement of the cost to install the alarm system would be applied to
those expenses and costs.



Williom A. Maddox
February 19, 2014
Page 2

It is respectfully submitted that the County has received a significant benefit
from the installation of the alarm system and that my client is entitled to
reimbursement of the documented amount paid for the system ($863.36).
Sincerely,

|-

Lbdmes / Ranki

JJR:djh
c: Kim Fegert, President, Gold Hill Historical Society



r v Sustomer No. _ /¥ 7
' Jontract No. 13411 /

16 + FAX (775) 359-9214

/ ﬁ’/;’;f;z_ﬂ%« p&(/d— A 2,/[11 1, INC, (herein "CO" and

LA 5 {heretn "Subsariber™).
y £ _4/” A _Zj_, psponse services, andfor 1o lease,
: )7 A F Ol X d In the Recurring Services lo bs
> ’L‘-f@/x’ 2E7 /’{7 C ALl A ant) at tha premises of subscriber
(herain the "Premises”)

w?( SYB0 P ons, %_,/,,L ’ e o e
/dft/// Netl p v TGP WY RNIGHT 5208

F358. 3~
éﬁy,@éﬁﬂ//mﬂ% N dles’

Bl A f’;/ ////

xanl polley or a subslilute for an | policy.
& provided and are unrelaled lo he value of tho Subseriber’s
lo warrant CO ing any ¢isk of quentlal, collaterat,

tct or inadequacy of the Syslom or services or due o CO's

mant {o provide for the (labllity of CO and Subscriber agrees

he System or service Is designed to detect or avert, From the
NELUTE 01 1NE HYSIOM PIOVICEY ACTeUNAer Or NG SEIVIGES L0 DE PENOIMEa, 11 18 IMPraclcal ANG extremely aimicult 10 1 the actual damages, If any, which may proximately result from the
active or pnasive negligence of, for fallure on the part of, CO Lo perform any of its ebligations hereunder, or the failure of the Systern te properly operate. f CO should be found fiable for loss
o damage due lo a fallure on the part of CO o the Syslem or services, in any respect, such llabillty shell be limlied, svlely with reyard to any AECURRING SERVICE lransaction, to an
amount equal o fifty percent of one year's recurring se:vice charge or the amount of $250, whichaver is less, or, solely with respect to 8 DIRECT SALE transaction, to an amount equal to
the purchase price of the piece of equipmenl with respect to which the clalm ls mado, and regardluss of the typo of transaction, this Hablllly shall be oxclusive. The provisions of this
paragraph shall apply in (he event of loss or demage, Irrespective of cause or origin, results directly ar indirectly to person or property from the pertormance ar nonperformance of the
ohligations set forth by (he terms of this Agreement or from he active or passive negligence of CO, ils agant or employeos, In tha ovent that Subscriber desites CO fo assume greater
liabllity under this Agreement, a choice Is hereby glven of obtaining tull or limited llabllity by peying an addilional amount in proporiion to the amount of liabllity CO will assume. I thls
oplion Is chosen, an addillonal rider shail be attached to (his Agreement seting forth the additionsl labllty of CO and the addilional charge.
3 Ithis Agreemant is a RECURRING SERVICE lransaction, then fhis Agreement shall begin on the lalar of the date of completion of inslallation or the date of coinmencerment of Regurring Servicas, and
shali continug tor a pviod of FIVE YEARS afler the lirst day af Ihe month aexl lollowing said dale, This Ag t shall renew lically for ive periods of ene year thereafler unless sither party
gives the olher parly wrillan notice of lermination not fater (han the 30th day bofore the Jas! day of Ihe lnen existing lem.
4, Subscriber agicesto pay CO Ihe sale andfor inslallation charges indicaled below by paying an amounl equal lo the depositindicaled below al he limo ol signing this Agreement and by paying lhe amount
of the BALANCE DUE upon complelion of (he installalion. Furher, Ihe Subscribar agrees lo pay lhe CO the (otal of the TOTAL QUARTERLY RECURIING SERVIGE CHARGI: Indicaled befow quarierly in
advance during the lerm ol this Agreement and any aulomalic ronewals thareol. IN ADDITION, IN TIIE EVENT OF TERMINATION BY THE SUBSCRIBER PRION TO THE END OF THE YERM OF THE
AGRLLMENT, THE AGREED UPON DAMAGE PAYMENTS SET FORTH IN SECTION 7 HEREOF, Wi lICH MAY BE SUBSTANTIAL, WILL BECOME IMMEDIATELY DUE AND: PAYABLE.

SALE LEASE RECURRING QUARTERLY PAYMENTS
SALES PRICE $ - MONITORING $ -
SALES/USE TAX $ - $ - LEASE PAYMENT $ 108.68
LEASE INSTALLATION $ 475.00 PHONE LINE SECURITY {Lease) $ -
LINE SECURITY INSTALLATION $ - TESTING 5 93.75
LINE SECURITY TAX $ - OPENINGS & CLOSINGS $ .
UL APPLICATION $ - 3 - SERVICE CONTRACT $ .
TOTAL $ - H 475.00 KEY SERVICE $ -

UL LISTING 5 -

DEPOSIT REQUIRED $ 237.50 TOTAL RECURRING CHARGE  § 202.43
BALANCE DUE 237.50
THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS CONTAINED ON THE SIDE OF THIS Y ARE IWCORPORATED HEREIN, AND, BY REFERENCE,

MADE A PART HEREOF, SUBSCRIBER ACKNOWLEDGES RECEVING A COPY OF THIS AGREEMENT AND HAVING READ AND UNDERSTOOD ALL OF BUCH
TERMS & CONDITIONS, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, SECTIONS 2,5,8,7,11,AND,73, WHICH LIMIT THE WARRANTIEE, LIABRITIES AND
DRLIGATIONS OF €O,

By: ROB By: _ GOLDHILRALROADDEPOT

Sacurily Aepresanlative

Approved T ebasel % I S

Aulhorized Aapresentative Tille Date

#ﬁgmﬂ&lﬂn[ gﬁw UWFFROVED 104 WRITING BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF CO. IN THE EVENTSUCHAI’PRO?AIX?PHT]DS?&&D. THE SOLE LIABILITY OF CO SHALL BE YO
A H, E

0 CO BY SUBSCRIBER UPON SIGMNG OF THIS AGREEMENT.



wone e [[[NWVAOIG[E
BURG ARELLO  Srarks, NV 89431 Incline Village, NV 89452

ILARM INc.  (775)359-9415 (775) 832-7177 DATE INVOICE NO.
(775) 359-9214 Fax (775) 832-5160 Fax — .
(775) 359-1233 Dispatch NV Cont. Lic.# 0018093

(800) 848-8646 CA Cont. Lic # 682092

GOLD HILL RAILROAD

C/O STOREY COUNTY :
PO BOX 483 Please write your Customer Number on your check.

VIRGINIA CITY NV 89440

9/30/2013

Service Period Description Qty. Unit Price Ext. Amount

GOLD HILL RAILROAD
1420 MAIN STREET :
Equipment sale : 1 388.36 388.3%
BALANCE DUE ON PURCHASE OF SECURITY
EQUIPMENT LOCATED AT: 1420 MAIN ST.
GOLD HILL NV 89440.

For your convenience we accept Electronic Funds Transfers, Visa, Master Card, and Discover

Remit to: Burgarello Alarm, Inc. Subtothl 388.3

5

P.O. Box 2883 Sales Tgx 0.0p
Sparks, NV 89432 Payments Appligd -388.3p
1 of 1 Invoice Balange 0.0p




50 Snider Way 923 incline Way, Unit #2 U NW@ I:I @ E

BURGA RELLO Sparks, NV 89431 Incline Village, NV 89452

LARM INc.  (775)359-9415 (775) 832-7177 DATE INVOICE NO.
(775) 359-9214 Fax (775) 832-5160 Fax 11/23/2009 164789
(775) 359-1233 Dispatch NV Cont. Lic.# 0018093
(800) 848-8646 CA Cont. Lic # 682092
GOLD HILL RAILROAD
C/O STOREY COUNTY .
PO BOX 483 Please write your Customer Number on your check.

VIRGINIA CITY NV 89440

Customer No. P.O. Number

18809 12/13/2009

Service Period Unit Price Ext. Amount

Description

Qty.

CONTRACT # 13411

GOLD HILL RAILROAD
1420 MAIN STREET
Install (Lease) L 237.90 237.5(
DEPOSIT NOW DUE ON CONTRACT # 13411 |
FIRE SYSTEM. BALANCE DUE ON
COMPLETION. PAYMENT RECEIVED THIS
INVOICE PAID IN FULL.

For your convenience we accept Electronic Funds Transfers, Visa, Master Card, and Discover

Remit to: Burgarello Alarm, Inc. Subtotal 237.50
P.O. Box 2883 Sales Tgx 0.0
Sparks, NV 89432 Payments Appli -237.5

1 of 1 Invoice Balande 0.0




JAMES J. RANKL

ATTORNEY AT LAW, P.C.
300 WEST SECOND STREET
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89703
(775) 882-6450 p
FAX (775) 883-1987 ’
/ g’

March 31, 2014
[\
- }

7

QO

Kim Fegert, President
Gold Hill Historical Society
P. O. Box 1052
Virginia City, NV 89440
INVOICE FOR SERVICES

2/6/14 Telephone conversation with Kim Fegert; Draft letters to
County and Public Utilities Commission.

2/14/14  Draft letter to Kim Fegert.
2/19/14  Draft letter to Maddox.

2/24/14 Telephone conversation with general counsel re rail.

Total Hours: 1.4

Fee: ¢ $350.00
» 0

Amount Due: $350.00

Thank you.

James J. Rankl
JJR:djh



50 Snider Way 923 Incline Way, Unit #2 I:I NW@ D @ E
BURGARELLO Sparks, NV 89431 Incline Village, NV 89452
LARM inc.  (775) 359-9415 (775) 832-7177 DATE INVOICE NO.
(775) 359-9214 Fax (775) 832-5160 Fax
(775) 359-1233 Dispatch NV Cont. Lic# 0018093 | - 4/11/2012 262848
(800) 848-8646 CA Cont. Lic # 682092

GOLD HILL HISTORICAL SOCIETY

CIgGBICN)i;\g% NV 89440 Please write your Customer Number on your check.

Customer No. P.O. Number Due Date

5/1/2012

Service Period Description Qty. Unit Price Ext. Amount

GOLD HILL RAILROAD DEPOT

1420 MAIN STREET
5/1/12-7/31/12 Lease 3 32.14 96.42
FIRE SYSTEM EQUIPMENT LEASE
5/1/12-7/31/12 Alarm Monitoring J 25.95 77.89
5/1/12-7/31/12 Fire Test Agreement K 20.0D 60.00
£ Y N .
R

g s
V2o \

For your convenience we accept Electronic Funds Transfers, Visa, Master Card, and Discover

Remit to: Burgarello Alarm, Inc. - Subtotgl . 234.27
P.O. Box 2883 | Sales Ta o.oa
Sparks, NV 89432

1 of 1 Invoice Totz 234.27




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 2, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Special Use Permit Extension & Amendment 2012-014-A-1-2014. By

Robert MacLachlan on behalf of Vista Towers, for a property located at 21485 Saddleback Road,
Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 003-101-66). The applicant requests an
amendment to Special Use Permit 2012-014 in order to modify a condition of the existing permit
requiring a contract with one or more cellular carriers before construction of the “mono-pine” wireless
communications tower may commence. The Applicant is also requesting an extension to Special Use
Permit 2012-014 which, due to inactivity, will expire.

. Recommended meotion: Continuation: Pursuant to the Applicant providing the Planning Department

additional in the submitted application, I [Commissioner] move to continue the request for special use
permit amendment and continuation (SUP No. 2012-014-A-1-2014) to the September 16, 2014 regular
session of the Board of County Commissioners.

. Prepared by: Dessie Redmond, Planner

Dcpartment: Planning Department Telephone: 847-1144

. Staff summary: The applicant requests an amendment to Special Use Permit 2012-014 in order to modify a

condition of the existing SUP requiring a contract with one or more cellular carriers before construction
of the “mono-pine” wireless communications tower may commence. The Applicant is also requesting an
extension to Special Use Permit 2012-014 which, due to inactivity, will expire.

. Supporting materials: None

. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

. Legal review required:

District Attorney

. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:

- ;'%};é_winty Manager Other agency review:

. Board action:

[] Approved [1] Approved with Modifications
[1] Denied [] Continued Agenda Item No. Q \0



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 2, 2014 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Parcel Map 2014-012. By Vincent Griffith on behalf of Western
102/Western 102 LTD c/o Annette Mansfield, for a property located at 2633 Waltham Way, McCarran,
Storey County, Nevada (APN: 004-092-76). A Parcel Map to create two separate parcels of land from
one existing parcel of land.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by the Storey County Planning
Commission and Staff, the Findings under Section 5.1 of the Staff Report, and other Findings deemed
appropriate by the Board, and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, I [Commissioner] move to
approve with conditions Parcel Map Application Number 2014-014 for the division of one existing

parcel into two parcels.

3. Prepared by: Dessie Redmond, Planner
Department: Planning Department Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: The Applicant requests a Parcel Map dividing one existing parcel into two parcels. The
subject parcel is located in McCarran, Nevada and not in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center (TRI)

Center.

5. Supporting materials: Staff report, exhibits and appendices.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

__A7 Department Head Department Name:

i ?}Mty Manager Other agency review: _

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued Agenda Item No. Q——’

=
e e



26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440

STOREY COUNTY
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Storey County Courthouse

Phone (775) 847-1144 - Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

o O
To: Storey County Board of County Commissioners
From: Storey County Planning Department
Meeting Date: September 2, 2014 at 10am
Meeting Location: Stérey County Courthouse - 26 South B Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440
Staff Contact: Dessie Redmond, Planner
File: ~2014-012
Applicant: Vincent Griffith

Property Owner:
Property Location:

Figures:

Appendix:

Guiding Documents:

Request:

Western 102/Western 102 Limited ¢/o Annette Mansfield
2633 Waltham Way, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 004-092-76)

Figure 1-Vicinity Map; Figure 2-Zoning Map; Figures 3 & 4-Site Photos; Figures
5-Abutting Parcels

Appendix 1-Proposed Parcel Map

Storey County Code-Sections 17.35 -2 Heavy Industrial Zone, the Storey County
Master Plan and Nevada Revised Statues 278.461 through 278.469

A Parcel Map dividing one parcel into two parcels. The subject property located in
McCarran, Nevada but not in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center.

|

(m
Staff Report - 2014-012

Introduction



igure 1 - Vicinity Map

Subject Property

| NTS

Figure 2 - Zoning Map

1. BACKGROUND &
ANALYSIS

1.1 Site Location and Characteristics

The subject property is located at 2633
Waltham Way in Storey County, Nevada
(Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 004-
092-76). The property is approximately
12.83 acres and is owned by the Western
102/Western 102 Limited c¢/o Annette
Mansfield. Lockwood is approximately
12 miles to the west, and USA Parkway
is approximately one-half mile to the
east (Figure 1 - Vicinity Map).The
subject property is zoned Industrial

Two (I-2) Heavy Industrial (Figure 2 -
Zoning Map). The subject property is
currently vacant. (Figures 3 and 4: Site
Photos). The subject property is not
within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center
(TRI Center).

The subject property is accessed off
Interstate 80, via USA Parkway and off
of Britain Way. Britain Way runs along
the east side of the subject property
boundary and Waltham Way runs along
the south side of the property boundary.

1.2 Proposed Parcel Map

Appendix 1 - Proposed Parcel Map
shows that the existing parcel will be
split into two parcels. Parcel 2014-20
to the north and Parcel 2014-21 to the
south. There is no proposed use for this
Application.

1.3 Application for a Parcel Map

NRS 278.461 defines a “Parcel Map”
as a division of land into four or

O

=,
Staff Report - 2014-012

Background & Analysis



= (il |1|'-l_n|'_1.} -.’ili_i".'i.l"a'u'm a }qql
= LU LT Wl f

=, —0
Staff Report - 2014-012 Background & Analysis



Nl s

Figure 5 - Abutting Parcels

less parcels. The Parcel Map and conditions of approval comply with NRS 278.461 through 278.469
regulating the division of land into four or less parcels.

Storey County Code (SCC) does not specifically require an Application for a Parcel Map. However,
Nevada Revised Statues (NRS) does require a Parcel Map to go through the Application process.

NRS 278.464 Action on a Parcel Map by the Planning Commission to the governing body.

The Planning Commission shall:

In a county whose population is less than 700,000, within 60 days, after accepting as a complete
application for a Parcel Map, recommend approval, conditional approval or disapproval of the map in
a written report. The Planning Commission shall submit the Parcel Map and the written report to the
governing body.

The Planning Commission shall file its written decision with the governing body. The governing body
shall review and approve, conditionally approve or disapprove the Parcel Map.

An Applicant or other person aggrieved by a decision of the Board may appeal the decision in
accordance with the ordinance adopted pursuant to NRS 278.3195.

If a parcel map and the associated division of land are approved or deemed approved pursuant to this

section, the approval must be noted on the map in the form of a certificate attached thereto and executed

by the clerk of the governing body and the Board.

—

(=

Staff Report - 2014-012

Background & Analysis



1.4 Adjacent Properties Existing Land Uses

The abutting properties to the west, south, southeast and east of the are vacant. The abutting property
to the northeast is the TRI Center’s waste water treatment plant owned by the TRI Center General
Improvement District (GID) and the land to the northwest is the Western 102 Power Plant which is
owned by Barrick Goldstrike (Figure 5 - Abutting Land Uses).

The abutting lands to the northeast and southeast are within the TRI Center. The other lands, including
the subject property, are not.

1.5 Abutting Properties Zoning
All of the abutting properties are zoned I-2 Heavy Industrial (Figure 2 - Zoning Map).

2. GENERAL COMPLIANCE WITH STOREY COUNTY'S
GUIDING DOCUMENTS

2.1 Table 1: Land Use Compatibility

The following table shows land uses, Storey County Master Plan (Master Plan) designations and zoning
for the land surrounding the proposed residence. There are no evident conflicts between the proposal
and SCC Title 17 Zoning or'the Master Plan. The proposed Parcel Map is also consistent with the’
surrounding industrial uses and vacant parcels.

Land Use Compatibility
Land Land Use Master Plan Zoning
Applicant's Land Vacant Industrial 1-2
Land to the northeast TRI GID Industrial - TRI 1-2
Land to the northwest Power Plant Industrial 1-2
Land to the west Vacant Industrial I-2
Land to the south Vacant Industiral 1-2
Land to the southeast Vacant Industrial - TRI 1-2
Land to the east Vacant Industiral 1-2
o o
Staff Report - 2014-012 General Compliance with SC's Guiding Documents



3. COMPLIANCE WITH THE STOREY COUNTY CODE

3.1 Storey County Code 17.35 I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone
The following provisions apply to the I-2 Zone:

A. 17.35.050 Minimum Parcel Area.
The minimum parcel areas required in the I-2 zone is three acres, except for commercial uses in a
heavy industrial zone area for which there is a 15,000 square foot minimum.

The subject property and proposal does conform with this standard. The new parcel created
to the north will be approximately 4.6 acres and the new parcel created to the south will be
approximately 8.23 acres.

B. 17.35.060 Setback Requirements.
Buildings may not be located closer than 50 feet to any property line.

There are no proposed buildings with this application; therefore, the Application conforms with
this standard. Further, the proposed parcels will provide sufficient space to accommodate allowed
uses within necessary setbacks.

C. 17.35.070 Loading Area.
Loading area must have adequate room for vehicular circulation and staging. All truck parking and
docking areas must be designed so that right-of-ways (ROW) and travelled ways are not impacted.

There is no proposed loading area with this Application; therefore, the Application conforms
with this standard.

4. PUBLIC COMMENT

Staff has not received any public comment for this file as of posting date.

5. FINDINGS

5.1 Motion for Approval

The following Findings are evident with regard to the requested Parcel Map when the recommended
conditions of approval in Section 6 - Recommended Conditions of Approval are applied. The approval,
approval with conditions, or denial of Parcel Map must be based on findings that indicate that the
proposed Application is appropriate in the location for which it is approved. The Findings listed in this
subsection are the minimum to be cited in an approval; the body may include additional Findings in their
decision. The Board and Planning Commission must cite Findings in the motion for approval, approval
with conditions, or denial. At a minimum, the approval must be based on the following Findings:

5.1.1 The Parcel Map must comply with NRS 278.461 through 278.469 relating to the division of
land into 4 or less parcels; and

5.1.2 The Parcel Map complies with all Federal, Nevada State, and County regulations pertaining to
Parcel Maps and permitted land uses; and

o 0
Staff Report - 2014-012 Compliance with the SCC & Public Comment & Findings



5.1.3 The Parcel Map will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the abutting
properties or the surrounding vicinity; and

5.1.4 The conditions under this Parcel Map do not conflict with the minimum requirements in SCC
Chapters 17.35 I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone or any other Federal, Nevada State, or County regulations.

5.2 Motion for Denial
Should a motion be made to deny the Parcel Map request, the following Findings with explanation of
why should be included in that motion.

5.2.1 Substantial evidence shows that the Parcel Map conflicts with the purpose, intent, and other
specific requirement of SCC Chapter 17.35 I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone or any other Federal, Nevada
State, or County regulations; or

5.2.2 The conditions under the Parcel Map do not adequately mitigate potential adverse impacts on
surrounding uses or protect against potential safety hazards for surrounding uses.

6. RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable Storey County Department.

1.

General requirements. The Parcel Map must comply with NRS 278.461 through 278.469 relating
to the division of land into four or less parcels. The Parcel Map must comply with Federal, State, and
County regulations pertaining to Parcel Maps and permitted land uses.

Record of Survey. The Applicant must submit to the Planning Department a Record of Survey
(ROS) with the Building Permit application. The ROS must show existing parcel boundaries,
easements, and ROWs, as applicable. No building may be constructed over an easement or ROW, or
within a building setback area.

Required Setbacks. The Parcel Map must maintain required I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone setback
distances for any future proposed buildings on the subject property.

Access and Easements. All existing streets, easements, and utility easements, whether public or
private, must remain in effect and be delineated clearly on the final map. No existing easements will
be affected by the approval of this Pacel Map.

Taxes Paid. Before obtaining a Building Permit, the Applicant must show the Planning Department
valid evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid to-date.

Minimum Parcel Area. No parcel created will be less than three acres in size.
Final Map. The final map must be recorded with the Storey County Recorder’s Office within
12 months of the Board approval. If the final map is not recorded by that time, this approval will

become null and void.

Lot Improvements. The Building Department may require street grading, drainage provisions, and
lot designs as are reasonably necessary to abate potential impacts on abutting parcels.

5]

=,

Staff Report - 2014-012

Recommended Conditions of Approval



9. *Certificate. The approval of the Parcel Map must be noted on the new recorded Map in the form
of a certificate attached thereto and executed by the Storey County Clerk and the Chairman of the
Board.

*This condition was added after the August 21, 2014 Planning Commission meeting and per NRS.

7. POWER OF THE BOARD & PLANNING COMMISSION

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Commission must take such action thereon as it deems
warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal resolution, and such
resolution must recite the findings of the Planning Commission upon which it bases its decision. The
decision of the Planning Commission in the matter of granting the Parcel Map is advisory only to the
Board of County Commissioners and that governing body must consider the report and recommendation
and must make such a decision thereon as it deems warranted.

8. AUGUST 21, 2014: PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

" On the August 21, 2014, in accordance with the recommendation by Staff, the Findings under 5.1 of this
Staff Report and in compliance with all conditions of approval (1-8), the Storey County Planning
Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval for Parcel Map 2014-012 (yes =7, nay = 0,
absent = 0).

9. PROPOSED MOTIONS

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval with Conditions

of Approval is recommended by the Planning Commission and Staff in accordance with the Findings
under section 5.1 of this Staff Report. Those Findings should be made part of that motion. A motion for
denial may be made and that motion should cite one or more of the Findings shown in section 5.2. Other
Findings determined appropriate by the Board should be made part of either motion.

9.1 Recommended Motion

In accordance with the recommendation by the Planning Commission and Staff, the Findings under
section 5.1 of this Staff Report and other Findings deemed appropriate by the Board, and in compliance
with all Conditions of Approval (1-9), I [Commissioner] move to approve Parcel Map Application
Number 2014-012 for the division of one existing parcel into two parcels.

9.2 Alternative Motion

In accordance with the Findings under section 5.2 of this report and other Finding against the
recommendation for approval by the Planning Commission and Staff, I [Commissioner] move to deny
Parcel Map Application Number 2014-012 for the division of one existing parcel into two parcels.

Prepared by: Dessie Redmond
Storey County Planner

0 |
Staff Report - 2014-012 Power of the Board & PC, August 21 PC Meeting & Proposed Motions

8




APPENDIX 1: PROPOSED PARCEL MAP

(o 5]
Appendixes - 2014-012 Appendix 1: Proposed Parcel Map



NOLLVHORIOO DNRHANIONA ONHY
AINNOO AZWOIE |

JTAN S22d NIEL % 028
40 #1 AN FAL J0 NOLDIOd ¥ NIHIIA RIVILIE

G TOA A0 SHNE TEMVA 30 NOEIART V

‘ONI ‘HONVY 701 NMHLISIM
® ‘d1 HONVY 701 NAHLSEM
ol

dVIN THOUVd

N “HOW,0

LYOLILY,

ALNd30

VOVAN ALNNCO ADMOLS ‘SANDOIN TVDIL40
1S¥d SAINNIN

1¥ 'yi02 40 AvQ SIHL NO

40 LSO JML LY CeOO% 804 O

]

9£-260-¥00 “N'd'V

29681 STd A 431vA_d SINVE

CrUCIE SHN MM LOCLENOD WLOW B1 ADAENE 50 Cu003H SML S

ALTIEVENG NV MIGNNN LNGOLINS 40 3uv ONv 03LYOKIN SNOLLISOd
FHL AdNIOD ‘NMOHS ¥ALIVHYHI 3ML 4O R4¥ LV1d 3HL NO GALOIAIA SINBNANOM 3HL ¢

3000 JAUVMISININGY YOVAIN JHL 40 SZD MILAVHD HLM JONYQMOODY NI QILONINOD SYM
AJANNS FHL ONY ‘02UIWINOD SYM AZAUNS FHL LYHL ALVO JHL NO 103443 NI STONYNIOHO
YO0 ANY ONV YIS SHL 40 SALNLYLS 318YINddY 3HL HLM S3NJMOD L¥1d SHI  'E

T NO CALIIINCO SYM AIAMS THL ONY “WOR
uunz.zoﬁ.cndumuoq\_;zuz._.%E_Eom<z_E§u_._B>u>m:mmazSuE.N

"HONYY ZOL NHILS3M 4O JONVLSNI JHL 1V NOSIN3JNS
1030 AW 30NN AINN0SY3D AANNS ¥ 40 SITINSIH 3HL SINISTHEIY LY1d SHE )

ILYHL AJLY3D ABRMGH
‘YOYAIN 40 ALVIS 3HL NI G3ISN3IM MOATAYNS ANYT TYNOISSLION ¥ “NI ‘ATIVE ' SINV! ‘1

MANOESINAOD ALNNCD ATNOLS ‘NYRAIVHD *————————————————————— g

yl0z T
><Qu..Fzoﬁs.mm_:znotz_aoo»wmohwmx.—)mnu>oxm.u<m<>>A(: w_E

HOLIV JHL AB NMOHS.
3HL 30K 'SINTYA QRO NIVLEO OL 8Z6¥52000°t 40 HOLIYA ONNONO-DL-QID
¥ HOW (EAR3Q ‘035¥E QNNOUD 3dY J¥A SIHL NO NMOHS SIUYNIGWG0D IWL

“(L57,0209N_ONIYV3E) 9¥IX NOLLYLS ONY 6ECN NOLLYIS SON mOM4
GININYALIQ SY ‘v6/E8 QYN ‘0RO 3NOZ LSIM 'WRUSAS ALYNIGNOOD INYTd ALVIS YOYAIN

SONRIvHE JO SISVH

HLVOHILYED SAOAHAANS

HLVOMHLLYHO SAINOISSININOOD ALNNOOD

SHHOV FE8'Z1 = VIHV TVIOL
2 ‘STHOY¥Vd 'TVIOL

dVIN ALINIDIA

\\ =\
_ 8L &1 .

He =

ﬁ _ L:J/__ =

'ONI ‘HONVY 201 NYALSAM

ANV

Jod

dVIN THOUdVd

‘$102 “S) ANNM QIALVO ‘00-6$0Z0+10 ON HIHO
TONG'YOVAIN JO FTLU HODIL A8 1NOCI TFILUL ANVNIAMIE 9
YOVAIN ‘ALNNQOD AZNOLS 40 SGHOD3Y WO ‘99650l ON 33
"JIHSYINLYYS G3LIAN HONYY Z0L NYALSIM %
Sta hONvE 20U MESLETM bOU SNOUETYOY INT ANVONTOR ¥ O LkOsans M LD O Oe000e §
VAYAIN 'ALNAOD AZHOLS 40 SANOO3ZH TYIOIL40 ‘29246 'ON 34
71 HONYY 201 NYILS3M #® ONI HINvY ZOL NY3LSIM HOJ aVN T30uvd +
'7OVAIN 'ALNNDD AZUOLS 40 SOHODIM TVIDIZ40 ‘49116 "ON 314
‘077 'Y2UNIO WIMLSNAN ONZ¥-ZOHYL 804 LNIWISONQY 3N AMYANNOE 40 AJANNS JO QHOI3Y
VOVAIN ALNNOD A3NOLS 40 SON0O3X TVIOI440 'S06L8 ON 314
00 ¥IMOJ OIAO¥E YEYIIS ¥OJ JYN T30NYd 2
YAYAIN 'ALNNCD A3HOLS 40 SQUOO3Y T¥ISIA40 ‘L¥BSE “ON 34
NI HONYE TOL MEGLE3e 505 oY TE0aYd |

SHONHIHHIHA

-

anend AMVION

N HINYE 01 NEISIR 0
ONY “dIHSHINLYYJ QSLINM 'HONYY ZOL NMILSIM 40 ¥3MNSYIML 'TT3LSNYA ILLINNY AQ
Loz NO 3N 30438 Q3903 TMONIDY SYM LNINNAULSNI SIHL

IOGYR JO ALNAGD
=%
YAYAIN 40 ALVLS

HIVOMITYHD SAdVION

MIWNSYIML ‘TIAIISNYA ZLLINNY AQ

NOILYHOJH0D VAVAIN ¥
ONI ‘HINYY ZOL NMILSIM

IYNSYIHL ‘CIISNYN ALLINNY AS

dIHSHMINLYY QILINN YOVAIN ¥
dIMSYINLNYd TILIAIT HONVY ZOL NNILSIM

R4Z HAGYHD 'S YN JO SNOISIAO¥A IHL OL LOIrENS ONY HLM

3ONVITINOD NI A3LNI3X3 S)_IAVS 3IHL LYHL ‘L¥1d SIHL 40 NOUYQH0O3Y ONY NOULYAYd3Md
3HL OL QIINISNOO 3AYH ONY L¥1d SIHL NO QILNISINAIY ONV] 40 LOVHL LYHL 40
SHINMO FHL 3WY 'USINIINI XZ AIAAIONOD NV OL SY 'NOUVHOLNOD YAVAIN ¥ ‘ONI KONV
201 NY3ALS3IM OGNV ‘LS3VIALN| %86 Q3IQINANN_NY OL SY ‘dIHSHINLAVA QALIAN YOVA3N

¥ "dIHSHANLYYC OALIAIM HONVY ZOL NMY3LS3IM ‘Q3INDISHIONN IHL LVHL AJILY3D OL S! SIHL

HLVOMHITIHO SIINMO

dIHSIANIIVd AIIIATT ‘HONVYA 201 NJA.LSHM

|

Appendix 1: Proposed Parcel Map

s,

Appendixes - 2014-012

10



SO T TOL WeIISIWADMO\AS ZOL glggmﬁ
OOS-TSE-GLL  00SER AN TAGH N
AV HSHV S0P //////// ~
NOLLYHOJ400 ONREHNIONA ONHY S~
WIVAIN AN AGe0ls | ~ // S
TVAN 528 NILL ‘%6 DFF ~
40 #1 AN GHL 30 NOLDSOd V NIEIAL SIVIOS ~
S TOH 4D F-000 TRV 30 NOEIANT Y
"ONI ‘HONVY 201 NJHISHM
% ‘dT ‘HONVY 201 NIHLSHM
WO
dVIN THOAVd . ”
L0-1p0~500 Ne¥
25656 Wd
v 1304vd
¥3NSVIAL 0D AFMOLS
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
,00Y = Ll "ATVOS ~
e | ~
oc8 Tov 00Z O ~
~
~
67-260-p00 NJY
$8L10L Wd
61-5002 1INV /
QL) 'zo; NA3LEEM Vs ;
IN( “Z0( N¥ZLSIM
Ve
3N MAND B

ONINVIS TVIavy (¥)

QALON S¥Y ¥0 IN3NNNON A3ANNS
L0 @ LNGRNAAGS SEYLS aaumn onnod H T

ANMO4 LON ANINNNOA A3ANNS Sbe
301440 ANV IN3NNM3ACO SALYLS GILIND YiZ-665 1308vd

135 HO ONNO4 ONMHION LOIAISIT ININIAOULA]
‘INIOd GALYINO YO —H— TYVANTD 1YL

CIWOEIT S ImOd ONOCH @
Wovr ST OFOAYLS YD B EVINE G ONROS @
9099 S7d 03JAVLS YD P HvE3Y .B/S ONNOd O

IERL S)d 0IdMYLS dvD ® ¥VATM .8/C 13 O

(NHOAT

80— 1EO—50Q NdY
v¥LIE Wd

L0—-1E0—500 'NJY
85896 S0Y
AlYIe—66 TI2UYd
ONINOILONALSNOD ¥3H40D

|
~ |
o~
N —— Y€ g6
N = —F -
N | ~_
S A ~ ~ON 75— 160-p00 'Y S pe_NOUJIS v/) LSIM_ _ _
& _ ANAOW X204 NI 3NQLS J38i83S
// LVESE Wd
~ £2-66 T308¥d |
~ N
|

"ONI 'SINIW ININLSGTAD MIlNAvE

S3YOY Fee'R
12-¥102 TIOHVd

LE-ZG0- VA0 NJY
49446 Wd

202-86 TA0dvd

37T "S3YNINTA 333¥3 3M8

SFAOV F09'¥
02—-¥102 TI0dVd

44-250-500 'Nd¥
996501 W4
v1-2002 TID¥Yd
ONI "SaNIW INHLSTTOD HO[¥uva

u ]

Appendix 1: Proposed Parcel Map

=,

11

Appendixes - 2014-012



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: A-2-1 4 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda; Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion; Approval

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 8§47-0966

4, Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available; Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
x___ Departmen Department Name: Community Development
//','.'.' 3 /Cm M

anager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. 9 8



Storey County Community Bevbelopment
Business f =

P O Box 526 * Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 ¢ Fax (775) 847-0935 « buslic@storeycounty.org

A Licenging

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office August 25,2014
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the September 2, 2014, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD

SECOND READINGS
A. CHEWY.COM LLC - General / 700 Milan (ecommerce fulfillment ctr) TRI
B. PEEK BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION INC. — Contractor / 400 Carroll Drive — Fernley (contractor)
C. A & J PAVING - Contractor / 1490 Cherokee Trail ~ Reno (contractor)
D. dba RED ROCK SPRING WATER / General — 1145 Icehouse Avenue ~ Sparks (water delivery)
E. MARTINEZ TREXLER REAL ESTATE GROUP / Home Business — 92 West Taylor (real estate) VC
F. ARDAGH METAL PACKAGING USA, INC. — General / 900 Waltham Way (can mfg) TRI
G. W G YATES & SONS CONST CO - Contractor / 2641 Portofino Drive (contractor) TRI
H. A-Z WELDING & FABRICATION, LLC — General / 1215 Alexandria (welding fab) TRI
I. ROSSCO ENT., dba AP STAINLESS MFG — General / 1215 Alexandria (manufacturing) TRI
J. RITCHIE BROS AUCTIONEERS — General / 20202 East Highway 80 MCC

Inspection Required

ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Assessor’s Office



